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MISSION STATEMENT
EEED

We contribute to the advancement of
society by providing people with quality
products and employing advanced
technology, with protecting the
environment always in mind. We hire and
nurture professionals and, together, we
march towards our goals in pace with
time. Putting customers first, we provide
them with the best products and services,
assuring win-win results.
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CORPORATE OBJECTIVE
o =R

To become a technologically
advanced and innovative company
in Asia and the preferred partner
by providing comprehensive
electronics solutions and building
a pet health ecosystem.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B mE

OPERATING RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating profit

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company

Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents)

Interim dividend, paid, per ordinary
share (HK cents)

Final dividend, proposed, per ordinary
share (HK cents)

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March

Total equity

Net current assets

Net cash (excluding time deposit over
three months)

Capital expenditure

Net assets value per share (HK cents)

FINANCIAL RATIOS
Current ratio

Debt to equity ratio
Inventory turnover days
Debtors turnover days
Return on average equity
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2018
HK$'000

—E-N\F
FHT

1,510,504
231,148
82,934

74111
26.29

7.0

8.0

731,605
360,950

96,191
17,240
259.3

2.10
9.4%
66

50
10.6%

2017
HK$'000
—LtF

TR

1,414,103
223,600
61,672

61,745
2212

7.0

8.0

670,472
302,025

108,852
61,103
238.6

1.84
17.2%
56

51
9.2%
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HBERE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=1+—BHLHFE

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E2-N\HF —E—tF

T FAT

The United States of America E K 670,865 625,647
Japan =N 279,015 253,955
PRC (including Hong Kong) HE(BEEH) 189,524 166,580
Taiwan =0 97,538 79,858
Australia M 77,454 70,708
Germany = 40,274 34,535
United Kingdom B 38,625 94,899
Others H 117,209 87,921
Total Bt 1,510,504 1,414,103
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Activities

— HKDR 25th Anniversary Lamma Adventure day
— HKDR Peak to Fong 2017

— Paws by the Sea 2018

— SPCA Dogathon 2018
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Pet Exhibitions in Major Chinese Cities
and Large International Exhibitions

— Guangzhou — Hong Kong .
— Chengdu — Us 10
— Shanghai — Japan ; |
— Shenzhen — Germany gb
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Donation

— "Pets With Love” Dog Adoption Carnival
— The 1% Dog Festival — Bichon Frise Party
Bl — CNY Charity Dog Walk

— PL Charity Event
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the annual
results of Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“SUGA” or the “Group”) for the financial year ended
31 March 2018 (“FY2017/18").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

SUGA recorded turnover of approximately HK$1,510.5 million during
the year under review, representing a year-on-year growth of about
6.82% (FY2016/17: HK$1,414.1 million) attributable mainly to the
increase in orders for some of the Group’'s specialized electronic
products. Gross profit rose by 3.38% to approximately HK$231.1
million (FY2016/17: HK$223.6 million) and gross profit margin was
15.3%, which was similar to that in the previous year (FY2016/17:
15.8%), the slight decrease was mainly from appreciation of the RMB
pushing up some costs during the year.

Profit attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$74.1 million
(FY2016/17. HK$61.7 million), representing an increase of 20.03%
against the previous year. Net profit margin was 4.9% (FY2016/17:
4.4%) and basic earnings per share were HK26.29 cents (FY2016/17:
HK22.12 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have proposed to pay a final dividend of HK8.0 cents
per share (FY2016/17: HK8.0 cents per share) to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Shareholders of the Company as at
14 August 2018. Together with the interim dividend of HK7.0 cents per
share already paid, total dividend for the year would be HK15.0 cents
per share (FY2016/17: HK15.0 cents per share). Subject to approval by
shareholders at the 2018 Annual General Meeting, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or before 23 August 2018.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year under review, the Group started to restructure its
business segments. In the past few years, the Group has been actively
developing new businesses. To better reflect its business direction,
from this financial year onward, the pet-related business is taken as
an independent business segment in the calculation of turnover of
the Group. The move can reflect more clearly the performance of the
segment.

Electronic Products

This business segment generated stable revenue and strong cash
flow for the Group. Segmental revenue for the year amounted to
HK$1,180.2 million, slightly down by 0.5% from HK$1,186.0 million in
the previous year, making up 78.13% of the Group’s total revenue.

The business performance of most core products remained stable,
with telephones for the hearing impaired elderly and communication
products from Japanese clients affording relatively more satisfactory
results. During the year, the Group stepped up intellectualization of its
electronic products by combining Internet of Things (IoT) technology
with
responded particularly well to the move and more customers wanted

its products. Customers of professional audio equipment
to upgrade their products to meet consumers’ need. SUGA has
developed and turned professional audio equipment into one of its
core products in recent years and built a solid customer base. We
look forward to attracting more potential customers and generating
yet more satisfactory revenue for the Group.

In addition, the Group together with a Japanese customer launched the
new loT smart environment monitoring system business and produced
loT educational products for another customer during the year under
review. The income brought in by those businesses constituted only
a small portion of the Group’s total, but the SUGA team was able to
gain more knowledge about loT products in the R&D and production
processes, thus laid the foundation vital for it to apply related
technologies in other types of product.
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Pet Business
The pet business recorded revenue of HK$330.4 million, accounting
for 21.87% of the Group’s total revenue.

SUGA has kept looking for opportunities to diversify its business, so as
to create value for its shareholders. Building on the solid foundation
of its electronic business, the Group has strived to enter the potential-
rich pet product market in Hong Kong and mainland China in recent
years. By integrating loT technology into this business, the Group has
developed an innovative ecosystem for pet health.

The Group has been producing and embarking on R&D of pet training
devices for over 20 years and the products were grouped all along
under the electronic product segment. However, with the Group
having decided a few years ago to tap the pet product markets in
Hong Kong and mainland China, the management considered it the
right time for the pet business to stand independent, so as to make
it easier for shareholders to understand its development. At the same
time, the Group has already put all pet-related business under a wholly
owned subsidiary called “WePet International Holdings Limited”.

During the year under review, pet training devices, which were
the major income source of the pet business segment, performed
satisfactorily. The Group’s own “Brabanconne” pet food brand was
officially launched in Hong Kong and mainland China in March 2017
and started to bring in income for the Group. During the year, the
Group focused on building online and offline sales network in first-tier
cities in mainland China and actively participated in pet shows in major
Chinese cities. It will continue to enhance marketing and promotion of
“Brabanconne”, with the hope of reaching more potential pet owners
and let them understand the benefits that the products can bring to
their pets.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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AWARDS

I am honoured to have received the “Hong Kong Electronics Industry
Outstanding Achievement Award” from the Hong Kong Electronics
Industry Council (HKEIC) in April 2018. The award, for SUGA,
recognises it as an industry pioneer. Since its inception, SUGA has
taken it upon itself to create value for the society with technology.
In the past decade or so and in the capacities of Chairman of HKEIC
and the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association, | am glad to have
witnessed the rapid development of the electronics industry in Hong
Kong. Looking ahead, | will continue to promote development of the
industry and at the same time bring into the Group world-leading
electronic technology and know-how.

PROSPECTS

In 2018, the global market remains cautiously optimistic about its
outlook in general. However, uncertainties loom in the macroeconomic
environment, including tightening liquidity in financial markets
worldwide, the rise of protectionism, growing geo-political tension,
etc. SUGA will continue to work closely with business partners,
speed up intellectualization of products so as to strengthen its

competitiveness for driving business development.

The Group expects its core electronic product business to maintain
steady development. New features are going to be added to the new
generation telephones for the hearing impaired developed by SUGA
and a business partner to give yet greater convenience to their users.
We hope to bring better quality of living to the elderly. Furthermore,
SUGA has kept enhancing the capability of its R&D team in recent
years, and spotting the potential of IoT, has incorporated related
elements into its products, enabling them to connect with the internet.
With loT having wide applications, SUGA has been exploring relevant
opportunities to cooperate with potential customers. We expect to
secure more new customers in the area in the near future and see
the product portfolio of the Group’s core electronic product business
expand.
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Regarding the pet business, it has pet training devices as a good
foundation to build on, and SUGA’'s own brand “Brabanconne” pet
food was launched in Hong Kong and mainland China. The Group has
established online and offline sales networks in first-tier mainland cities
such as Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Guangzhou, supported by
more than 150 distributors. We will continue to allocate resources to
increase promotion. Apart from participating in the pet exhibitions in
major mainland cities, we will also take part in the large international
exhibitions. Our “Brabanconne” products have already captured the
eyes of overseas companies, recognising the brand’s philosophy of
tailoring products to meet the nutritional needs of pets in Asia. SUGA
had also set up a branch office with business partner in Japan in the
year under review to help take “Brabanconne” and PETBLE®, SUGA’s
proprietary smart pet products, to the Japan market.

SUGA has worked hard to establish a comprehensive pet health
ecosystem encompassing both online and offline operations. Apart
from tailoring food healthy for pets and smart pet products, the
Group is also collaborating with renowned education institutions to
launch pet health programs. SUGA is working with the Huazhong
Agricultural University Veterinary Teaching Hospital on research, with
“Brabanconne” and PETBLE® products as base, to monitor the health
of different types of pets. The study will provide scientific data to
SUGA and bring positive impact on the entire pet health ecosystem.

Regarding the land where our former Huizhou plant stood, the
application to change its purpose to commercial and residential use
is still in progress. Huizhou is one of the nine cities in Guangdong
Province within the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area. The cities in Greater Bay Area are all within about an hour’s
travelling time among one another, meaning residents in those cities
can have closer exchange — be it in work, employment and living
in the future. As such, the Group believes the parcel of land it has
in Huizhou has great value and it will handle it in the best way. The
Group is in a net cash position now with capital sufficient to support
future developments. The management thus has full confidence in the
Group's long-term business prospect.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank our customers, business
partners and shareholders for their trust and support. My heartfelt
appreciation also goes to the management team and our staff for their
hard work in the past year.

Ng Chi Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$1,510.5 million (FY2016/2017: HK$1,414.1 million), representing
an increase of 6.82% as compared with last year. The Group's profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$74.1 million
(2017: HK$61.7 million), representing an increase of HK$12.4 million
or 20.03% comparing to last year.

Geographically, for the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue generated
from the top 3 countries, the United States of America, Japan and
PRC (including Hong Kong) accounted for 75.4% of the Group’s total
sales (FY2016/2017: 74.0%).

During the fiscal year, gross profit margin was slightly decreased from
15.8% to 15.3%. The decrease is primarily due to the continuing
appreciation of the Renminbi during the year pushing up some of
the production costs. Gross profit for the year increased 3.38% to
HK$231.1 million (FY2016/2017: HK$223.6 million).

Operating profit was HK$82.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 (FY2016/2017: HK$61.7 million). Distribution and selling expenses
increased by HK$4.5 million mainly due to increase in staff costs
and the promotion expenses of the Group’s pet related products.
General and administrative expenses decreased HK$0.7 million mainly
attributable to the net effect of decrease in depreciation expenses,
increase in employee benefit expenses, and reversal of provision for
impairment of loan receivable.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has recorded a net
finance costs of HK$1.0 million (FY2016/2017: net finance income of
HK$3.2 million). The change from net finance income to net finance
costs was due to less overdue interest received from customers and the
hike of bank loan interest rate during the year. Details of the finance
(cost)/income for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are set out
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Executive
Directors of the Group (collectively referred to as the “CODM") that
make strategic decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of
the Group in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

During the year, the Executive Directors reviewed the segmentation
of the Group’s internal reporting, considered the business from a
product perspective and assessed separately the performance of i)
Electronic products; and ii) Pet related products. This segmentation
is different from the last annual consolidated financial statements.
The comparative segment information for the year ended 31 March
2017 has been reclassified to align with the presentation of the latest
segment information disclosure as a result of change in the CODM’s
review on the Group's performance and resources.

Electronic products

Revenue from electronic products segment recorded approximately
HK$1,180.2 million (FY2016/2017: HK$1,186.0 million), representing
78.13% of the Group’s total revenue. During the year the contribution
from interactive educational products was minimal but performance
from other products of this segment were satisfactory and had picked
up the revenue drop of interactive educational products. Revenue from
this segment was slightly down by 0.5% as compared to last year.
Major products of this segment are: i) telephones for hearing impaired;
ii) telecommunication products; iii) general household consumer
appliances; and iv) professional audio equipment. Business performance
of these major products remained stable, with telephones for hearing
impaired and telecommunication achieved satisfactory growth.

Pet related products

Revenue from pet related products segment recorded approximately
HK$330.4 million (FY2016/2017: HK$228.1
21.87% of the Group’s total revenue and an increase of HK$102.3

million), representing
million or 44.8% compared with last year. The increase is attributed
by the outstanding performance of pet training devices, which is
the major income source of this segment. The other products of this
segment are the Group’s own “Brabanconne” pet food brand and
PETBLE®, Suga’s proprietary smart pet products.

EEEBRRE D

X EE
TELERRARBERIEHRBERE ZALE
MATEFUTHBIETELERRAD - £
BEERRABRASEATREAFHERR
MABLEIR °

FA - ATESEHASEASERZ D
REMAEEREBLBIFEIEFER &
NEMEBEERMNWRIR - O FAEAKRER N L
—DEFEEFAMBHRE -BE_FT—LF=A
=t-BLEFEZUBSMEHNCEN OE
MU EREZLERRAHAEEXRARE
ReEZHNESMEFLROINOBERTEZZ
bI] o

BEFfEMm

KB ETFE D &0 A I 2= $215 £91,180,200,000
ERCZE XN/ ZE-LtEHHEFE:
1,186,000,000/& 7T) » 15 AR EE B 2£78.13% °
FA EEHBEMNBEBGH  BoHE
MWERNRRES  EUARGEIHEERD
W E BRIR o REB UL D AU S BR A F BT B
05% - WA MHEEERE ) BEEHE )@
AER: ) —"RMXEHBEER Rivy) BXEE
BM ZEXITZEMNEBRAEFTER M
EEEELBAELRSSHEZEENEER -

EVHBAER
REEDHBEERY BN = ESE L
330,400,000 T(ZE— A~/ =T —t & H
I 4 JZ : 228,100,000 7T) © 15 A & B 4 g
#@21.87% * & K& 4 & 0102,300,0007% JT 3k
44.8% ° HIBTRA I » EE E WA RIRED
IHmEEMNBEREA - WO HEMERAEAS
EEREYEmmE Sl REEEEE kK
ZE W) EE ShPETBLE® -

FEEBBREBEGRAE 2017/18F & 17



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERR D

Suga is now establishing a comprehensive pet health ecosystem
encompassing both on line and offline operations. Suga’s own brand
“Brabanconne” pet food, which are manufactured in Belgium and its
formula tailored for pets in Asia, was launched in Hong Kong and
mainland China last year and have already captured the eyes of pet
owners.

Suga will continue to allocate more resources to increase promotion of
our own brand products, including participating in the pet exhibitions
in major mainland cities and other large international exhibitions.

The Group is also collaborating with Huazhong Agriculture University
Veterinary Teaching Hospital on research to monitor the health of
different types of pets, which will provide scientific data to Suga and
bring positive impact on the entire pet health ecosystem.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the current assets and current liabilities of
the Group were approximately HK$690.3 million (31 March 2017:
HK$662.1 million) and approximately HK$329.3 million (31 March
2017: HK$360.1
calculated as current assets over current liabilities, was 2.10 times as
at 31 March 2018, as compared to that of 1.84 times as at 31 March
2017.

million) respectively. The liquidity ratio, which is

The Group generally finances its operations by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong. Banking facilities used by the Group include revolving
loans, trust receipt loans, overdrafts, leasing and term loans, which
are primarily on floating interest rates basis. As at 31 March 2018,
the Group maintained cash and bank balances at approximately
HK$165.1 million (31 March 2017: 223.9 million), the decrease in cash
and bank balances was mainly due to repayment of long-term bank
loans and operating cash outflow for expanding pet related business.
The Group’s bank borrowings were HK$68.9 million as at 31 March
2018 (31 March 2017: HK$115.0 million). Gearing ratio, expressed as
a percentage of total bank borrowings over total equity, was 9.4%
(31 March 2017: 17.2%). The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due
to repayment of long-term bank loans during the year. The Group was
able to maintain a net cash balance, which is calculated by total cash
and bank balances less total bank borrowings, of HK$96.2 million as
at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: HK$108.9 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s total assets and total liabilities as at 31 March 2018
amounted to approximately HK$1,065.2 million (31 March 2017:
HK$1,037.7 million) and HK$333.6 million (31 March 2017: HK$367.2
million) respectively. The debt ratio, which is calculated based on
total liabilities over total assets, was approximately 0.31 times as at
31 March 2018, as compared to that of approximately 0.35 times as
at 31 March 2017.

The net asset value of the Group increased from HK$670.5 million as
at 31 March 2017 to HK$731.6 million as at 31 March 2018.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$681.5 million (31 March 2017: HK$686.5 million)
from its principal bankers for overdrafts, loans and trade financing,
with unused facilities of HK$547.5 million (31 March 2017: HK$566.1
million).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's total capital expenditures for the year under review were
HK$17.2 million. The capital expenditures were mainly for the additions
of machineries and equipment for PRC production plants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is not subject to material foreign currency exposure since
its operations are mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars. The Group considers there is no significant
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations for United States dollars as
long as the Hong Kong-United States dollar exchange rate remains

pegged.

During the year, the Group entered into several foreign exchange
contracts to manage the currency translation risk of Renminbi against
United States dollars. All these foreign exchange contracts were for
managing purpose and it is the policy of the Group not to enter into
any derivative contracts purely for speculative activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group pledged its office premise located
at 22nd floor, tower B, Billion Centre, Kowloon Bay together with 4
car parking spaces to secure a bank mortgage loan of HK$6.7 million
(31 March 2017: HK$9.6 million) for financing the acquisition of the
office premise and car parking spaces. Other than the said mortgage
loan, the Group did not pledge any of its assets as securities for the
banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a capital commitment of

HK$1.8 million for the construction contract and property, plant and
equipment (31 March 2017: HK$3.1 million).

Corporate guarantees given to banks to secure the borrowings granted
to subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$68.9 million
(31 March 2017: HK$115.0 million) and the Group did not have any
significant contingent liability.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018 the Group has approximately 2,057 employees,
of which 78 were based in Hong Kong and Macao while the rest were
mainly in Mainland China. Remuneration policy was reviewed regularly,
making reference to current legislation, market condition and both
the individual and company performance. In addition to salaries and
other usual benefits like annual leave, medical insurance and various
mandatory pension schemes, the Group also provides educational
sponsorship subsidies, discretionary performance bonus and share
options. A new share option scheme was adopted on 6 August 2012
which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the adoption
date, detailed of which are specified in the Section “Share Option
Scheme” on page 49 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENRSREEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. NG Chi Ho, aged 68 is the founder, chairman and managing
director and chairman of the corporate governance committee of the
Group. He is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy,
strategic planning and development, and overall management of the
Group. Dr. NG has over 41 years of management experience in the
electronics industry and had been teaching electronic engineering
at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University for 4 years. Dr. NG holds
a bachelor degree in science from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a master of philosophy degree in computer engineering from
the University of Hong Kong, and an honorary doctor of engineering
degree from Lincoln University, USA. Dr. NG is a chartered engineer, a
fellow of the Institution of Engineering and Technology, UK, a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and an honorary fellow of the
Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration.

In addition, Dr. NG is a partner of Hong Kong-Shenzhen United
Investment Foundation, an advisor of the Technology Development
Committee of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, an expert of the
Electronics Expert Panel, as well the Evaluation Panel for Soft-landing
Program of HK Science and Technology Park, he is chairman of Hong
Kong Electronic Industries Association, honorary chairman of Hong
Kong Electronics Industries Council and vice chairman of Dongguan
Electronic Industries Association. Dr. NG is a member of the Advisory
Committee on Electronic Engineering and the School of Biomedical
Sciences of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also the
Assessment Panel Member under the Innovation and Technology Fund,
Innovation and Technology Commission, HKSAR Government.

On community services, Dr. NG is chairman of Sir Cecil Clementi
Scholarship Foundation under Education Bureau, HKSAR Government,
and a director of Hok Hoi Library.

Dr. NG has received the “Hong Kong Electronics Industry Outstanding
Achievement Award” from the Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council
in recognition of his active promotion of the development of the
electronics industry and his substantial contributions to the Hong Kong
economy and the local electronics industry in 2018.

Dr. NG is the father of Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, the executive
director of the Group and Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, the chief
executive officer of the pet business group of the Group and the
brother-in-law of Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, the chief financial officer
of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Mr. MA Fung On, aged 60, is the deputy chairman and a member
of the corporate governance committee of the Group. Mr. MA is
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall strategic planning
and policies, as well as overseeing the personnel, administration and
logistics of the Group. Mr. MA has worked with the Group for more
than 25 years and has over 36 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a higher diploma in electronic engineering and was conferred as
a Fellowship of Social Enterprise Research Academy. Mr. MA s vice
chairman of The Hong Kong Enterprises Association of Dongguan
Qingxi and vice chairman of Dongguan Photoelectric Communication
Industry Association.

Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, aged 37, is the chief technology
officer of the Group. He is responsible for exploring new business
opportunities and overseeing Research and Development (R&D) of
the Group. Dr. NG joined the Group in 2014 and Dr. NG holds
Bachelor of Engineering (BEng (1st Hon.)) degree in Computing from
Imperial College London, Master of Science (5.M.) and Doctor of
Philosophy (Ph.D) degrees in Electrical Engineering and Computer
Science from Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT). His research
focuses on modular hardware design methodologies that can greatly
reduce hardware development time. During his time at MIT, he had
collaborated with IBM, Nokia and Qualcomm in various research
projects. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. NG worked at Qualcomm’s
New Jersey Research Center for 3 years. He is the son of Dr. NG Chi
Ho, the chairman and managing director of the Group, the nephew
of Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, the chief financial officer of the Group
and the brother of Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, the chief executive
officer of the pet business group of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENRSREEAERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Kam Hung, aged 60, is a non-executive director of the
Group. He holds a master degree in engineering business management
from the University of Warwick in the UK. Mr. LEE is the founder,
CEO of Kolinker Group of companies since its inception in 1983. In
addition, Mr. LEE is the fellow member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers, Vice President of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council
Foundation Limited, Assessment Panel member of Small Entrepreneur
Research Assistance Programme (SERAP) Innovation & Technology
Fund, member of Enterprise Support Scheme (ESS) Assessment
Panel, executive committee member of Electronics Industry Council
in Federation of Hong Kong Industries. He is also an honorary life
vice president of Poly U Development Foundation and Chairman of
Advisory Committee on Applied Physics of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEUNG Yu Ming, Steven, aged 59, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group and a member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Group.
Mr. LEUNG holds a master degree in accounting from Charles Sturt
University in Australia and a bachelor degree in social science from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is an associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a
practising certified accountant of CPA Australia and a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong respectively. Mr. LEUNG is also a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG previously worked in Nomura
International (Hong Kong) Limited as an assistant vice president in
the International Finance and Corporate Finance Department. He
commenced public practice in auditing and taxation since 1990. He
is now the senior partner of a certified public accountants firm. Mr.
LEUNG has over 33 years of experience in assurance, accounting,
taxation, financial management and corporate finance. Mr. LEUNG
is also an independent non-executive director of C C Land Holdings
Limited, The Cross Harbour (Holdings) Limited, Y.T. Realty Group
Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Mr. CHAN Kit Wang, aged 65, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group and a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Group. Mr. CHAN
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1977 with
a higher diploma in accountancy. Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is now
a senior partner of a certified public accountants firm. Mr. CHAN
has over 41 years of working experience in accounting, auditing and
taxation.

Dr. CHEUNG Nim Kwan, aged 70, is an independent non-executive
director of the Group and a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Group. He was Chief
Executive Officer of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute (ASTRI), a 500-member R&D organization in the
information and communications area established by the Hong Kong
SAR Government. He has founded and served as the inaugural director
of the National Engineering Research Centre for Application Specific
Integrated Circuit Systems, the first National Engineering Centre
established in Hong Kong. Prior to joining ASTRI, Dr. CHEUNG has
held different research and senior management positions at AT&T Bell
Labs, Bellcore, and Telcordia Technologies. He is a Telcordia Fellow
and a Fellow of IEEE. Dr. CHEUNG served as the 18th President of the
IEEE Communications Society, a global professional organization with
45,000 members in 180 chapters around the world. He was Editor-
in-Chief of the IEEE Communications Magazine, and was appointed
Chairman of the IEEE Fellow Committee in 2012—-13, where he presided
over the selection of all new IEEE Fellows worldwide. Dr. CHEUNG is
an Honorary Professor of the Chinese University of Hong Kong and has
served as Consulting Professor at Stanford University and in Research
Grants Council in Hong Kong. Dr. CHEUNG received his B.Sc. degree
from the University of Hong Kong, and M.S. and Ph.D. degrees from
the California Institute of Technology.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, aged 60, is the chief financial officer of
the Group. Mr. LEE is responsible for overseeing the corporate and
financial matters of the Group. Mr. Lee is a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. He is also an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LEE joined
the Group in early 2005 and has over 38 years of experience in
corporate finance, accounting and auditing. Before joining the Group,
he worked for a blue chip listed company in Hong Kong for 18 years
in a senior executive position. Mr. LEE graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in accountancy. Mr. LEE
is the brother-in law of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Group and the uncle of Dr. NG man Cheuk, Alfred,
the Executive Director of the Group and Mr. Ng Man Chun, Anthony,
the chief executive officer of the pet business group of the Group.

Ms. WONG Sin, Kathy, aged 48, is the general manager of electronic
manufacturing service (“EMS”) division of the Group and is responsible
for overseeing the operations of Block A, Dongguan factory. Ms.
WONG holds an EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, China. She
joined the Group in 2002 and has over 25 years of experience in the
electronics manufacturing industry.

Mr. TENG Boon Han, Eric, aged 40, is the general manager of EMS
and pet training products divisions and is responsible for the overall
operations including programme management, order management,
supply chain management, product development and manufacturing
in Block B, Dongguan factory. Mr. TENG holds a bachelor degree of
Business Administration in Finance and Economics from University of
New Brunswick, Canada. He joined the Group in 2007. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. TENG worked for global IT and telecommunication
companies. He has had international working exposure in the USA,
Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand within those companies.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Mr. FUNG Chi Leung, Mark, aged 54, is the general manager of the
marketing division. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. FUNG joined the Group in 2010
and has over 32 years of working experience in electronics sales and
marketing.

Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, aged 35, is the chief executive
officer of the pet business group of the Group. Since joining the
Group in 2010, Mr. NG has been responsible for developing the pet
business and managing the wholesale and the retail pet business in
Hong Kong and mainland China. Mr. NG has also been involving in
the development of the smart pet products for the Group. Mr. NG
holds Bachelor of Science degree in Robotics from The Staffordshire
University, Postgraduate Diploma in Computer Science from The
University of Birmingham and Master of Business Administration from
The University of Wales, Newport. Mr. NG has accumulated experience
on pet business in last 8 years. He is the son of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the
chairman and managing director of the Group, the brother of Dr.
NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, the executive director of the Group and the
nephew of Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, the chief financial officer of the
Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management of Suga
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are committed to
attain and uphold a high standard of corporate governance that
properly protect and promote the interests of its shareholders and
other stakeholders including customers, suppliers, employees and the
general public.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for CG Code A.2.1.

CG Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Up to the date of this report, the Group does
not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Dr.
Ng Chi Ho currently holds both positions. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in
the development and execution of long-term business strategies. Going
forward, the Group will periodically review the effectiveness of this
arrangement and considers appointing an individual as Chief Executive
Officer when it thinks appropriate.

Save as the above-mentioned deviation, none of the directors of the
Company is aware of information that would reasonably indicate the
Company is not or was not in compliance with the CG Code for the
year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Group’s overall management is vested in its board of directors,
which now comprises seven members, coming from diverse businesses
and professional backgrounds. The Board consisted of three executive
directors, Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman and Managing Director), Mr. Ma
Fung On (Deputy Chairman) and Dr. Ng Man Cheuk, one non-executive
director, Mr. Lee Kam Hung and three independent non-executive
directors ('INED’), Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan (collectively the ‘Directors’).

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the group’s
business and affairs; to review the Group’s financial performance; to
review the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control;
to approve the strategic plans, investment and funding decision. For
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the financial reporting accountability, the Board has the ultimate
responsibility for preparing the financial statements. The day-to-day
management is conducted by senior management and employees
of the Group, under the direction and supervision of the Directors.
When the Directors are aware of any events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, such events or conditions will be clearly set out and discussed
in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs among whom
one has to have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related finance management expertise. The role of INED is to
bring an independent and objective view to the Board’s deliberations
and decisions. The Company has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

All non-executive directors (including INEDs) have been appointed
for a term of one year and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and
Listing Rules at each annual general meeting. Save as disclosed in the
biographical details of each director, there is no other relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) among members of the Board.

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies. The Board is supplied with
relevant information by the senior management pertaining to matters
to be brought before the Board for decision as well as reports relating
to operational and financial performance of the Group before each
regular board meeting. At least 14 days' notice of a regular board
meeting is given to all directors to give them the opportunity to attend.
Board papers are dispatched to the directors at least three days before
the meeting to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
papers and be adequately prepared for the meeting.

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and its subsidiaries, setting appropriate
policies and reviewing the effectiveness of such controls. Risk
management and internal control are defined as a process effected

by the Board, management and other personnel, designed to manage
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable, not absolute assurance of the
following:

—  effectiveness and efficiency operations

— reliability of financial reporting

—  compliance with applicable laws and regulations

—  effectiveness of risk management functions

The Board conducted a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2018 including the consideration of the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget. The Board assessed the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems by considering reviews
performed by the Audit Committee, executive management and the
independent auditors’ management letters, if any, and is satisfied that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
functioning properly.

Four regular meetings of the Board and one Annual General Meeting
were held during the year. The attendance of each director at the
meeting is set out as follows:
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Board meeting

Name of directors

Executive Directors BTES

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) REXBL(EE)
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) BEREE(BEE)
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk RERFEL
Non-Executive director EHTES

Mr. Lee Kam Hung R M T A
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHITES

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHEE

Mr. Chan Kit Wang PBRAN R ST £

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan oR 2 1E £

ESEER
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4/4 11
4/4 11
4/4 11
4/4 11
4/4 11
4/4 11
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Based on the training records provided to the Company by the
directors, the directors have participated in the following training
during the year:

Directors

EEHEN
BEEEASATRGZEIDG R E
F2 2R T

Attended training courses,

seminars, workshops,

in-house briefs
HEZINRE - g

T  AREHE

Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) RaxEL(FE) v

Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) BELREEEEE) v

Dr. Ng Man Cheuk REEB T v

Non-Executive Director EHITES

Mr. Lee Kam Hung IR IS A v

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHTES

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFEHELE v

Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRAN R e & v

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan ok A R E v
DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES EERSHABMEEXRMREE

INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,

charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the
execution of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the

Company has arranged insurance cover for this purpose.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The board has established four committees and has delegated various
responsibilities to the committees including the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
(the
Committee”) and the corporate governance committee (the “Corporate

Committee”), the nomination committee “Nomination
Governance Committee”). All the Board Committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company’s expense.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs who are Mr. Leung Yu
Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan. The
composition and members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven.

The Audit Committee meetings are held not less than twice a year to
review and discuss the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, to review the Group's interim and annual financial
statements, and also monitor the appointment and function of the
Group's independent auditors. Additional meetings may also be held
by the Committee from time to time to discuss special projects or
other issues of which the Audit Committee considers necessary. The
Committee’s authority and duties are set out in written terms of
reference and are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Member of Audit Committee
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Meeting attended

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHEE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRANR ST E
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan SR S R iE £

During the vyear, the Audit Committee reviewed the fiscal year
2016/2017 annual report and fiscal year 2017/2018 interim report,
including the accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group,
reviewed and discussed the financial results and risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, conducted discussions with the
independent auditors on financial reporting, compliance, and reported
all relevant matters to the Board.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the fiscal year 2017/2018
annual report in a meeting held on 22 June 2018.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs and is currently
chaired by Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven. No director or senior executive
will be involved in any discussion in connection with his own
remuneration. The meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall
normally be held not less than once a year.

The Company has adopted a model where the Remuneration
Committee performs an advisory role to the Board, with the Board
retaining the final authority to approve the remuneration of executive
directors and senior management.

The Committee’s principal responsibilities are to make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration structure. It also
reviews and guides the formulation of the Group’s performance related
pay schemes. Term of reference which described the authorities and
duties of the Remuneration Committee are publicly available on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the
contents of which are in compliance with the CG Code.

During the year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Member of the Remuneration Committee
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BI R BB T -

Meeting attended

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFEHEE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRAN AR R &
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan o A HE

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors, non-executive director, the INEDs, and
senior management; and reviewed the bonus to senior management.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the remuneration of the members
of the senior management by band is set out below:

FHsEEGET)

Remuneration bands (HKS)

HK$0 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000

Further particulars regarding director’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 35 & 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs who are Mr. Leung
Yu Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan. The
Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Leung Yu Ming,
Steven.

The meeting of the Nomination Committee shall normally be held not
less than once a year. The Committee will identify qualified candidates
to fill the Board membership whenever such vacancy arises. It will
nominate such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly
review the composition of the Board as well as make suggestions as
to any change that may be required. The Committee’s authority and
duties are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year. Details
of individual attendance of its members are set out in the table below:

Member of the Nomination Committee
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Meeting attended
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Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHIE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRANESTE
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan il
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During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board; make recommendations to the
Board on appointment of directors after considering their qualifications
and experience in relevant industries and re-election of the directors
subject to retirement by rotation under the bye-laws at the 2018
annual general meeting and assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors according to the independence

requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, (a) having served
the Company for more than nine years could be relevant to the
determination of an INED’s independence; and (b) if an INED has served
more than nine years, his further appointment should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Notwithstanding that Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven has served as an
INED for more than nine years since 27 September 2004, the Board is
of the view that his independence is not affected by his long service
with the Company. Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven meets the independence
guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. He is independent
of the management and free from any business or other relationship or
circumstances which would materially interfere with the exercise of his
independent judgment. Hence, the Board considered Mr. Leung Yu Ming
Steven as independent and recommended the re-election of Mr. Leung
Yu Ming Steven as an independent non-executive Director at the AGM.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in August, 2013. The
policy sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company considered diversity of board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board developed measurable objectives to implement the board
diversity policy, where selection of candidates will be based on the
range of diversity perspectives as set out above, and the ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate will bring to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporate Governance Committee of the Company was
established on 21 February 2012. As at the date of this annual report,
the Corporate Governance Committee comprised of two executive
directors, namely Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) and Mr. Ma Fung On.

The role and main function of the Corporate Governance Committee
is to assist the Board in developing and reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance which are applicable to the Group
and making recommendations to the Board.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee
(e) for the time
being in force. The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance

include the duties set out in Code Provision D.3.1. (a) to

Committee are available on the website of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the
year. The attendance at this meeting is as follows:

Member of the Corporate Governance

Committee
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Meeting attended

REREL
FEaREE

Dr. Ng Chi Ho
Mr. Ma Fung On

During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed
and discussed the new requirements of the Corporate Governance
Code of the Listing Rules and reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. The Company made specific enquiry of all
directors as to whether they complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code regarding their securities transactions. It was
confirmed that there was full compliance. The relevant employee who,
because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in possession of
inside information, have been requested to comply with the provisions
of the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. The finance department of
the Company is taken charge by the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. With the assistance of the finance department, the Directors
ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations and
applicable accounting principles.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Group's independent auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC").
The financial reporting responsibilities of the independent auditors are
set out on page 93 to 95 of this annual report.

During the year, remuneration of approximately HK$2,800,000 was
payable to PwC for the provision of audit services. In addition,
approximately HK$263,000 was payable to PwC for other non-audit
services. The non-audit services mainly consist of tax compliance and
other services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zeng Zhi is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board
procedures are followed and the Board activities are efficiently and
effectively conducted. She is also responsible for ensuring that the
Board is briefed on relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments. During the year, Ms. Zeng have duly
complied with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility in establishing
an appropriate risk management and internal control systems, and
reviewing their effectiveness regularly. The systems include a defined
management structure with limits of authority to safeguard its assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; to ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

information for management use or for publication and to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage the risks of failure in the Group's
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s objectives.

Management is responsible in the design and implementation of the
risk management and internal control systems. A Risk Management
Committee was established to monitor the operations of risk
management and internal control systems and provide confirmation to
the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the systems regularly.

Risk Management

The purpose of risk management is to ensure that the risks to the
Group are identified, analyzed, and managed at an acceptable level. In
order to provide a sound and effective risk management system, a Risk
Management Manual is established to specify the Risk Management
Framework and Risk Management Processes.

The Risk Management Framework outlines the responsibilities of the
Board, the senior management, the Audit Committee, the Internal
Audit and the Risk Management Committee. The Board, through its
risk oversight role, ensures that the senior management establishes risk
management policies to identify and evaluate risks. Each subsidiary/
division implements such policies and processes in the daily operations
and reports significant risks identified to the senior management promptly
and regularly. The senior management and Risk Management Committee
will communicate the risk management findings to the Audit Committee
and the Board for their assessment of the effectiveness of the relevant

risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Risk Management Processes including the followings:

1. Risk Identification — each subsidiary or division to identify its
own risks.

2. Risk Analysis — analyze the identified risks for potential impact
and likelihood of occurrence.
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3. Risk Register — the likelihood of occurrence and impacts of
identified risks are defined. The top risks are identified according
to the rating obtained from risk assessment and documented
in a risk register. Each operating subsidiary/division records the
risk events occurred in the risk register and the action taken to
reduce the impact of the risk to the Group.

4. Risk Mitigation — identify the existing controls over the relevant
risks to avoid, reduce or transfer the risks, or to accept the
identified risks with low impact or likelihood.

5. Risk Confirmation — the process of confirmation to the Risk
Management Committee, Audit Committee and the Board by the
management of the completion of the risk monitoring process
and report the risks occurred, if any, during the review period
that have significant impact to the Group.

Internal Control and Internal Audit

The Group has established systems of internal control to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliabilities of financial
and management reporting, compliances of laws and regulations
and safeguarding of assets. The system of internal control provides
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses
or frauds.

Suga has an Internal Audit function. Internal Audit reviews material
internal control aspects of the Group, including financial, operational
and compliance controls as well as risk management.

Internal Audit carries out audit in accordance with audit plan that is
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. In addition to the
approved internal audit schedule, Internal Audit may conduct other
review and investigation for the Group’s business on an ad hoc basis
as and when necessary.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Group Internal
Audit Department conducted audits and issued internal audit reports
to management covering various operational and finance functions of
the Group. The half-yearly internal audit reports and its findings were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a half-yearly basis.
Relevant findings and recommendations reported by the Internal Audit
were communicated with the management and actions were taken to
resolve defects as and when identified. There is no material internal
control defects identified during the year.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
effectiveness

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness and adequacy
of the risk management and internal control systems by reviewing
the work performed by the Audit Committee, Risk Management
Committee and the Internal Audit Department for the financial year
ended 31
including operational, financial and compliance control, and risk

March 2018. The review covered all material controls,

management functions. The scope and the quality of ongoing
monitoring of risks and internal control systems have been assessed.

Dissemination of inside information

The Company conducts its business affairs according to the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Future
Commission. The Company strictly prohibits the unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information by Directors, employees and other
relevant persons (such as external service providers and project working
team members).

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. In order to ensure the market, shareholders and
stakeholders are fully and promptly informed about the material
developments in the Company’s business, the Board has adopted
continuous disclosure policy and procedures to handle proper
information disclosure. Release of inside information is subject to the
approval of the Board. All staff of the Company shall not communicate
inside information to any external parties unless with approval from
the Board. As such, staff shall not respond to market speculation
and rumours unless authorised. In addition, all external presentation
materials or publications must be pre-vetted before released.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems are functioning effectively and adequately.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND

INVESTOR RELATIONS
The Board
communications with shareholders. In order to develop and maintain

recognises the importance of maintaining effective
continuing relationship with the shareholders of the Company, the
Company established various channels to facilitate and enhance
communication:

(i)  the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for the
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board;

(i) publication of announcements and circulars on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii)  publication of financial statements containing a summary of the

financial information and affairs of the Group for the interim

and full financial year via the websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company;

interim reports, annual reports and circulars that are sent to all
shareholders;

(v)  notices of and explanatory notes for general meetings; and

the management of the Group continually conducts meetings
with investors, analysts and the media, and provides them
with up-to-date and comprehensive information regarding the

Company's development and answers to their queries.

The Company also maintains a website at www.suga.com.hk, where
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information and news can always be found.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the contact details as follows:

Address: 22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre,
1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: 2953 1523

Email: investorrelations@suga.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general meeting and

put forward proposals at general meeting. The procedures are as

follows:

(A)

(B)

Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General

Meeting

In accordance with Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, shall have the right to convene a
special general meeting of the Company. If the directors do not
within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists
representing more than one half of the total voting rights may
themselves convene a meeting.

The written requisition for the special general meeting can be
lodged at the Company'’s principal office in Hong Kong at 22nd
Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at

General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders may,
at their expense, provide a written request to the attention of
the Company Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for the shareholders to propose a person for
election of a director at an annual general meeting is available
for viewing at the Company’s website at www.suga.com.hk.

The above procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the
Company and applicable legislation and regulation.

Besides, the updated memorandum of association and bye-laws
of the Company has been posted on the website of the Company
at www.suga.com.hk and the designated website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together,
2018.

“the Group”) for the year ended 31 March

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal
in the
manufacture and sale of electronic products and pet related products.

subsidiaries are engaged research and development,
Details of the principal activities of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by reporting and
geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and discussion
on the Group's prospects, as well as discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance during the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
material factors underlying its financial performance are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 9 to 14, “Management Discussion
“Environmental, Social and

and Analysis” on pages 16 to 20 and

Governance Report” on pages 64 to 88 of this annual report.

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
is facing is provided in the section of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems in “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29 to
43. Additionally, the financial risk management objectives and policies
of the Company can be found in note 3 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no important event
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year ended 31 March 2018.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

SUGA's commitment to excellence extends to the Group conducting
its business in a manner that respects the environment. The strive
for cleaner production has led SUGA to adopt energy conservation
practices that can reduce environmental risks and liabilities as well
as improve competitiveness. Details of environment policy and

performance are set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance

Report” on pages 64 to 88 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has established procedures to ensure its operations comply
with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board of Directors is
responsible for monitoring the Group’s policies and practices making
sure they agree with relevant legal and regulatory requirements, and
that those policies and practices are regularly reviewed for adequacy.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
as necessary to the attention of relevant employees and operating
units.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, as far as it is aware, the Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations of PRC and Hong
Kong that have a significant impact on its business and operations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Discussions on the Group's relationships with its employees, customers
and suppliers are set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 64 to 88 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 98 of this annual
report.

An interim dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary share were paid
during the financial year. The Directors have proposed the payment of
a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary share for the year ended
31 March 2018. Total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018
amounted to HK15.0 cents per ordinary share.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on 8 August 2018 is
expected to be paid on or before 23 August 2018 to shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the Register of Shareholders
of the Company on 14 August 2018.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (CONTINUED)

The register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed for the
following periods:

(i)  The Register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed
from 3 August 2018 to 8 August 2018 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares in the Company will
be registered, for the purpose of determining the identity of
the shareholders entitled to attend and vote at 2018 Annual
General Meeting. In order to qualify to attend and vote at the
meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 August
2018.

(i)  The Register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed on
14 August 2018 during which day no transfer of shares in the
Company will be registered, for the purpose of determining the
entitlement of the shareholders to receive the proposed final
dividend. Subject to approval of the shareholders at the 2018
Annual General Meeting, the proposed final dividend will be
payable to the shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Shareholders of the Company on 14 August 2018. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 13 August 2018.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS — SHARE
OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS AND
SELECTED EMPLOYEES

Details of the share options granted in prior years and current year
is set out in note 25 of the financial statements and “Share options
Scheme” section contained in this Directors’ Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2018 calculated
under Companies Act of Bermuda amounted to HK$184,510,000
(2017: HK$116,779,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no transactions, which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in this annual report,
none of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report is a
connected transaction.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year

amounted to HK$393,000.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particular of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2018 are set out in note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 216 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE

CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman)

Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman)
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk

Non-executive Director
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven

Mr. Chan Kit Wang

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Ma Fung On, Mr.
Lee Kam Hung and Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven will retire by rotation
in accordance with Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws. All the
retiring Directors are being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
Each of Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors is appointed for a term of one year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Dr. Ng Chi Ho, being Executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 September 2002 and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. Mr. Ma Fung On,
being Executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from
1 April 2004 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Dr. Ng Man Cheuk, being Executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years commencing from 1 May 2015 and will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other. Save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract with the
Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Directors consider the share option scheme, with its broadened
basis of participation, will enable the Group to reward the employees,
Directors and other selected participants for their contributions to the
Group and will also assist the Group in its recruitment and retention
of high caliber professional’s executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 6 August 2012, the
Company'’s share option scheme adopted on 17 September 2002 (the
“Old Share Option Scheme"”) was terminated and ceased to have any
further effect except that the Old Share Option Scheme will remain
in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of the
options granted thereunder prior to termination thereof. A new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was adopted which
will remain in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme and will expire on 5 August 2022.

For details of the principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme,
please refer to the circular of the Company dated 5 July 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme are as follows:

50

Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant Options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The Directors consider the New Share Option Scheme will enable
the Group to reward its employees, Directors and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group and will also
assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of high calibre
professionals, executives and employees who are instrumental to
the growth of the Group.

Who may join

The Directors (which expression shall include a duly authorized
committee thereof) may, at their absolute discretion subject
to the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants, to take up options to subscribe
for Shares:

(@)  any employee (whether full time or part time including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director)
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development

or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Who may join (Continued)

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangements to the
development and growth of the Group.

For the purposes of the New Share Option Scheme, the Options
may be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes of participants.
For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any Options by the
Company for the subscription of Shares or other securities of the
Group to any person who fall within any of the above classes
of participants shall not, by itself, unless the Directors otherwise
determined, be construed as a grant of Option under the New
Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the above class of participants
to the grant of any Options shall be determined by the Directors
from time to time on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to
his contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for

subscription

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Share Option Scheme must not
exceed 10% of the issue share capital of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme
was 40,913,000 shares (including 20,720,000 shares subject to
options that have been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised),
which represented 14.47% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

4.

52

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to
each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being
(“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of Options in excess of
the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant shall be subject to the issue of
a circular to the Shareholders and the Shareholders’ approval
in general meeting of the Company with such participant and
his associates abstaining from voting. The number and terms
(including the exercise price) of the Options to be granted to such
participant must be fixed before Shareholders’ approval and the
date of Board meeting for proposing such further grant should
be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the
exercise price under note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

Basis of determining the subscription price
The subscription price for Shares under the New Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date
of the offer of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Shares. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an Option.

Exercise period of an option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
New Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which
period may commence on a day upon which the offer for the
grant of Options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the Option subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

7.

Time and payment on acceptance

An offer of the grant of the Option may be accepted by a
participant within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of
the Option and the Option in respect of the number of Shares
in respect of which the offer was so accepted will be deemed
to have been granted on the date of grant of the Options.

Minimum period and performance targets
Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in the
offer of the grant of Options to a grantee, a grantee is not
required to hold an Option for any minimum period nor achieve
any performance targets before any Options granted under the
New Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme
Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting, the New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective till 5 August 2022. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the New Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

9.

54

(Continued)

Details of the share option movements during the period from
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 under the Old Share Option

Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Outstanding
at 1 April
2017
R-¥—+t&F
A—H

CE Xk

Granted
during the
period

HARH

Number of share options

BREHE

Exercised Lapsed

during the during the

period period

BATE HRXS

Outstanding
at 31 March

Exercise
price

fTEE
(HKS)

B i #E 5T 8l (48)
9. WIBIRMER B 2 RIERFH ()

H_ZE—+tFMOA—RHE_ZT-N\F=A
=t+—HEER - ERRESERTEK
BFAEBETZBREZLBFBTET

Date of grant

RHAH

Exercisable period

TS

Dr. Ng Chi Ho 2,200,000 = = = 2,200,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015-18 January 2020
RERHEL —ZT-RF¥-A+NH ZE-EF-A+NAHE-ZE-_TF-A+NH
Mr. Ma Fung On 1,000,000 = = = 1,000,000 2190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
BEREE ZE-REAA=tH ZE-AEXNA=TBE-ZT--4XA-thH
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000 2.190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
RESEEL “Z-RERA=STE ZE-RERASTHEZR--f£5xAZthBE
Mr. Lee Kam Hung 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
ERIERE —ZT-ME=A-t-H -E-ME=ZA-t+-HE-Z-AE=A=FH
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, 200,000 = = = 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019

Steven
2RHRE “Z-ME=A-+-B —E-WE=A-t-RAE-Z-HAF=A-tH
Mr. Chan Kit Wang 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
BAREE “T-NMF=ZA-ft-H —EF-WE=ZA-t+-HE-F-AF=A=TfH
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan 300,000 — — — 300,000 2190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
R ZE-RERA=tH ZEBE-AEAA=THE-ZT-—4XA=-thH
Continuous Contract 200,000 = 100,000 50,000 50,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2015-20 March 2019

Employees (Note 1) ZT-WF=ZA=+t-8 ZET-RF=ZA-+-BEZT-NF=AZTH
REGHER (B 7E1)
Continuous Contract 1,300,000 — — — 1,300,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015-18 January 2020

Employees ZE-REF-ATNH ZE-RE-ATNAZEZZT-EF-ATNH
REANEER
Continuous Contract 2,200,000 = = = 2,200,000 2.260 10 July 2015 10 July 2015-9 July 2020

Employees —Z-RFtA+H —Z-RFtAtHE-Z-TF L ANA
REANEE
Continuous Contract 10,000,000 = = = 10,000,000 2.800 16 July 2015 16 July 2015-15 July 2019

Employees
REGHER ZT-AF+tA+AE ZE-AFtA+ABE-T-AFLA+EHE
Continuous Contract 2,750,000 — 1,040,000 490,000 1,220,000 2.142 7 January 2016 7 January 2017-6 January 2021

Employees (Note 2) ~NE-RAtH —T—+t5-AtHE-T-—-F—ARXH
REANEER (B £2)
Others 400,000 = = = 400,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
Hity (Note 3) ZT-MFZA-+-H ZE-WE=ZA-+-HE-Z-AF=A=T1H

(B 5£3)
22,950,000 — 1,140,000 540,000 21,270,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

9.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme
(Continued)

Notes:

1. During the financial year, the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s share immediately before the date on which 100,000 share

options were exercised was HK$2.700.

2. During the financial year, the weighted average closing price of the
Company'’s share immediately before the date on which 1,040,000 share
options were exercised was HK$2.798.

3. Among 400,000 share options, 200,000 share options were granted to a
former director.

EFERS

BRERE(E)

9.

MERESE 2R FE(E)

Mt

1. NABBFEE - ANARRKRMNE$#100,000
MEREETEEAMNZMEFHRTES

2.700# JT ©

2. RAGBRFE - ARA AR MH K E$#1,040,000
MEREETEEAMNZMEFHRTES

27988 7T °
3. 1£400,00017 B8 f% # &+ 200,00017% B A% 4% T3
BT —&HES-

FEEBBREBEGRAE 2017/18F & 55



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

9.

56

(Continued)

Details of the share option movements during the period from
1 April 2018 to 27 June 2018 under the Old Share Option
Scheme and New Scheme Option Scheme are as follows:

Outstanding
at 1 April
2018
RZB-N\F
A—H

CE Xk

Granted
during the
period

HARH

Number of share options

BREHE

Exercised
during the
period

BAfT

Lapsed
during the
period

Outstanding
at 27 June
2018
R-F-N\F
AA=t+tR

BAKH i 17

Exercise
price

B i #E 5T 8l (48)
9. WIBIRMER B 2 RIERFH ()

H-Z-/\FOA-—BE_ZT—/\FXA
—t+EHEEA - BERREE REK

A AT 2 R

Date of grant

RHAH

HBEWMT:

Exercisable period

TS

Dr. Ng Chi Ho 2,200,000 = = = 2,200,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015-18 January 2020
RERHEL —ZT-RF¥-A+NH ZE-EF-A+NAHE-ZE-_TF-A+NH
Mr. Ma Fung On 1,000,000 = = = 1,000,000 2190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
BEREE ZE-REAA=tH ZE-AEXNA=TBE-ZT--4XA-thH
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000 2.190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
RESEEL “Z-RERA=STE ZE-RERASTHEZR--f£5xAZthBE
Mr. Lee Kam Hung 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
ERIERE —ZT-ME=A-t-H -E-ME=ZA-t+-HE-Z-AE=A=FH
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, 200,000 = = = 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019

Steven “T-ME=A=-ft-H —E-WME=A-+-HZE-F-AE=A=FH
2RHRE
Mr. Chan Kit Wang 200,000 — — — 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
BAREE “Z-ME=A-+-B —E-WE=A-+-HE-Z-NAF=ZA=-1H
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan 300,000 — — — 300,000 2190 30 June 2016 30 June 2016-29 June 2021
R ZE-RERA=tH ZEBE-AEAA=THE-ZT-—4XA=-thH
Continuous Contract 50,000 = 50,000 = = 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2015-20 March 2019

Employees (Note 1) ZT-WF=ZA=+t-8 ZET-RF=ZA-+-BEZT-NF=AZTH
REGHER (B 7E1)
Continuous Contract 1,300,000 — — — 1,300,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015-18 January 2020

Employees ZE-REF-ATNH ZE-RE-ATNAZEZZT-EF-ATNH
REANEER
Continuous Contract 2,200,000 — 500,000 — 1,700,000 2.260 10 July 2015 10 July 2015-9 July 2020

Employees (Note 2) —Z-RFtA+H —Z-RFtAtHE-Z-TF L ANA
REANEE (Ff5£2)
Continuous Contract 10,000,000 = = = 10,000,000 2.800 16 July 2015 16 July 2015-15 July 2019

Employees “ZT-HF+tA+A~E ZE-REFtA+ABE-FT-NFLAT+EHHE
REGHER
Continuous Contract 1,220,000 — — — 1,220,000 2.142 7 January 2016 7 January 2017-6 January 2021

Employees —T-R"E—-AtH —T—+F—AtBE=-Z=-—F—AXAH
REANEER
Others 400,000 = = = 400,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014-20 March 2019
Eity “Z-ME=A-+-B —E-WE=A-+t-HE-Z-HAFE=A=-+H

21,270,000 = 550,000 — 20,720,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
9. Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme
(Continued)

Notes:

1. During the period from 1 April 2018 to 27 June 2018, the weighted
average closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date
on which 50,000 share options were exercised was HK$2.273.

2. During the period from 1 April 2018 to 27 June 2018, the weighted
average closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date
on which 500,000 share options were exercised was HK$2.269.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and the short positions of the
directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken or deemed to have under such
positions of the SFO) or which are required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporation.

EFERS

S i #E 5T 8l (48)
9. WIBIRMER B 2 RIEREFH ()

GEE

1. BT \EFOA-—HBAE-_Z-NF AT
TREHAA - ARF RGN E 50,0001 K
EETEERRNZNEFHRTER2273E
JC °

2. BT \EFOA-—HBAE-_Z-NFRAZT
T REREA - AR R E 500,000 8
AT E B AT 2 T T E &2.269
BT °

EERRGBzEE

RZZB-N\F=ZA=+—H ARAEEFNER
AkEEMABEE(EERE S EEM
(IBHREEGE D BEXVER) 2B - HEBRH
REZF  BEREBEZSFEHEHERIIFEXVIEE
T8N MR EAMNEARBA LB BB ARZM
BRAR (M) z#EMRR (BRREE
ZRBEGRHERGXEERREREFER
ZHEREORR)  RATAREEF RS GO
FEIRFEZERMzER AR » HRIE
ERBERTAEFTETEFRXZNIZEEST AR
EFRDEMEARRF MBS RRR

RARDE R AR BOR B 2 B0 K A8 B8 A 0 2 7
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EFERS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

(CONTINUED)

(a) Interests in shares of the Company

Name of Director

EEER

Dr. Ng Chi Ho
REFEL

Mr. Ma Fung On
BERRAE

Dr. Ng Man Cheuk
RREEL

Mr. Lee Kam Hung
FEMEE

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven
RFHEE

Mr. Chan Kit Wang
BRANR S &

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan
SR 18

Capacity

514

Beneficial owner

EnfEBA

Interests of controlled corporation
% ok E 3

Founder of a discretionary trust
EREFTAME

Beneficial owner

BE=mERBA

Interests of controlled corporation
S EE R

Beneficial owner

BE=mERBA

Beneficiary of a discretionary trust
EREEZRA

Interests of controlled corporation
XA E RS

Beneficial owner
Em#EAA

Beneficial owner
Em#EAA

Beneficial owner
Em#EAA

EERKRGz#Ez=(E)

(@) RAQRTRGBzES

Number
of shares

88 (4]

6,930,000(L)

46,498,000(L)
10,000,000(S)
(Note 2)
(Pt £ 2)
110,000,000(L)
(Note 3)
(B 5E3)

4,323,000(L)
9,900,000(L)
(Note 4)

(Pff 5%4)
1,000,000(L)
110,000,000(L)
(Note 3)

(B 5E3)
1,057,800(L)
(Note 5)

(Fff 35)

330,000(L)
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Total interests

A

163,428,000(L)
10,000,000(S)

14,223,000(L)

111,000,000(L)

1,057,800(L)

330,000(L)

Percentage
of issued
ordinary
shares

HERT
EBERESL

57.92%(L)
3.54%(S)

5.04%(L)

39.34%(L)

0.37%(L)

0.12%(L)

Number of
underlying
shares held
under equity
derivatives
BARGTETA
WETFisHEE
iR 13 8 H
(Note 1)
(B 3£ 1)

2,200,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

200,000

200,000

200,000

300,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
(CONTINUED)
Interests in shares of the Company (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Notes:

1.

These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the
sub-section “Share Option Scheme”.

46,498,000 shares are held by Billion Linkage Limited, the entire issued
shares of which is held by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and his spouse in equal share.

110,000,000 Shares are held by Superior View Inc., the entire issued shares
of which is ultimately held by Fidelitycorp Limited as the trustee of the
C.H. Family Trust, the beneficiaries of which are the family members of
Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

9,900,000 Shares are held by Global Class Enterprises Limited, the entire
issued shares of which is held by Mr. Ma Fung On.
1,057,800 shares are held by Quick Fit Enterprises Ltd, the ultimate

shareholder is Mr. Lee Kam Hung.

(L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position.

Interests in shares of the Company’s associated
corporation

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in Suga Electronics

Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company:

Name of Director

ESNR

Mr. Ma Fung On
FEREE

Capacity

5%

Dr. Ng Chi Ho Interests of controlled corporation
RERBL XA E R

Interests of controlled corporation

EFERS

EERKRGz#Ez=(E)

(@)

(b)

RADTE 13 2 1 = ()

B RE

1.

RO EEARR MR L BRES R 2 HERR
s AEFABRNEREEIDE -

%55 46,498,000/% J% 1 A Billion Linkage Limited
BE MZAREZHEBTRMNIBRER
MTEAERBERH—F -

5%110,000,000 % %1 Fa Superior View Inc. 45
B M&RAA2MPEBEITRHAEACH RIK
{25 £ #F A Z Fidelitycorp Limited & 485 % -
ZEIAZZEAABREZELTZRE -

#%559,900,000 % % 17 F3 Global Class Enterprises
Limited#58 - MZ AR 222 EITHR M A H
BEREERE -

#%1,057,800% f% 17 FA Quick Fit Enterprises Ltd
BA THBAEARZARRERE-
L — e (5 — &%k

o

iy

RAQTHBZEIRGZES

RARRZ2ENBAREEETARAT
HREEI0E T EREEEERD

Number of
Non-voting
deferred

Percentage of

issued shares
EERTRG
BSOS K

shares

B ERIEL

2V 4

(Note 1)

(Bt EE1)

3,680,000 92%
(Note 2)
(P 5E2)

240,000 6%
(Note 2)
(M 5E2)
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EEEWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

(CONTINUED)
(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated
corporation (Continued)

Notes:

1. These non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
dividends, and are not entitled to any distributions upon winding up unless
a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary shares has been distributed to

the holders of ordinary shares.

2. The 4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares in Suga Electronics Limited are
held as to 80% by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and 20% by Broadway
Business Limited. Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On hold 92% and
6% interests in each of Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and Broadway

Business Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above and under the “Share Option Scheme”,
none of the Directors of the Company have any interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations as defined in
the SFO as at 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed in above section, at no time during the year was
the Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debenture
of, the Company or anybody corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its parent company,
or its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company, his connected entities were materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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(b) MAQTMEEBE G 2= ()

CEX

1. ZE BB ERERITER D EERZLWER S -
EERE O RELTARFEACESRERY
A% 10,000,000,0008 T * ZEEIEEEIR
ERMDIFTAANFATEDIK

2. 4,000,000k EEEFAERATERFERIEL
% 17 9 Bl A Essential Mix Enterprises Limited &
Broadway Business Limited#§ 580% &20% °
RExE T RFERTESE D R R Essential
Mix Enterprises Limited }2 Broadway Business
Limited 5 5 92% K& 6% 1 5 °

B EX R TBRER S IR TREESIN - ©
—E-\F=ZA=t—B ArAEEMH
BRARALEEBEER(EZLESR
HIE GO 2 By - HER D RES T E
BEMERERAR -

EERERGIEZFZEF

BE—EMmEEIN  ARAF HEQARHHE
17T P /B8 22 B 3k [A) 5 2 A) 0 4F P9 £ ] By ) 3 48
AIVBEARAREMEABRBNKNRES
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DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISIONS

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, every director of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office.
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no such competing business as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018, the following persons (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

Capacity

5%

EFERS

EEZERERX

RIBEARR QAR ARRSEETERMET
HEGXERTERG A EXEEMERT @
AERIIBHIABEBRRLEERARAZ
BELGNPEDREE ARBAE/REEES
PREKBAENEENSEBEETRR -

EENUFREB2ES

EERA LREMEBHAERDHARAA
BEH TR ETRE)RE 2 BF RS -

FERR

RZE-NF=ZA=1+—8B REAXFAREZE
HFREIEGRGIE336GFE 2 ELMATCE - T
AL (UHARREEREETHABR)IRA
REAIZBROEEERDS - BEREEFEH
EHRPIEXVERE2R3 7 B AR E ARARE R R
ZHEBIORE o

Number

Percentage of

issued shares
LERTRG
BSOS K

of shares

K28 E
(Note 1)
(BT &E)

Superior View Inc. (Note 1)
Superior View Inc. (Fff 5£1)

Billion Linkage Limited (Note 2)
Billion Linkage Limited (B 5£2)

Lee Wai Fun (Note 3)
TEF(ME3)

Beneficial owner

EmfEAA

Beneficial owner

BEmfEAA

Interest of spouse

Bt 18 =

Interest of controlled corporation
REEE R

110,000,000(L)

46,498,000(L)

10,000,000(S)

119,130,000(L)

46,498,000(L)
10,000,000(S)

FEEBBREBEGRAE 2017/18F &

38.99%(L)

16.48%(L)
3.54%(S)

58.70%(L)
3.54%(S)
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EEEWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. The entire issued share capital of Superior View Inc. is ultimately held by
Fidelitycorp Limited as trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the beneficiaries of which

are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

2. The entire issued share capital of Billion Linkage Limited is held by Dr. Ng Chi
Ho and his spouse in equal shares and, as such, Dr. Ng Chi Ho is deemed to be

interested in all the shares held by Billion Linkage Limited under the SFO.

3. Madam Lee Wai Fun is deemed to be interested in 119,130,000 shares (including
2,200,000 underlying shares held under equity derivatives) held by her spouse,
Dr. Ng Chi Ho, a director of the Company.

4. (L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position.

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the Directors, there
is no person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, who has an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provision 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
as at 31 March 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest customer for the year accounted for approximately
20.6% of the Group’s total revenue and the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 54.0% of the Group’s total revenue. In
addition, the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
18.7% of the Group’s purchases while the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 36.5% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company's
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.
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MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 March 2018, the Company was not involved in any material
litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or arbitration were
pending or threatened or made against the Company so far the
Company is aware.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the “Corporate

Governance Report” on pages 29 to 43.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The financial statements for the year have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offered

themselves for re-appointment.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
(“ESG”)

The Company has a serious commitment to ESG matters. A report on
the environmental, social and governance commitment can be found
on pages 64 to 88.

On behalf of the Board

Suga International Holdings Limited
NG Chi Ho

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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RIE - HERELGHS

FORWARD

This Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report is prepared in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (HKEX ESG Reporting Guide) for Suga International
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (referred to in this report as “the
Group” or “SUGA") for the financial year ended 31 March 2018.
This report presents SUGA’s compliance with the “Comply or Explain”
provision of the ESG Reporting Guide also within Appendix 27.

As a leading electronics total solutions provider in Hong Kong, Suga
has a mission to contribute to the progress of society by providing
people with quality products and employing advanced technology,
with protecting the environment and serving the community always
in mind.

The Board
to the sustainable development in environmental

is committed to making continuous contributions
aspects and
fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities. Towards that end,
it is the responsibility of the Board of the Company to assess
social risks, formulate the

the environmental, and governance

environmental, social and governance strategy, ensure the
establishment and maintenance of an effective internal control system
on the environmental, social and governance aspects of its business
and operations as well as perform regular analysis and independent
assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of these efforts through

internal audit function.

To ensure its sustainability efforts in ESG, the Group has established
an ESG Committee that reports to the board, comprising an Executive
Director and various department heads. The Board has assigned
authority to this ESG Committee to carry out various tasks including
to carry out internal (relevant for management and employees) and
external (relevant to stakeholders) materiality assessments, the scope
of ESG work, and the cost and resource commitment from the Group.
For better internal control in our ESG commitment, Suga has also
established an “Environmental, Social Governance Policy” (ESG Policy)

to regulate and monitor ESG activities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORT SCOPE

This report covers the operations of SUGA’s core business in Hong
Kong and its plant in Dongguan, PRC. This report highlights SUGA's
sustainable efforts in Environmental Aspects (Aspect A) and Social
Aspects (Aspect B) and the material issues in these two general
categories of aspects are summarized in the following section.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ISSUES DISCLOSED
IN THIS REPORT

Material Issues

EXEERE

Environmental — Emissions and Waste

RE — B Mo EE

Environmental — Use of Resources

R — BRER

Environmental — Environmental and Natural Resources
RIE —RBERRXAER

Social — Employment

He —ER

Social — Health and Safety
e —RBEREZE

Social — Development and Training

e — BRRE

Social — Labor Standards
e — & T KR

Social — Supply Chain Management
e —HEREER

Social — Product Responsibility
e —EmERE

Social — Anti-corruption
e —RER

Social — Community Investment

e —HERE

RIE-HERERHRS

St

R & &
AR REEENEERLOEERERFEE
EHENLE ABREEBNBEELRAE
H(BEA) R & B E (B D) M5 E %R
HHES TZEHEENMADENEAS
BERTX— & it -

[H

REBEHEENEXRFTEMRE

Location of Disclosure

WERE@

Aspect Al
JE A1

Aspect A2
EmEA2

Aspect A3
JEEA3

Aspect B1
[E mEB1

Aspect B2
JZ T B2

Aspect B3
JE B3

Aspect B4
JZ E B4

Aspect B5
JEEB5

Aspect B6
JZ 1 B6

Aspect B7
JE EB7

Aspect B8
JZ E B8
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RIE - HERELGHS

There is no change in the material issues in this report when compared
with the ESG Report issued in the Group 2016/2017 Annual Report.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In all ESG aspects, Suga values internal and external stakeholders’
views. We therefore conduct regular reviews in identifying and
understanding internal and external stakeholders’ main concerns and
material interest for the ESG report. The communication channels for
the identifying and understanding are as follows:

—  Employee training and seminars

—  Employee recreational and volunteer activities

— Intranet and emails

—  Customer satisfaction survey

—  Newsletters and notice board

—  Corporate website

— Annual General Meeting and other shareholders meetings

— Annual Reports, Interim Reports and Announcements

—  Community service programs

66 SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18

BAEER_Z—K/_Z—tFFREMH
R HE@kBEARSHEL TAHENEKRS
B EEMES -

EEMAME

RAERE HEREAEEME EEER
NBRINBEFHDENER - Bt - R FER
RTMBRERE HERERFEMS AP RIN
HRENENZZEWITEREAEREITEH
EH - BAKTHEBEENERRBENT

— REEHIIEHE
— REERZRETED

— ANBELER

7l

— XEPmEE#RZ

— BERETIR

—  ATEE

— BRAFREREMBREH

— FH- -PHRERAE

— HER%EE
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RIE - HERERAWRSE

EE
MATERIALITY MATRIX EEMERE
The Materiality Matrix after external and internal assessment is KN #1790 E0 K& 20 5T 1 1% & & 2t 4P e 8 &t 40
summarized as follows. T

Al.4 A1.3 B6.1 B8.1
A5 A6 B6.2 B8.2
A2.1 B6.3
AT B6.4
g A1.2 B6.5
o
o
§ B2.1
Su A3.1 B2.3
£ ik
£ 2 A2.5 B3.1 B32
gﬁ B7.1 B7.2
ggg B5.2
a1 A2.2 B2.2
< B1.1 B4.1
g B1.2 B4.2
g
]
B5.1
A2.3
A2.4

Internal Assessment from Management and Employees

EERE RS AR

Notes: B 3% -

A1.1 = Types of Emissions and Respective Data AL = BERUE R K& HE BE Uk

A1.2 = Greenhouse Gas Emissions A2 = RERBEHEK

A1.3 = Total Hazardous Waste Generation A3 = BEEBREVELLE

Al.4 = Total Non-hazardous Waste Generation A4 = BEZEEVELELE

A1.5 = Measures to Mitigate Emissions A5 = PEIRBEUIEIE =
A1.6 = Waste Management for Hazardous and Non-hazardous Substances A6 = BEREENEEENER =
A2.1 = Direct and Indirect Energy Consumption A21 = EERKBEERER

A2.2 = Water Consumption A22 = FEKE

A2.3 = Description of Energy Use Efficiency A2.3 = REIR{E A AR &R A9 1

A2.4 = Description of Water Efficiency A2.4 = HIKBEH R

A2.5 = Total Packing Material Used for Finished Goods A25 = REXREERNBEYHEE

A3.1 = Description of Significant Impact on the Environment and Natural Resources A3l = HERBERRXABERNEANZEN M
B1.1 = Total Workforce by Gender and Level B11 = HRUFIRBKRESWE T

B1.2 = Employee Turnover Rate by Gender B1.2 = RERIEDHEIRAX

B2.1 = Number and Rate of Work-related Fatalities B2.1 = AIEEEMIETHAS KL=

B2.2 = Lost Days Due to Work Injury B22 = AIHBEAIERS

B2.3 = Description of Occupational Health and Safety Measures Adopted B23 = FIRMAMBIXEREZ 2B ENHEL
B3.1 = Percentage of Employees Trained by Gender and Level B3.1 = RHUEBERBARESHZIEEAS L
B3.2 = Average Training Hours Completed B3.2 = TRZINNFHEH

B4.1 = Measures to Avoid Child and Forced Labor B41 = BHIEE T sk3a #l% TR i

B4.2 = Steps to Eliminate Child and Forced Labor B4.2 = HHEISGHILITHNRER

B5.1 = Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region B5.1 = @B DK HERFHKE

B5.2 = Practices to Engage Suppliers B5.2 = ZEMEEN TR

B6.1 = Percentage of Recalled Finished Goods Due to Safety and Health Issues B6.1 = A2 RkEEMEMBKMRRKRES L
B6.2 = Number of Complaints about Finished Goods and Services B6.2 = BRAEKREREHEFERHE

EEEBEBEBRAAF 2017/184F 3k 67
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B6.3 = Practices to Protect Intellectual Property
B6.4 = Quality Assurance and Recall Procedures

B6.5 = Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policy

B7.1 = Number of Concluded Corruption-related Legal Cases
B7.2 = Preventive and Whistle-blowing Measures

B8.1 = Focus Areas of Social Contribution

B8.2 = Resources (Money/Time) Contributed

FEEDBACK

SUGA values feedback from our stakeholders. If you have any
questions or suggestions on the content or the form of reporting of
this ESG Report, you are welcome to contact us via the following:

Address: 22/F., Tower B,
Billion Centre,
1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: investorrelations@suga.com.hk
Telephone: 852-2953 0383
Fax: 852-2953 1523

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Environment Sustainability

SUGA recognizes the importance of environmental sustainability
and is committed to protecting the environment. We incorporate
environmental considerations into business processes and maintain
an ongoing commitment to environment protection in line with
laws and regulations within Hong Kong and Mainland China. SUGA
has implemented various measures to achieve the following priority

objectives in environmental aspects:

—  Reducing emissions of greenhouse gases and other pollutants
— Achieving savings in energy

—  Reducing waste generation

In supporting the Group to develop an all-round corporate social
responsibility (CSR) and green culture, we have incorporated the
environmental management systems and processes of [1SO14001

and QC080000 in our operations and have professionally informed
employees through setting environmental protection guidelines.
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During this financial year, we have participated
activities and garnered the following awards,
recognition for our efforts here.

in various green
certificates and

RABBEE  RMELRSERERED ¥
HIGATRE REFMB T -

Awards and Certification

Organizer

RERDEEIMWEM

Environmental Campaign Committee & 2017 Hong Kong Awards for \!
Environmental Protection Department Environmental Excellence (HKAEE) e B
iﬂii @J?E\Q&E«Rii1% % 2017%?\%i§iﬁ—$@j{§% FRENANzE
X . oo ohe of heed
Manufacturing & Industrial .
Services — Certificate of Merit P T
S ] = o AR
LEERTERBARNER R e
55 4
e ol ol e gl o

China Quality Certification Centre
hEEE8RERL

SGS United Kingdom Limited

Environmental Campaign Committee

i&iﬁ Eﬁ;g\a

Hong Kong Productivity Council
(HKPC)
EREENRER

Awards and Certificates

RERIE

Accreditation of ISO 14001:2015
ISO 14001 : 201532 &

Accreditation of QC080000:2017
QC080000 : 2017 R &

Hong Kong Green Organisation
(2018-2020)

ERREME

(2018-2020)

Green Management Network
(2018-2019)

HmeEBBES

(2018-2019)
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Awards and Certification

Organizer Awards and Certificates
RERZBIWEN .

Hong Kong Q-Mark Council HK Green Mark Certification
Federation Scheme
ERBERRR BEQEIRREETE

T AL OO IR TR

Hang Kong Green Mark
Certification Scheme

Green Activities

RREE

Green Power The 25th Green Power Hike — The Corporation/

g Organization Cup — 10km
FXEHCHNERETASTLULEIRKBELERR B
h— 10REEF '
Our staff has been participating in the Green Power Hike
for over 16 years.
BMWEIAEBR6F H2EGENERETEAET
It o

Green Council Hong Kong Green Day

RREES ERZER
Our volunteers actively took part in the Green Council’s
Hong Kong Green Day on 5 June 2017. i
BPWEIEE2ERRELEEN _ZT—LtFARA
BITNEBZER -

Green Council International Coastal Cleanup 2017 Hong Kong

RIREES 07FBERBEFRED

Our volunteers actively took part in the International Costal ';_
Cleanup Hong Kong 2017.
BEMHOEIBGLE2017EERBRBEERED -

World Wide Fund for Nature Walk for Nature@ Mai Po 2017

Hong Kong 2017K A RRERIFERNBRIFITER
ERAAREE)Eeg Our colleagues and their families joined the Walk for Nature

organized by WWF at Hong Kong’s iconic Mai Po Nature
Reserve in November 2017.
BPANRAFEERAZNERBAESSETESEN
Z—+E+-AEERBTEMBRONRBEAREREH
WIFTERBARIFITER -
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ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS AND WASTE REDUCTION

SUGA is committed to protecting the environment by reducing
emissions of greenhouse gases as well as by reducing discharge of
harmful substances into water and land alike, and generation of less
hazardous and non-hazardous waste. We fully comply with the relevant
laws and regulations related to gas emissions and waste management.
Our emission KPI are within normal range when compare with same
nature of business companies.

Aspect A1.1 & Al1.2 Reduce Emissions from Fuel

Consumption and Greenhouse Gases Emissions
SUGA's main sources of greenhouse gases and other polluting emissions
are electricity usage and our vehicle fleet. We manage to reduce such
emissions by measures such as monitoring electricity consumption,
implementing energy-saving measures and reducing use of our vehicle
fleet as stated in Aspect A1.5 “Measures to Mitigate Emissions”.

AT1.1 Emissions from Gaseous Fuel

Consumption for 2017/2018 Amount Unit
NO, Emissions 610.77 Kg
SO, Emissions 1.22 Kg
Particulate Matter (PM) Emissions 50.63 Kg
Total Emissions of Pollutants 662.62 Kg
Al1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions for

2017/2018 Amount Unit
Scope 1 — Direct Emissions 210.1 Tonnes
Scope 2 — Indirect Emissions 5,411.1 Tonnes
Total Emissions of Greenhouse Gases Tonnes

5,621.2

RIE-HERERHRS

J& E A1 : R D BE R % B R
EEBNERRVBEREHN - BIEKTR
EEENENEN  UREERIBEERE
EEMAMRERS - A2 AT AHMRES
HERENERNHBERREN BREES
DFML - BMOHERBR AR EERES
W -

BT A5 A1 275 D A #HE FE HE R OB
ERBEHEK

BB S REREMS R RO EERR
RABRBRMOHER - RMAEEALSH L
PR — SR ERRER BT
B RA D AERS B RSB BN
e

AlLI=ZE—+ —F—)IF

TP FEHE HHE E
—SREERD 61077 T
—EbHmBERY 122 Tm
BT 5063 F=
V5 3 ) B HE R 662.62 T#
Al2=F—+ —F—)|F

BETEHM HHE B
g1 — EEHEN 210.1 7]
B2 — HMEHEW 5,411.1 7]
B ERE BN 5,621.2 7
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Aspect A1.3 & A1.4 Reduce Generation of Hazardous

& Non-hazardous Waste

SUGA does not generate a large volume of hazardous waste materials.
Nevertheless, we have hired specialist contractors to handle hazardous
waste materials as a by-product from Raw Material Incoming Quality
Assurance (IQA) operations in the PRC Dongguan Plant. In addition, only
vendors that comply with RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substance)
and REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of
Chemicals) codes are included in our “Approved Vendors List”. And
in order to ensure that our products are environmentally-friendly, only
approved vendors are permitted to provide us raw materials.

SUGA's main source of non-hazardous waste is the rubbish generated
from business operations, and the Dongguan Plant Central Canteen

and Dormitory.

We have managed to reduce generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste by measures stated in Aspect A1.6 “Waste
Management for Hazardous and Non-hazardous Substances”
Al.3 Total Hazardous Waste for
2017/2018 Amount Unit
0 Kg
A1.4 Total Non-hazardous Waste for
201772018
Industrial Waste 210,318 Kg
Plastic 14,294 Kg
Garbage 178,361 Kg
Food Residue 17,461 Kg
Total Non-hazardous Waste 420,434 Kg
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Aspect A1.5 Measures to Mitigate Emissions

SUGA has implemented a wide range of measures to reduce
greenhouse gases and emissions of other pollutants highlighted by the
following:

— Implementing a Solar Panel Energy System at the Dongguan
Plant which can provide around 950,000 KWH of electricity per
annum

— Using LED lighting in all areas of the Hong Kong Office and the
Dongguan Plant in the PRC to save energy

—  Monitoring electricity consumption by measuring monthly
electricity usage

—  Deploying a frequency converter in production lines and the air-
conditioning system in the Dongguan Plant to save energy in
production

— Reducing use of our fleet by careful implementation of
transportation plans

— Installing various types of sensors for electricity switches in the
Dongguan Plant to reduce electricity consumption

— Installing smoke filters and electric ovens in the Central Kitchen
of the PRC Dongguan Plant to reduce smoke pollution

— Implementing guidelines, slogans and posters to educate
employees about energy-saving and environmentally-friendly
concepts and encouraging them to live a green life

RIE-HERERHS

I8 T A1.538 2 BE B ¥ 18 e
EHEDER—RIBRUA B ERE Rt
SRR WEET

— HEREWMEMAKAKBGERERZSZL A
FER H49950,000F L EHE H

— EEBABRERERTRREZBMEAE&HE
& FALEDFRRA LA 51 & BB R

&
al]

tHEEBAR A

i
Rl
M
]
o

e

— BB

ok

— REEBENAEER/RLZHRGEER
REBRBUNLEEBREHEER

— BREERERERI RS EAEM

#) B8 X

— REXBEAESHNHBZETRBLD
RERUBRDREES

— EPEREBMENTAHEZKRERS
Bes REREAR D EF SR

—  HIFTHESl - AHERE RS MIAR B B R

AR EREER S LB mfEE
RRER

FEEBBREBEGRAE 2017/18F & 73



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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RiE -

Aspect A1.6 Waste Management for Hazardous and

Non-hazardous Substances
Our waste management strategy is in line with the key 4R principles
— Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace.

We have undertaken the following measures to mitigate waste
generation:

— Hazardous waste is not a major issue in our operations,
nevertheless we have a team and lab to monitor hazardous waste
created during the IQA process

— Implementing and following policies to recycle packing pallets
(A#E) to

and carton boxes and reuse transit carton boxes
reduce packing material usage

— Implementing recycling programs to reduce paper-based waste

— Implementing and following policies to use environmentally-
friendly raw materials at the product design stage

ASPECT A2: USE OF RESOURCES

We have adopted a variety of practices and guidelines to continually
improve our energy efficiency in production. Meanwhile, we remain
committed to finding new ways to reduce energy consumption by
improving the performance of machinery and use of infrastructure.

SUGA's main usage of energy is for electricity at our facilities and fuel
consumption by our vehicle fleet. We manage direct and/or indirect
energy consumption by monitoring monthly energy consumption,
and educate employees about energy-saving and environmentally-
friendly concepts and practices. Water consumption is not a materially
important area for SUGA. Much of our water consumption is for
cleaning and sanitation at the Dongguan Plant Dormitory, as well as
use at the Dongguan Plant Central Canteen. Nevertheless, we have
implemented practices and guidelines to manage water consumption
at a reasonable level.
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Our efforts in this direction include:

Implementing a Solar Panel System at the Dongguan Plant to
generate renewable energy and reduce electricity consumption
Modernizing our air-conditioning system and production
machinery to save energy

Implementing guidelines and creating slogans and posters to
educate employees about energy-saving and environmentally-

friendly concepts

Installing sensors on water taps in the Dongguan Plant to reduce
water usage

Implementing paperless e-procurement and e-production and
material planning systems to reduce paper consumption

Implementing a paperless office system for business operation
to reduce paper consumption

Initiating a policy to reduce usage of packing materials for
finished goods at the product design stage

Implementing procedures to reduce packing materials in the
production process

Rubbish separation for recycling resources

Aspect A2.1 Direct and/or Indirect Energy
Consumption

Resources Consumption for

2017/2018 Amount Unit
1. Electricity (excluding 952,160

KWh solar panel electricity) 8,414,580 KWh
2. Diesel 44,809 Liter
3. Petrol 33,634 Liter

Aspect A2.2 Water Consumption

Water consumption Amount Unit
Water consumed 119,337 m?3
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Aspect A2.5 Packing Material Consumption

Packing Material consumed 1,026,634 Kg
Kg/

HKS$million

Intensity 680 Sales

ASPECT A3: IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND
NATURAL RESOURCES

The nature of our industry does not have a serious impact on
SUGA has established ESG
include stringent measures

environmental and natural resources.

Policies which in place to reduce
greenhouse gases and control emissions of pollutants. We have also
implemented measures to reduce production of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

Moreover, to promote environmental awareness among our employees,
SUGA has created guidelines, slogans and posters to educate
employees about energy saving and environmentally-friendly concepts.
We encourage our employees to live a green lifestyle.

SUGA's activities and operations have no significant adverse impact on
the environment and natural resources during the financial year ended
31 Mar 2018.

REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECTS

Corporate Social Responsibility

As one of Hong Kong's leading providers of total electronics solutions,
fulfilling our corporate social responsibility is one of our objectives.
SUGA is committed to operating in a manner that is economically,
socially and environmentally sustainable. We have put in place
policies, practices, procedures, guidelines and measures to achieve our
corporate social responsibility objectives in environmental and social
aspects.

SUGA has a mission of benefiting society through participating
in community activities and donations. SUGA's corporate social
responsibility has a core value to benefit society and protect the
environment. To fulfill that responsibility, we are committed to
conducting business in a manner that respects society and the
environment. Our environmental and social responsibility practices
positively contribute to the community and protect the environment
through donations, volunteer works and environmentally-friendly
practices. For cleaner

production, SUGA has adopted energy

conservation measures to reduce environmental risks and liabilities.
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We also work to raise awareness and involvement in environmental
protection among our employees at all levels and always encourage
them to engage in green activities with their families. In the future,
SUGA intends to continue ongoing efforts to fulfil our commitment to
environmental protection as well as support sustainable development
at the local and global level. We believe that through our efforts in
environmental protection and community activities we can make our
world a better place to live.

ASPECT B1: EMPLOYMENT
SUGA employs around 2,000 employees in Hong Kong and the PRC.

We are committed to providing a rewarding work environment for our
employees that encourages collaboration and offers them opportunities
to learn, grow and succeed at work. The commitment has been
incorporated into our Human Resources policies and practices and the
Employee Handbook.

Suga is in compliance with the following People’s Republic of
China (PRC) and Hong Kong (HK) laws and regulations concerning
employment.

1. Labor Law of the PRC

2. Law of the PRC on Employment Contracts

3. Minority Protection Law of the PRC

4. PRC Provision on the Prohibition of Child Labor

5. Hong Kong Employment Ordinance

6. Hong Kong Employment of Children Regulation

7. Hong Kong Minimum Wage Ordinance

8. Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance

9. Hong Kong Employee’s Compensation Ordinance
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Recruiting and retaining competent and professional employees is
vital to our success and we aim to attract, motivate and retain the
best people for our business operations. To achieve this, we provide
a competitive employment package consisting of monetary and non-
monetary rewards for our employees. Our comprehensive reward
system offers a discretionary incentive bonus, sales commissions,
share options, group medical insurance protection, and retirement
protection. Our employer contribution for the Mandatory Provident
Fund (MPF) exceeds the legal requirement and we offer additional
holidays for employees’ well-being.

At the same time, we help our employees pursue a work-life balance
and live a healthy and fulfilling life. Our Human Resources Department
organizes a range of social, sports and recreation activities, including
local tours, barbeques, dinner gatherings and sports competitions to
enrich our employees’ lives.

We treat all employees and job applicants fairly and equally regardless

of their gender, sexual orientation, marital status, race, color,
nationality, religion, age or disability. We have zero tolerance of

harassment and discrimination in any form.

Employee Communication
Promoting a corporate culture of open communication is one of the
keys to sustaining our success.

We encourage employees at all levels to express their views and
make suggestions through a variety of channels, including face-to-
face meetings, gatherings with management, a quarterly employee
satisfaction survey and more. Our intranet and notice board keep
employees up-to-date on company news across the Group. In addition,
we have provided a suggestion box for employees to submit advice
or inform the management about problems.

SUGA complies with all relevant Hong Kong and PRC laws and
regulations related to working hours, rest periods and overtime
pay. We provide workers overtime pay for working time beyond
regular working hours. In addition, we strive to amicably resolve any
labor-related matters through dialog and resolutions with relevant
employees.
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Employee Welfare and Working Conditions

We operate a canteen and a dormitory at our Dongguan Plant,
which provides employees with reasonably-priced meals and lodging.
Also we operate a Clubhouse and other recreational facilities at the
Dongguan Plant, including a gym, Karaoke and theater for employees
for entertainment during their leisure time.

Our service excellence award and long service awards recognize the
outstanding contributions, commitment and loyalty of our employees.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any incident of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that have significantly
affected the Group relating to employment, occupational health or
labor standards.

B1.1 Total Employees Headcount

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2018 2017

By Gender Headcount  Headcount
Female 1,075 1,088
Male 945 755
Total 2,020 1,843
By Rank Headcount  Headcount
Senior 81 74
Staff 364 428
Worker 1,575 1,341
Total 2,020 1,843

B1.2 Employee Average Turnover Rate

By Gender 2017/2018
Male 6.97%
Female 5.89%
By Rank

Senior 2.11%
Staff 2.64%
Worker 7.66%
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ASPECT B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

As a company caring for our employees, we are committed to
maintaining a healthy and safe work environment in compliance
with all relevant Hong Kong and PRC laws and regulations. We have
included related guidelines in the Dongguan Plant Employee Handbook
and posted Hong Kong Labour Department Occupational Health
and Safety Guidelines on the Hong Kong Notice Board to educate
employees about Occupational Safety and Health concepts. In addition,
we have employed an Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) Officer
in the Dongguan Plant to handle safety issues measures, aiming to
reduce industrial accidents and injuries. During the year, there was no
serious work-related injury throughout the Group’s operations.

B2.1 Number of work-related fatalities 0 person
Number of work-related injuries 2 cases
B2.2 Lost days due to work injuries 571 days

Remark: The two work-related injuries were handled and related issues
were resolved.

ASPECT B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
We consider the professional growth of our employees to be one of the
keys to sustainable business growth. We continue to promote a culture
conducive to learning and offer career development and training
programs to all levels of employees to ensure they are well-prepared to
perform their duties through paying for or subsidizing them to attend
seminars, forums or exhibitions. In addition, we have a Company
Training Sponsorship Scheme to encourage our employees to enroll
in further education courses to support their career development.
With prior approval from the Group, course and examination fees for
further education may be subsidised or reimbursed upon attainment
of successful academic qualifications.

As for newly recruited employees, we have a training program in

place, including orientation and on-the-job training to ensure they can
properly perform their duties in line with the Group’s expectations.
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B3.1 Percentage of Employees Trained

By Gender 2017/2018
Male 92%
Female 94%

B3.2 Average Training Hours
Average Hours per head

By Gender Total Hours per annum
Male 25,266 Hours 27.00 Hours
Female 27,487 Hours 25.19 Hours
Total

52,753 Hours

ASPECT B4: LABOR STANDARDS

We are committed to protecting human rights and comply with all
relevant Hong Kong and PRC laws and regulations concerning human
rights. We have a zero-tolerance policy towards the use of forced labor
and child labor in our business operations and require our vendors
to accept and observe our Supplier Code of Conduct, which forbids
forced and child labor. We will immediately terminate a vendor if it is
found to be employing forced or child laborers. Suga complies with
the People’s Republic of China (PRC) and Hong Kong (HK) laws and
regulations concerning labor standards as stated in Aspect B1 above.

ASPECT B5: POLICIES ON MANAGING
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RISK IN OUR
SUPPLY CHAIN

We have business relationships with suppliers all around the globe
that provide us with a wide variety of raw materials, equipment and
services. The Group has set up policies and procedures to manage
its supply chain for fulfillment of its corporate social responsibilities
and to provide good quality products to customers. It also has in
place a complete supplier quality management mechanism to control
quality accreditation and carry out inspection and factory supervision
of products.
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In order to manage environmental and social risk, the Group’s
Dongguan Plant has incorporated the 1SO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015,
QC 080000:2017 and ISO 13485:2016 accredited procedures in the
management of its supply chain. The supply chain policy has specific
supplier requirements on business ethics, quality standards and
public responsibilities for the process of supplier approval, evaluation,

strategic supplier development and materials procurement.

Moreover, the Group has achieved RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous
Substance Directives) and WEEE (Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment Directives) compliance certifications and complies with
REACH (Registration,
Chemicals) standards for our products. Furthermore, we conduct RoHS

Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of
testing for incoming raw materials to ensure they are free of hazardous
substances.

In the future, SUGA will continue to fulfil its commitment to
environmental protection and also support sustainable development at
both the local and global level.

Supply Chain Management Practices
SUGA has well-established procedures for supplier selection and
evaluation. New suppliers are required to undergo an evaluation

process which considers their technical capabilities, quality and
sustainability performance and only suppliers thus qualified can be
included in our Approved Vendor List. For existing suppliers, periodic
verification processes and site audits are performed to ensure their
continued compliance with the Group’s Supply Chain Policy. A vendor
unable to comply with our supply chain requirements is deleted from
our Approved Vendors List and is subsequently not permitted to

provide us with raw materials or services.
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ASPECT B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has established policies and practices to ensure its
The
management is responsible for monitoring the Group’s policies and

operations comply with applicable laws and regulations.
practices ensuring they are in line with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, and that those policies and practices are regularly
reviewed for adequacy. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought as necessary to the attention of the relevant
employees and operating units. In addition, we have implemented
practices to fulfill product safety requirements at the product
design stage. The Group has also established a policy to obtain any
certification required to ensure the finished goods are environmentally
friendly, healthy and safe. In addition, the Group is committed to
ensuring that our products comply with relevant laws and regulations

of the countries where these products are sold.

We have established Manufacturing Execution Systems (MES) to
enhance the product quality management and product traceability/
tracking.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any incident
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that has had a significant
impact related to its product responsibilities.

Customer Complaint Policy

The Group has established a Customer Complaint Policy to ensure that
customer complaints are promptly and efficiently handled. The policy
includes a provision for the concerned parties to work together to find
the reasons for any defects and responsibilities and then re-work the
rejected finished goods. At the same time, we regularly communicate
with customers to collect their opinions.
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B6.1 Percentage of Total Products Sold or Shipped
Subject to Recall for Safety and Health Reasons
No products have been sold or shipped which were subject to recall
for safety and health reasons during this financial year.

B6.2 Number of Complaints Received Related to

Products and Services
No complaints have been received for the products sold and services
rendered during this financial year.

Aspects B6.3 & B6.5 Intellectual Property Policy and

Customer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

The Group has a strict policy in place to sign a formal Non-Disclosure
Agreement to protect customers’ intellectual property (IP). Also, the
Group has applied for intellectual property rights certification for its
own products and designs, thus its standard practice is not to infringe
on the IP rights of other parties.

Aspect B6.4 Quality Assurance Procedures and

Recall Procedures

The Group has established quality assurance procedures to ensure that
incoming raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods meet
the products’ quality specifications and comply with environmentally-
friendly, health and safety requirements. At the same time the Group
has established recall procedures to handle recalled products.

ASPECT B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

SUGA is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. We have a zero-tolerance policy regarding bribery and
corruption in any form or at any level in association with any aspect
of the Group's activities. Our Employee Code of Conduct is specified
in the SUGA Employee Handbook which clearly states that SUGA shall
not tolerate any illegal or unethical acts. Any employee in violation
of the Code of Conduct would be appropriately disciplined, including
termination of employment in serious cases.
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Our Code of Conduct includes the terms for compliance with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, as well as provisions for Soliciting
Advantages, Accepting Advantages, Offering Advantages, Accepting
Entertainment, Use of Proprietary Information, Confidentiality,
Handling of Conflict of Interest, Misuse of the Group’s Assets
and Resources, Loans and Outside Employment which are also in
compliance with the Hong Kong Anti-Corruption Ordinance. Our
employees are regularly advised of relevant policies and guidelines,
including any updates or revisions. In addition, we regularly arrange
for the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption to
hold seminars to educate our employees about anti-corruption laws

and concepts.

The Group was not aware of any breach of laws and regulations
relating to bribery that have had a significant impact on its business.

Aspect B7.1 Number of Concluded Corruption-
Related Legal Cases

2017/2018 2016/2017
Number of concluded legal cases

related to corruption 0 case 0 case

ASPECT B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

SUGA is committed to participating in volunteer activities and making
charitable donations in order to benefit society. In fulfilling our
CSR mission, our employees have participated in various community
SUGA
remains committed to participate in volunteer works and continuously

activities and made donations during this financial year.

contribute donations in the future. In addition to activities aimed at
bettering society, more recently SUGA has extended its efforts to
worthwhile humane causes by donating both money and pet food to
selected owners of PRC private animal shelters and kennels for stray
cats and dogs.
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We have participated in the following community activities and have HEMERAFBRFEANL B THEEE KE
been accredited awards and certifications during this financial year. BEBIBRRE

AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS

RIFRBE
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service 5 Years+ Caring Company logo
BAMERGHE 5S4 Plus [7 57 & B 12 4R 56 J—

™

Hong Kong Productivity Council (HKPC) The 8th Hong Kong Outstanding

BERBEENRER Corporate Citizenship Logo HY
FEEARLEELAREFER
Enterprise Category
EE AR -

Agency for Volunteer Service Hong Kong Community Volunteers 2017
EEITEZERR (Corporate Member)

07 BETE (D XEE)
The Highest Participation Award —
Silver Award, Achieved 507 Service

Hours !.mnmzunu:a-l
=2 EERBRE - FRS071E RS T e
NG
Promoting Happiness Index Foundation “Happiness-at-Work Promotional P
and Hong Kong Productivity Council Scheme” .
(HKPC) (B0 T4 1 ) 3 8 2t 1 ' "
BAERAREIESIEHESRBEBSEE  “Happy Company” 2018 Label J -t
ki o) 2018 A D1 % | 1E 5% :
e ——
-:n-e_-_:___'_—-
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ACTIVITIES

& E

Community Wofoo Social Enterprises and the Water Supply
@ Department
MEdEEXRKEE
Hong Kong Water Race 2018
& B KB EE [2018
Community Agency for Volunteer Service
it @ BEBIERRE
AVS Charity Walk and Run for Volunteering 2017
AVS 3 1 & 17 %2017

OTHER ACTIVITIES

HithiE 5

Community The Community Chest of Hong Kong Mooncakes for Charity
vy YN NS T

Community The Community Chest of Hong Kong Love Teeth Day 2017/2018
ot ERERGE N ® 5 H2017/2018

DONATION & SPONSORSHIP

BERRER

Sponsorship World Vision Hong Kong
2 B BEARERERSY

Child Sponsorship

B & R E AT E
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DONATION & SPONSORSHIP

RRREB

Sponsorship
% B)

Sponsorship

=)

Outward Bound Hong Kong
EEIIMRIRER

BOCHK Outward Bound Corporate Challenge 2018

IR BB INE E 442018

PRC Private Animal Shelters and Kennels for Stray

Cats and Dogs

AR M T AR B0 P B AL 2 B W fbe o b K MR P

Sponsorship and Donation of Pet Food

BOHESREVRIE

OTHER DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIP

Hitim ;% E B

Scholarship
=4

Sponsorship

=)

Sponsorship

=gy

Sponsorship
& B

The Chinese University of Hong Kong
BB XA

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

EBB AR

Vocational Training Council

BXI®RB

Design for Change Hong Kong
EEABTHHE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_
pwec

To the Shareholders of Suga International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Suga International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on

pages 96 to 215, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2018;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

a summary of significant accounting policies.
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. We considered “Impairment
of inventories” as key audit matter that was addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on the matter.
Key Audit Matter
Impairment of inventories

Refer to note 17 “Inventories” and note 4 “Critical accounting estimates
and judgements” to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2018, the Group held net inventories amounting to
HK$268,742,000. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value (“NRV”) in the consolidated financial statements. The
cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are aged
and damaged, or become obsolete, or if their selling prices have been
declined.

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of inventories by

considering the ageing profile, inventory obsolescence and estimated
selling price of individual inventory items.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)
Key Audit Matter (continued)
Impairment of inventories (continued)

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based on the
estimated selling price less selling expenses, taking into account
historical experience of selling products of similar nature and
expectation of future sales based on current market condition.

Management consistently applies a provisioning methodology for slow
moving inventories based on inventory ageing and makes specific
provision for long aged inventories. They also conduct periodic review
on inventory obsolescence, including performance of periodic inventory
counts and review of holding period for individual inventory items.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the balance to the
financial position of the Group, and the significant judgement and
estimates involved in determining the provision for impairment of
inventories.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood and validated the control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures in estimating the NRV of the
inventories and conducting periodic review on inventory obsolescence.

We observed management’s inventory counts to identify whether there
is any damaged or obsolete inventories.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile of
individual inventory item by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondences and invoices.

We tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage or sales of selected
inventory items, obtained through the usage or sales reports subsequent
to the year end as a basis to identify inventory obsolescence. Where
there are no subsequent usage or sales of the respective items after the
year end, we discussed with management their assessment on estimated
future utilisation, corroborating explanations with the inventory ageing,
sales orders and marketability of the relevant finished goods by using
our industry knowledge.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (continued)

We also tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items,
by comparing the selling price subsequent to the year end, against the
carrying values of these individual finished goods. Where there are
no subsequent sales of the respective finished goods after the year
end, we discussed with management as to the realisable value of the
products, corroborating explanations with the inventory ageing, sales
orders, historical margins, and current market conditions by using our
industry knowledge.

We consider the provision for obsolete or slow moving inventories as
at 31 March 2018 was supportable by the available evidences.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3L #% BY B ¥ 5

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Po Wah, Pauline.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEEEAERR

As at 31 March 2018 R=—FE—/1E=HA=+—H

Notes
b7 &7

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE
Land use rights + 3 A A 6
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 7
Investment property KEYE 8
Intangible assets EBEEE 9
Goodwill EES 10
Interests in associates REEE QA 2w 12
Deferred income tax assets BEFTB A E 22
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENKEE 4
Bond investment BEHFEE 15
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFETLABZZ

profit or loss B 75 & = 6
Other non-current prepayments H b 3E BN BA 78 1 5018 8
Current assets nEBEE
Inventories FE 7
Trade and other receivables EWE SRR K&

H b JE U 5K IE 18

Loan receivable B e W sk IE 19
Tax recoverable A W [B] 77 18
Amounts due from associates JE W Bt & R B SR IR 12
Time deposits over three months 2 18 = & A & 7E B3 F K 20
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBReFEY 20
Total assets BEEHE
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 21
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEMERARE 22
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31 March 31 March
2018 2017
SEEN ==
=A=+—H R
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT F& T
51,994 50,484
297,178 276,081
— 10,200

3,319 986
3,949 3,949
3,623 3,804
1,782 1,086
6,242 16,439

— 7,711

3,757 4,838
3,074 =
374,918 375,578
268,742 196,149
233,201 231,784
2,500 6,496
1,097 591
4,149 3,250
15,500 =
165,105 223,867
690,294 662,137
1,065,212 1,037,715
3,759 6,678
504 453
4,263 7,131




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REBEERER

As at 31 March 2018 R=—F—/\FEF=HA=+—H

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Income tax payable
Bank borrowings

Total liabilities

EQUITY

Equity attributable to the owners of the
Company

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 215 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2018 and were signed

on its behalf.

Ng Chi Ho
REX
Director

EF

The notes on pages 103 to 215 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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31 March 31 March
2018 2017
—E-NF — %
ZA=+—H =R
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b & T8 FAT
23 258,093 245,013
6,096 6,762
21 65,155 108,337
329,344 360,112
333,607 367,243
24 28,214 28,100
26 122,940 95,063
26 578,986 547,050
730,140 670,213
1,465 259
731,605 670,472
1,065,212 1,037,715

FIE2ISEM AR A FIFHMEKE R —N\FER

A-ttRAEESEgHE YATIESFKAR

#=E:
Ma Fung On
BER
Director
EZE
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FalaER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B2 =F—/\F= A=+ —HIF&E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
it Ti&x F& T
Revenue W 25 27 1,510,504 1,414,103
Cost of sales 5 & A A 28 (1,279,356) (1,190,503)
Gross profit EF 231,148 223,600
Distribution and selling expenses DEHREEEA 28 (46,690) (42,237)
General and administrative expenses —REITBREEREER 28 (106,188) (106,848)
Other income E g A 29 1,798 665
Other gains/(losses), net Hihdezs /(E51E)  F5 30 2,866 (13,508)
Operating profit BEEF 82,934 61,672
Finance income BE U A 37 4,204 7,775
Finance costs Bl & K AR 317 (5.179) (4,579)
Finance (costs)/income — net A& (R A,/ A — 37 (975) 3,196
Share of losses of associates iR RSN = 12 (2,375) (1,253)
Profit before income tax B FT 15 %4 Bl @ A 79,584 63,615
Income tax expense FT 158 A > 32 (6,047) (3,572)
Profit for the year FREF 73,537 60,043
Profit/(loss) attributable to: SEEBERNUTAL
mF (5 18)
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ SN 74,111 61,745
Non-controlling interests FEIE I M= (574) (1,702)
73,537 60,043
Earnings per share for profit attributable 4 P2 & # A A & {5 & 7
to the owners of the Company during " & % & 5
the year
— Basic (HK cents) — EARGE) 33 26.29 22.12
— Diluted (HK cents) — #BEEW) 33 26.11 22.04
The notes on pages 103 to 215 are an integral part of these E103E215BE 2T ALA B HRzT— D o

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FSEEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=-F—/\F=HA=+—HI FE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF e
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iFza Ti#&xT FHET
Profit for the year FREF 73,537 60,043
Other comprehensive income/(loss): H{Z2HEW A (EB#E) :
Items that may be reclassified to profit — AIGEE# 7B EEam ZHH -
or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BEBINTBRARFTE S
translation of foreign subsidiaries E N =% 37,401 (27,559)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHEENBEE 2
financial assets NEEEE 14 (10,197) (239)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for ~ FREME2E U A (EE)
the year 27,204 (27,798)
Total comprehensive income for the HFRZHEIXAEEE
year 100,741 32,245
Profit/(loss) attributable to: BA(SE)BRER:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ SN 101,315 33,947
Non-controlling interests FE 12 ) 15 e 2 (574) (1,702)
100,741 32,245

The notes on pages 103 to 215 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEESEIR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z ==

= GE= 5 = 1 —(shisy

Attributable to the owners of the Company

AATEAEANER

Non-

Share Other Retained  controlling
capital reserves earnings interests Total

I #2 i
[ Hiti it 48 REEF B k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FHET FHET
Balance at 1 April 2016 REZB—A"EMA—AZ&H 27,712 113,246 526,792 (419) 667,331
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(ER) = = 61,745 (1,702) 60,043

Exchange difference arising on BE NGB DR PTE &

translation of foreign subsidiaries fEHE% - (27,559) — — (27,559)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHHERBEEEZ

financial assets RTEERE — (239) = = (239)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(EE)WABE — (27,798) 61,745 (1,702) 32,245
Transactions with owners: HEEEAZHNXS:

Employee share option scheme: EEBRERE:
Proceeds from shares issued upon P17 B R B B BT R D)
exercise of options ZET{3 A 388 8,113 = — 8,501

Value of employee services EEHWQZEE — 1,601 — — 1,601

Options lapsed KRB ERE — (99) 99 - -
Contribution from minority shareholders > &% & 1 & = = = 2,380 2,380
Dividends paid BRRE = = (41,586) = (41,586)
Balance at 31 March 2017 R=F—tE=A=+—-H2z

& iR 28,100 95,063 547,050 259 670,472
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(E8) - - 74,111 (574) 73,537
Exchange difference arising on BEFIINETBRARFTEE

translation of foreign subsidiaries bE & =% — 37,401 — — 37,401
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHHERBEEZ

financial assets AR € — (10,197) — - (10,197)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  ZEWKRA /(F1R) A HE - 27,204 74,111 (574) 100,741
Transactions with owners: HEREAAZHENR S
Employee share option scheme: EEBEREE:

Proceeds from shares issued upon RAT ﬁfﬂﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬂ}rﬂﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁ

exercise of options 2B 114 2,292 - — 2,406

Options lapsed KM E Hx $E - (142) 142 - —
Change in ownership interest in a TERKEEFENHE D

subsidiary without change of control BERERE (ﬁﬁ?ﬂ)

(Note 11) - (1,477) — 1,780 303
Dividends paid B E - - (42,317) - (42,317)
Balance at 31 March 2018 R-B—-NF=A=+—-HZ

£y 03 28,214 122,940 578,986 1,465 731,605

The notes on pages 103 to 215 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

ARERER

n‘l'.R
For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z=-F—/\F=HA=+—HI FE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —+tF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
iFza Ti#&xT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REZBEzHELHKEE
Cash generated from operations REXBEEZRE 37 52,498 108,015
Interest paid B H A (5.179) (4,832)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEBNEH (6,960) (7,024)
Mainland China corporate income tax B AR B A 1 2 TS A
paid (1,147) (680)
Net cash generated from operating KEEBEE 2RSS FE
activities 39,212 95,479
Cash flows from investing activities REFHZIRELFEE
Additions of property, plant and NEWME  BEREHE
equipment (17,240) (56,479)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME BERSKHZ
plant and equipment B 45 ¢ 18 37 20 205
Additions of intangible assets //J\Eﬁﬂ/’§F (3,319) —3
Increase in interests in associates RN E sl (2,194) (1,181)
Increase in amount due from an JE U — i B = N B R I8 35 0
associate (899) (2,819)
Repayment of loan receivable BEERKER 7,200 6,464
Interest received B2 4,204 7,775
Consideration paid to non-controlling S'ZH??H IR 2 (B
interests 11 (657) —
Proceeds from disposal of bond HEBHKEMSRE
investment 8,034 —
Increase in time deposits over three 8B =8 A 2 F H 17 ZE N
months (15,500) —
Payment for settlement of derivative HEENTESREEMNK
financial assets - (2,397)
Purchase of financial assets carried at BERATEFAERZ
fair value through profit or loss WEEE — (4,951)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBMACEEFHE (20,351) (53,383)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

njﬁ 1¥i‘§E:Lf{.§Eiéa%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B2 =F—/\F= A=+ —HIF&E

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M it Ti#&xT FHET
Cash flows from financing activities M EFZEFSHELAE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RAIT/E S RIA 362,700 316,850
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEETEE (408,801) (313,964)
Proceeds from shares issued BT 2 FT 15 K18 2,406 8,501
Contribution from non-controlling FF 12 I 14 4 2 P 1S HY B BA
interests — 2,380
Dividends paid B A (42,317) (41,586)
Net cash used in financing activities BB FEFMAZRLSEHE 37 (86,012) (27,819)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ﬁ%&fﬁ/\gfﬁw
equivalents w18 s (67,151) 14,277
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rm@% =2
rates 8,389 (15,437)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of R&RRESEEY - F 1
year 223,867 225,027
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year RE& KRB ELEEY » FK 165,105 223,867

The notes on pages 103 to 215 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability in Bermuda on
28 September 2001. The Company’s shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 September 2002.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, manufacturing and
sales of electronic products and other products. The Group has
operations mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macao.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
inclusion at fair value of available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and
investment property which is carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Amendments to existing standards
adopted by the Group
The following amendments to existing standards are
mandatory for the Group’s financial year beginning
on or after 1 April 2017 and have been adopted
in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12

BB ERFE125% (BFT4)
Amendments to HKAS 7

EE G EAETR(EFTAR)
Amendments to HKFRS 12

EAEY B HRE LR FE125% (BFTA)

LR

The adoption of these amendments to existing
standards has no material effect on the preparation
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(b) New and amended standards and (b) K RN Z FFET R AZ S
interpretations not yet adopted FTERIRZE
The following new and amended standards and AR E] RS T A R 2
interpretations have been issued but are not effective EEMBER-T—LFMHA—
for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2017 and H 7 88 2 BA UG 5 1 R AR A
have not been early adopted by the Group: BAREE W EIRRHA

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

RTH B ZE&MR
ZEEHMEN
Amendments to Annual Annual improvements 2014 — 2016 1 January 2018
Improvements Projects HKFRS 1 cycle
and HKAS 28
BB HEER B9 R FERE—ZT—NFZE —E-NE—H—H
ERGERERBRIFE —T-RFEH
SR B (B R A)
Amendments to HKFRS 1 First time adoption of HKFRS 1 January 2018
ERAVBRSENERUETR) BREMNEBEUBEHRSER —E-\$—HFH
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement of 1 January 2018
share-based payment transactions
ERVBRESENE2RUETAR) UROHAEBROHNRZXZHH —E-\$—HF—H
DEREE
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 financial 1 January 2018

instruments with HKFRS 4
insurance contracts

|45 (1EFTA) BREBUBBRELENFISRRBREE —T—-N\F—-—HA—H
—(FERE BB R EEFENR

BRI REER

TRITHE
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
8 B 1% s ERIE R eRMIA —E-N\F—-H 8
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with 1 January 2018
customers
8 B % s RSB 155% KEEPAHZEA —E-N\F—-H- 8
Amendment to HKFRS 15 Clarification to HKFRS15 1 January 2018
EEMBRELEBISHKUEFTAR) BIFE B Y B R EERFE155 —E—/\F¥—H—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i %5 3 = MY 5E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HEZgSHEHME(E
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(b) New and amended standards and (b) K RN Z FFET R AZ S
interpretations not yet adopted ETEAIR2FE(HE)
(Continued)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

RTHBEESZ®&ME
ZFEHBER
Amendments to HKAS 28 Investments in associates and joint 1 January 2018
ventures
EB G ERIF 285 (BT A) REERAERENRE —E-)\¥—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of investment property 1 January 2018
BE G ERF4058 (B FTA) HEREDE —T-N\F—H—H
HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency transactions and 1 January 2018
advance consideration
EEBRYBREREEES) HIEXFRANKE —T-N\F—H—H
ZEE229R
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative 1 January 2019
compensation
FEMBHREERESR(BITA) ABAMEMNIENERSE —E-NA¥—H—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
B SR F165% HE —T-AF—A—H
HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax 1 January 2019
treatments
ZE(ERYBREZREBEZER) FMEHEARENTHEEM —T-AF—A—H
ZEE235%
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2021
BB I SR BT A —T-_—%—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution of assets between To be announced by
HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or joint HKICPA
venture
78 B % s R 105% K REEFHHBERARALERAZ GHEEGMAGEM
&8 g LR 285 (BRI &) MZEEHEIIEA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEZHBRHBE(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New and amended standards and

21 BB E(H)
m)ﬁ*ﬁMZﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ

interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

The Group's assessment of the impact of these new
standards and interpretations is set out below:

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting
and a new impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and is expecting the following impact from
the adoption of the new standard on 1 April 2018:

The financial assets currently held by the Group
include:

o debt instruments currently classified as loans
and receivables which would continue to be
measured at amortised cost and hence there
will be no change to the accounting for these
assets;

o equity instruments currently classified as
available-for-sale (“AFS”) for which a fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") election is available;

o equity investments currently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL") which will
continue to be measured on the same basis
under HKFRS 9.
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2

108

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

Impact (Continued)

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the
new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of these financial assets. However,
gains or losses realised on the sale of financial assets
at FVOCI will no longer be transferred to profit or
loss on sale, but instead reclassified below the line
from the available-for-sale financial assets fair value
reserve to retained earnings. During the year ended
31 March 2018, no gains or losses were recognised
in profit or loss in relation to disposal of available-

for-sale financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the
account for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss and the Group
does not have any such liabilities. The derecognition
rules have been transferred from HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and

have not been changed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEZHBRHBE(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New and amended standards and

21 BB E(H)
(b) KR 2 FTET R A2 15

interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses ("ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses
as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS
15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, lease
receivables, loan commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts. Based on the assessments
undertaken up to date, the Group does not expect
the new model to have any material impact on the
recognition of the Group’s credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption
of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group
intends to adopt the standard using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised
in retained earnings as of 1 April 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and

interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts and
the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying
the new standard on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and has identified the following
areas that are likely to be affected:

o revenue from service — the application of
HKFRS 15 may result in the identification of
separate performance obligations which could
affect the timing of the recognition of revenue;

o accounting for certain costs incurred in
fulfilling a contract — certain costs which are
currently expensed may need to be recognised
as an asset under HKFRS 15; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(HE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New and amended standards and

21 REEE(E)
(b) KR Z BT ET R AZ &

interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

o rights of return — HKFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the balance sheet of the right
to recover the goods from the customer and
the refund obligation.

Based on the assessments undertaken up to date, the
Group does not expect the new standard to have any
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Date of adoption by Group

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group
intends to adopt the standard using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised
in retained earnings as of 1 April 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated balance sheet, as
the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial liability
to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and

interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)
HKFRS 16, “Leases” (Continued)

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$7,831,000. However, the
Group has not yet determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the recognition of an
asset and a liability for future payments and how
this will affect the Group’s profit and classification
of cash flows.

Management is in the process of quantifying
the potential effects of this new standard in its
consolidated financial statements.

Date of adoption by Group

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will
not restate comparative amounts for the year prior
to first adoption.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective and that
would be expected to have a material impact on the
entity in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation

@

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net asset acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b)

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between the fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity.

Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity. When the Group
ceases to have control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights.
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and

Investments in

the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group's investment in an associate includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group's
share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
income is

recognised in other comprehensive

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an
associate’ in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. The
amounts reported by associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity interests in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors collectively who make
strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Foreign currency translation

2
(a)
(b)
(c)
118

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

entity operates (the “functional currency”).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated

at the dates of the transactions); and

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18

2

BEEETHEME(E)
24 HEBE
(a) HEEFMEHFE W

AEBBETEERZMBRE
Pl REARAEHEERER
METERERRBRACE
BN E® ) RFTEEMN -
REMBMERURDE 28
ERRAEEZZ2HRERET
(GB)IZ25 -

(b) XHZREH

(c)

SINERZFRRHEBERZE
RN EMABHEAZHERE
RNEER - AEERXHRIE
FHREEXRBENINEINEER
BEEMBBEELZERIR
o HREE RS RER -

EBEETAHF
EEETHANEEKE2R
EETRAZER(ZHHES
ARG 2 B9 2 EER B
BRR - BATHFRABERZ
RE

ih BEERBERMEIE

ERAA BEWEE
aERGEAZKTE
B E

(i BhmERIBARSZH -
RTHEERRE - ML
FHELIFZERSH
HBTEXRZBEURRZ
BRI - EILIE
T WA R TR
RHBEBRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)
(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Disposal of foreign operation and

partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation differences
are reattributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the group’s
ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

2

120

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land interests classified as finance leases and all
other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance leases commence
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
of other assets are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate costs less residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
Leasehold land classified as 38-48 years

finance leases (over the lease

terms)
Buildings 35-48 years
Leasehold improvements 5-10 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 WME BERRMEE)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use. This includes direct costs of construction as well
as interest expense capitalised during the period of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
will cease and the construction in progress is transferred
to appropriate categories within property, plant and
equipment when the construction activities necessary to
prepare the assets for their intended use are completed.
No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Up to the date when an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property carried at fair value, the Group
depreciates the property and recognises any impairment
losses that have occurred. Any difference at that date
between the carrying amount of the property and its fair
value in the revaluation is included in revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

2

122

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In such cases,
the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if
they were finance leases. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value, representing
open market value determined at each reporting date
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes
in fair values are recorded in the consolidated income
statement as part of a valuation gain or loss in “Other
gains/(losses), net”.

Land use rights
Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Land use rights are
amortised using the straight-line method over the period
of the land use rights.

Intangible assets

(a) Customer relationship

Contractual customer relationship acquired in a
business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The contractual customer
relationship has a finite useful life and is subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the customer

relationship of five years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

Product development

Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique products controlled by the Group are
recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the
software product so that it will be available for
use;

o Management intends to complete the product

and use or sell it;

o There is an ability to use or sell the product;

o It can be demonstrated how the product will
generate probable future economic benefits;

o Adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the product are available; and

o The expenditure attributable to the product
during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as
part of the software product include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

2

124

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Product development (Continued)
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

Development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of two
years.

2.9 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified
net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

210 FMBEEMRE

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life,
or intangible assets not ready to use, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested at least annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

@

(1)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables, amount due from an associate,
time deposits and cash and cash equivalents
in the consolidated balance sheet (Notes 2.13

and 2.14).

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12

months of the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and measurement

211 I BEE(ER)
(b) EERIHE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss” category are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value

securities classified as available-for-sale

adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and measurement

(c)

(Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the

Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

(d) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
recognised only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can

be reliably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEETHHREME(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
(d) Impairment of financial assets

211 I BEE(ER)
(d) BEEEREE)

(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For equity investments classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in the
separate consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the separate consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the separate consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i %5 3 = MY 5E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.12 Inventories 212 FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at
call with banks which have a maturity of less than three
months.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Trade and other payables 216 ENEBESRMA R HittEAFRIE

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and its
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

132 SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18

2

EEXEHHRRBUEGR)

2.19 BIHA % 3 %E PR 15 Wi
MR AR B R B IA -
PERGERSRER - BMER
Hfth 2 T A B R o B A 3
RZBEEAM BIBBETD AR E
tEERAREERERER -

(a

BT 5f B 5 #
BB A XAARRE ~ H
MBAR R EBEAREER
ELRRRBWAMEBRRRE
BHERMIEERM PR
REESE - EEETEHME
RBREROIAIELRBZBER
AHERRE - EREEBRT
BB THEHE 2 HER
FTIEREME -

(b) EELFEH

I = £
BIEFRSHRIIREERBEN
MERAREERABRNGSR
MBEBRRNOEEEREHE R
ZH 0 AREIRRER - A
WELEMFHIELB L
RRH (RBEAHEBEINEESK
BE MERZIRZUEBERZE
SR ERDE M EE - Al
SRR o RIEFTS B TIAR
HEADEMAEREMR I
BHRERBREECHER
BESBNELEMBEHRAER
BRAZRE(REAR)ERE -

5



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZEEEHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

2.19 B HA &% 4E %E P 15 #i (48)

(b) B Fri3# (&)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only
when there is an agreement in place that gives
the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i %5 3 = MY 5E

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax 2.19 B HR X% 3B %E FR 19 i (48)

(Continued)

(c) Offsetting (c) B
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset fied 5 F] 5% 1 #0774 7 LA B EA 7%
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset BEERHMBAHREGE - 2
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and REFMSTHEE R BEEER
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities MBHESRE B TR LS
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation B IER T B B TR
authority on either the taxable entity or different AN BB MERER
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle AREFFEHEERBERMN
the balances on a net basis. K iH o

2.20Employee benefits 220EEEF

(a) Pension obligations (a) BUh2EMHL
The Group operates a number of defined AEBARESRYE TEREME
contribution pension schemes for its employees. KREEEE - RUKGEIZE
The pension plans are funded by payments RRABEERANE B 2 #
from employees and by the Group. The Group's oo REEEIRE S B R HIE
contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund A& & 5T 2 6 B 5% 59 98 il 1%
Scheme established under the Hong Kong Mandatory NIRBFTEER 2R ELE
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are expensed as Rl c HEEMAAEE &
incurred. The assets are held separately from those EHABE  LHEBENET
of the Group and managed by related independent BXERKEBEER

professional fund managers.

For employees in Mainland China, the Group ZERFBRAMZEES  KN&
contributes on a monthly basis to various defined EREBEERF 2ETES
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by Lt - B ARA BT RE BT E
relevant municipal and provincial governments based {E2 218 & S BUR K48 A 5T
on specified percentages of the relevant employees’ SR - RILEFTEIT - B
monthly salaries. The municipal and provincial MREBRNABEERBRA
governments undertake to assume the retirement kRABRBRNEE 2BBERIKE
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired MEAE - RIELERI - KE
employees under these plans and the Group has EERAEENEEE—FE
no further obligation for post-retirement benefits o MZEFTEED ZH#HR
beyond the contributions made. Contributions to REERIERS

these plans are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEZHBRHBE(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.20Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation

2.20& 58 % (&)
(b) IR 1517 7 5 B

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

i) including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

ii) excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

i) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.20Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Share-based compensation

(c)

(Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-market
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investments in subsidiaries undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity.

Employee leave entitlements

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employees’ entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20Employee benefits (Continued) 220EEEFI(E)

(d) Other benefits
Other directors’ and employees’ obligations
are recorded as a liability and charged to the
consolidated income statement when the Group is
contractually obliged or when there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations is small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.22 Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and when specific criteria have been met. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

The Group manufactures and sells a range of electronic
and other products in the wholesale market. Sales of
goods are recognised when a group entity has delivered
products to the customer, the customer has accepted the
products, the amount of sales can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EET:HEME(HE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24Interest income 2.24F B U A

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loans is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

2.25Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.26 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor), including upfront payment made for leasehold
land and land use rights, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.
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Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.28Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise liabilities
for financial guarantee at inception, but performs a liability
adequacy test at each reporting date by comparing its net
liability regarding the financial guarantee with the amount
that would be required if the financial guarantee would
result in a present legal or constructive obligation.

If the liability is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

2.29Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders in case of final dividend and the
Company's directors in case of interim dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s performance.

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macao and its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
HK$, United States dollars (“US$”) and Renminbi
("RMB”). Foreign currency risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
an entity’s functional currency. As HK$ is pegged
against US$, management considers that the Group
is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to RMB. Management monitors foreign
currency exchange exposure and will take measures
to minimise the currency translation risk. As at
31 March 2018, the Group has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency risk.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, if both HK$ and
US$ had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant, the
post-tax profit for each year would have changed
mainly as a result of foreign exchange (losses)/gains
on translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies of the relevant
group companies, as follows:

Bt 3% #R AR B B

B 7% 3 Bex B IR

31 BMBEAKBEE
AEBEBAZLBHBEER )
ERR BerERAFENEE
B EERREABDELEAR - &
EEMBEERTET B ERRES
EHAZEBMTE UREREHA
EMEBE I BETNTE -

(i) ZPEE/EfE
AEEETREED PEAL
FORFIEE  MEXRHRS -
BERBBEIENBT X
(EXDRARBETARE]D
BE MNRRZBEXRHED
BREENRABIEIAER
ZHHEREER  S8EL
SNEE RBR o B RAE T B ST
B BEEERRAEEEEN
AREEEINERR - EEE
BL 2251 O e 0 A BRER$E B
RELRBREERE R-F
—NE=ZA=1t—H &AKH
BLEE B EM S TELEH
SN R B o

RZFB—N\FR-F=FF=
A=+—8 MBTRETRL
ARBBEFEBME% M
FARMERTE  SFEZ

ZRHE S E QRSN
HECEREERABELRE
HSOBER) /WamT:

2018 2017
S =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TBE

Post-tax profit (decrease)/increase B 7 12 a8 A
CRL 2 /18 hn

— Strengthen 5% — FH{E5%

— Weakened 5% — B 1E5%

(10,359) (13,196)
10,359 13,196
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for the loan receivable,
time deposits and cash and cash equivalents,
details of which are disclosed in Notes 19 and 20
respectively.

The Group's interest rate risk primarily relates to its
bank borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group currently does not hedge its interest
rate risk. However, management monitors the related
interest rate risk exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk exposure should
the need arise. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of borrowings are disclosed in Note 21.

The Group has no fixed interest rate borrowings.
Therefore it does not have any fair value interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, if the interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower than the prevailing interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$288,000 (2017: HK$480,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBEREEGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BMEEAKEZEE)
(iii) Credit risk (iii) 15 E & B2
Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group's EERBREEMNEEETE - K
financial assets are trade and other receivables, SECHBEEREWE SR

available-for-sale financial assets, bond investment,
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, amount due from an associate and cash at
banks. The amounts of those assets stated in the
consolidated balance sheet represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The Group's credit risk is concentrated on a number
of major and long established customers. Trade
receivables from the top five customers accounted
for approximately 45% (2017: 35%) of the Group's
total trade receivables. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories and to limit
the amount of credit exposure to any individual
customer. The Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivable at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group’s
past experience in collection of trade receivables falls
within the recorded allowances. In order to minimise
credit risk to the Group, the Group has certain non-
recourse factoring arrangements with banks to cover
the credit risk.

The credit risk on bond investment and cash at banks
are limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. Transactions in relation to available-
for-sale financial assets are only carried out with
financial institutions of high reputation. The Group
has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure
to any one financial institution.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

For loans and receivables, amount due from an
associate and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, the Group regularly monitors the
financial positions of these companies/counterparties
to assess their recoverability. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. The Group
manages its liquidity risk by controlling the level
of inventories, closely monitoring the turnover
days of receivables, monitoring its working capital
requirements and keeping credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's bank facilities, time deposits and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B bsEE (A
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BMEEKEEE)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) BBV E £ Bz ()
Between Between
On Less than 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over 5
demand 1 year years years years Total
BER PR—F —ZWMFE MELE BBIEF aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFH T TFH T TFH T TFH T FH& T FH& T
31 March 2018 —E-N\#F

EHA=ETF—FE
Trade payables e B 5 BR K - 199,828 - — — 199,828

Other payables and accruals — Hfth & {<f 30 18 &
EER — 44,891 — — — 44,891
Borrowings BE 62,229 2,993 3,782 — — 69,004
62,229 247,712 3,782 — — 313,723

31 March 2017 Tt F

=HA=+—H
Trade payables BREZESERR — 193,454 — — — 193,454

Other payables and accruals — H b & {<f 5 18 K
et &R — 40,838 — — i 40,838
Borrowings BE 104,071 4,266 2,984 3,778 = 115,099
104,071 238,558 2,984 3,778 T 349,391

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of
the loans with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements. The amounts included interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in
the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis

contained above.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBEREEGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMIEMEZEGE)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) BBV E £ Bz ()
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, FIRASE BN ES
the directors do not consider that it is probable FRABRITHITERBEREERK
that the banks will exercise their discretions to Eﬂﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁ—ﬁbﬁ??ﬁ o EE
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe HEZEERBRBEER BZE
that such loans will be repaid in accordance with Ffr aTiﬁE%?ﬁHﬁ BE
the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan
agreements.

Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings subject to a BB — EBERERE
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled BEEXHRITER - BREE
repayments: E &K
Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2
year and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years Total
SR—%F —E@ME WEEE BBHET att
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET FAT FHE T FHET
31 March 2018 —E-N\F
=A=+-8 42,645 14,594 6,646 — 63,885
31 March 2017 —ET—tF
=A=+-8 42,612 43,024 21,240 — 106,876
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEBERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to $%I§i¥;§$29%‘éﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ$%

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going B EEE  HMAREER

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and @#&&ﬁ@ FlzsHEB AT R A%

benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal AR #EERRITERNGERE  LREE

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. R o

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, REFSGABRERER  AEEHNE

the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to FAEAMBRRERNT2RESEE - 817

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce FRDSIEEEE  UNREER -

debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing REBEEEABRE RERER -

ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by IR B EBRBERGEEERRE

total equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. KT TBERGTE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (Continued)

3

Total bank borrowings RITEE B
Total equity = B FE
Gearing ratio BEAGLX

Decrease in gearing ratio is mainly due to decrease in
borrowings as at 31 March 2018 over that in prior year.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at fair value as at 31 March 2018 by level
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within
a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

See Note 8 for disclosures of the investment property that
is measured at fair value.

Bt 3% #R AR B B

B 5 b T E (R
3.2 EXEREE(H)
2018 2017
SEtE -z
HK$°000 HK$000
Fi#n T
68,914 115,015
731,605 670,472
9.4% 17.2%

3.3
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March

Bt i R b E E (4

3.3 AF{EMEF (&)
TRENARER-FE—\FR=
T+ F=A=t+—BRATE

2018 and 2017: EZUBEERAE:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—K EZHR B=HR #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt F& T
2018 —E-N\HF
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial A EREE E
assets — — 6,242 6,242
Financial assets at fair value #Z A ER AE&=
through profit or loss LB EE — — 3,757 3,757
— — 9,999 9,999
2017 —E—+tF
Assets: BE
Available-for-sale financial AREETBTEE
assets — — 16,439 16,439
Financial assets at fair value & QA F{E:z AEZR
through profit or loss 2B EE — — 4,838 4,838
= = 21,277 21,277

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HKEREEE
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DEEMLE(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRETRE=ZRIERBE_ZT—
instruments for the year ended 31 March 2018: NE=RA=+—HIEFEZ#

Financial
assets at fair Available-for-

value through sale financial

profit or loss asset
BoEE
MAEZEZ CIKE: 3= h -3
MBEE MBEE &gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#Ex T#&xT Ti#x
At 1 April R A—H 4,838 16,439 21,277
Fair value loss N {EEE (1,081) (10,197) (11,278)
At 31 March R=RA=+—H 3,757 6,242 9,999
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRAEARE=ZRIERBEE_ZT—
instruments for the year ended 31 March 2017 tE=A=1T—RHIEFEz2EH:
Financial

assets at fair Available-for-
value through sale financial

profit or loss asset Total
/NS ]

RAEREZ e
MBEE MsEE mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THE T FHET
At 1 April REA—H = 16,678 16,678
Additions NE 4,951 — 4,951
Fair value loss N EEE (113) (239) (352)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 4,838 16,439 21,294
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The Group does not have level 1 financial instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market are determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to assess the fair value of
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2. The Group does not have level 2 financial
instruments.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets,
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
as at 31 March 2018 are level 3 financial assets. The fair
values of the Group's available-for-sale financial assets are
determined based on the net asset values of the funds
calculated with reference to the quoted prices in active
markets of the underlying investments of the funds. The
fair values of the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are valued by an independent
professional valuer and determined based on the market
capitalisation of the investees with key inputs being
price/earnings ratios of comparable companies, lack of
marketability discount rate, and forecasted business
performance of the investees.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18

3

Bt % b B 32 (48)

3.3 AF{EMEF (&)

REBMEEEZERTARFE
BREERZMISHREE - WAl
NEZWEHERSHA X58
e zREE TERFEXREE
BEDRSRE MABBRERRE
REMERFHEAETZIATFNS
R AZMEEERERME
AEBYEE-REBITA-

VIR ERMEEEZERTAR
FEMMEERMEE - ZFHER
MEEEABEASHRANLEE -
THEERCEAENERZEE
WA TEANAFEMBEZHEIR
WMAEBYRBRASG  AZITAR
RE_F - AREAESE — RS
TH-

o

fis —IE Bk % 18 = ZE#g A B W IF A B
RAGMEBHEEAELE  AJZITA
BRE=F -RN-_ZE—N\F=A=++
—B - AEEIHEEVBEEER
BEATEGTABRCUBEERS
“RMBEE RSB ZAHEEE
MBEEEATFEDN2EES ZHEEH
BRERERMB CHREAEZES
BETFEETE ASEEATER
ANEBER MBEEZATETIEE
VEEGMEMGERAEE@BER
ABE (BRI E L B AR M BAE
BREE)NEEFHTE - RZA
HEMBEERRIEEEBAXEL KRR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net

realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs of inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs requires
the use of judgement and estimates. These estimates
are based on the market condition and the historical
experience of selling prices of similar nature. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Fair values of financial assets
The fair values of financial assets that are traded in an
active market are determined by the quoted market prices.

For the fair values of financial assets not traded in an active
market, the Group would use the valuation technique or
the quoted price provided by counterparty to estimate the
fair values. The methodologies, models and assumptions
used in valuing these financial assets and derivative
financial instruments require judgement by management
which are mainly based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date. For further details refer to section
3.3 above.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Estimated useful lives and impairment
of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment are depreciated
based on their estimated useful lives and estimated
residual values. Management has reviewed the estimated
useful lives and considers they are appropriate. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to market conditions. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where useful lives
are less than previously estimated and will dispose of
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a
change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation

expense in future periods.

The Group amortises its intangible assets with finite useful
lives on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful lives reflect the management’s
estimates of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of these intangible
assets. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over a period of two to five years.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets is recognised as the amount by which
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.10. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, which
are based on the best information available to reflect
the amount obtainable at each reporting date, from
the disposal of the asset in an arm'’s length transaction
between knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting
the costs of disposal. These require the use of estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. When the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax charges
in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade

receivables and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade receivables and other
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables and
other receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. For
trade receivables, the assessment is based on the credit
history of its customers and the current market condition,
and requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and impairment is recognised in the year in
which such estimate has been changed. For loan and
other receivables, the provision was made by reference to
the difference between the carrying amount of the other
receivables and the present value of estimated future cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

4

154

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

(9)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of cash
generating units have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations prepared on the basis of management’s
assumptions and estimates (Note 2.10). These calculations
require the use of estimates.

Impairment assessment of interests in

associates

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to identify indications
that the interest in associates which are significant to the
Group may be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

The sources utilised to identify indications of impairment
are often subjective in nature and the Group is required to
use judgement in applying such information to its business.
The Group's interpretation of this information has a direct
impact on whether an impairment assessment is performed
as at any given reporting date.

identified, such
is further subject to an exercise that

If an indication of impairment is
information
requires the Group to estimate the recoverable amount,
representing the asset’s value in use. The Group is required
to make certain assumptions to make such assessment,
including the projected business performance and future
cash flows of the associates and appropriate discount
rates. Changes in any of these assumptions could result in
a material change to future estimates of the recoverable
amount of such associates. An impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds

its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Group (collectively referred to as the
“CODM") that make strategic decisions. The CODM reviews the
internal reporting of the Group in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of the results of reportable segments.
Finance income and costs, corporate income and expenses,
relocation costs, fair value gains or losses of financial assets and
share of losses of associates are not included in the results for
each operating segment that are reviewed by the CODM. Other
information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Group underwent a group restructuring
whereby all entities engaged in pet-related business were
re-organised under an intermediate holding company. As a
result of such change in group structure, the CODM'’s review
on the Group’s segment performance and resource allocation
has changed over that in prior years. The comparative segment
information for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been
reclassified to align with the presentation of the latest segment
information disclosure as a result of such change.

Revenue from external customers is shown after elimination of
inter-segment revenue. Sales between segments, which mainly
consist of sale of electronic components and products among
subsidiaries, are carried out at mutually agreed terms. Revenue
from external parties is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated income statement.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income tax
assets, tax recoverable, available-for-sale financial assets, bond
investment, loan receivable, interests in associates and corporate
assets, all of which are managed on a central basis. Liabilities
of reportable segments exclude current and deferred income
tax liabilities and corporate liabilities. These are part of the
reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and liabilities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5

The segment information provided to the CODM for the

reportable segments for the years ended 31 March 2018 and

2017 is as follows (Continued):

Revenue
Revenue from external customers
Inter-segment revenue

Segment results

A reconciliation of segment
results to profit for the year is
as follows:

Segment results

Unallocated expenses, net

Other income

Other gains, net

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of losses of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Y &5
SNREF P U =R

SRR

DRER
RO BRAXFER
H U A
H A W 55 % 58

22 A
BB WA
[CLE =P

DIEBE REER

BR BT 15 %% A )t 7
P8 B R X

F A

Electronic

products

BTER
HK$°000
TR

1,180,154
210,050

A EER ()
RBE-T—\FR-F—LF=A=t
—HILFE REFEELEREAGH
TEHA MO BEARWT ()

2018
=t BYIY--
Pet related
products
EY
HEE R
HK$'000
TET

Elimination Total

2]
HK$'000
FTiEx

L
HK$'000
FTiEx

330,350 — 1,510,504
154,152 (364,202) —

1,390,204

484,502 (364,202) 1,510,504

70,657

32,191 102,848
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5

The segment information provided to the CODM for the
reportable segments for the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017 is as follows (Continued):

Electronic

products

BTER
HK$°000
TR

Other segment information HinnEER
Depreciation on property, plant %1% - &5 &

and equipment REE 30,720
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & i # 4 430
Amortisation of land use rights b (& Ff 4% & 35 1,098
Additions to non-current assets N & JE R BN A E

(other than interests in (1B 48 P B o

associates, financial assets and NEZ R

deferred tax assets) MBEER

EIEFIEE E) 14,571

Bt 3% #R AR B B

aEER ()
RBE-Z—/\FR-F—LF=A=+
—HILFE REFEELEREAGH
A2RHFOSBERMT ()

2018
—E-N\f

Pet related
products Elimination Total

EY
HEEM Ea ] At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T#T T#T T#T

432 1,929 33,081
556 — 986
— 57 1,155
3,794 2,194 20,559
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 SEENGE)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the REBEEZZE-N\FERZT—tF=A=+
reportable segments for the years ended 31 March 2018 and —HIEFE RETFELEREAGH
2017 is as follows (Continued): AEWMO BN EEROT (&) :
2017 (Restated)
—T-EF(KEET])
Electronic ~ Pet related
products products  Elimination Total
B
BFEm MR E M@ ESfic! st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Revenue I 2=
Revenue from external customers 43k & F Uk 25 1,186,036 228,067 — 1,414,103
Inter-segment revenue ZEAD g 178,427 126,920 (305,347) =
1,364,463 354,987 (305,347) 1,414,103
Segment results DEEE 80,603 16,365 96,968
A reconciliation of segment DEEFEFTR
results to profit for the year is @A ¥ BRI ¢
as follows:
Segment results DEEE 96,968
Unallocated expenses, net Ko BL X% (22,453)
Other income H A It A 665
Other losses, net Hib &8 F58E (13,508)
Operating profit £ & A 61,672
Finance income BB WA 7,775
Finance costs B & pK AN (4,579)
Share of losses of associates DIGEEE QAR EE (1,253)
Profit before income tax BR AT 15 2% Al & A 63,615
Income tax expense Fr g %t (3,572)
Profit for the year F N5 A 60,043
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Bt 3% #R AR B B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 SEENGE)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the REBEZEZZ-—NFRZZT—tF=RA=+
reportable segments for the years ended 31 March 2018 and —HIEFE RETFELEREAGH
2017 is as follows (Continued): AZ2HSENOBRERNT (&) -

2017 (Restated)
—E—EF(EET)

Electronic Pet related

products products Elimination Total
BEY
BETEmM 7 E @ ¥ 8 “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Other segment information HinnEER
Depreciation on property, plant  #1% B E &
and equipment HEIE 23,958 326 1,648 25,932
Amortisation of intangible assets # 2 & & & $5 5,154 1,111 — 6,265
Amortisation of land use rights - 3t {5 Fl 4 & §5 1,113 — — 1,113
Impairment of property, plant and 1% - i = Kk & &
equipment 7,524 = = 7,524
Factory relocation costs 2B = A A 5,585 — — 5,585
Additions to non-current assets AN EIERBE E
(other than interests in (T B R
associates, financial assets and nE > BBEE
deferred tax assets) REERIEEE
ZHEE) 59,528 1,203 372 61,103
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FHEEN (&)
RZZE-—N\FR=ZZF

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5

The segment assets and segment liabilities as at 31 March 2018

—tF=A=+—H

MoBEER ST RBENNEEERE

and 2017 and the reconciliation to the total assets and total

160

liabilities are as follows:

REBRENHEERNT

2018
—2-N\EF
Electronic Pet related
products products Total
EY
BFEM HEIE M Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Ti#&x Ti#&x Ti#&T
Segment assets DEEE 850,490 53,650 904,140
Unallocated: R Be
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERREE 49,934
Interests in associates EA Bt & N B A R 2 3,623
Deferred income tax assets BTG E E 1,782
Amounts due from associates i leg /NI e 4,149
Loan receivable B 5K E W k1R 2,500
Tax recoverable A Yz [B] 7% 18 1,097
Other investments HAi % & 9,999
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 79,312
Other unallocated assets Hfh R EE 8,676
Total assets per consolidated balance #ZABEBERH
sheet ﬁF,ﬁ@ﬁ 1,065,212
Segment liabilities NEBE 192,158 4,437 196,595
Unallocated: Ko AL
Bank borrowings R 1T & 68,914
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMBHARE 504
Trade payables FERTE 5 IR 3K 54,449
Income tax payable JE < P15 %50 6,096
Other unallocated liabilities HthRDEEEE 7,049
Total liabilities per consolidated RAEEEBERM
balance sheet BERE 333,607
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The segment assets and segment liabilities as at 31 March 2018

and 2017 and the reconciliation to the total assets and total

liabilities are as follows (Continued):

Bt 3% #R AR B B

SEEHE)
R-E—\ER-_T—+&=A=+—H
MO BEERDHEABANMNEEERAE
LEBBEEMNEERENT(E) :

2017 (Restated)
—E—EF(KED)

Electronic Pet related
products products Total
EY
BEFEMm 8 E “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHE T FHET
Segment assets DEEE 862,538 33,073 895,611
Unallocated: R BE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 38,560
Investment property "B 10,200
Interests in associates EA & N B B BE 5 3,804
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEIREE 1,086
Amount due from an associate JE U — A B & A B R I8 3,250
Loan receivable B e U k8 6,496
Tax recoverable AT Y [B] 7% I8 591
Other investments Hiiz & 28,988
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBReEEBY 41,577
Other unallocated assets B RO EE 7,552
Total assets per consolidated balance #R&EEEBEXRH
sheet BERE 1,037,715
Segment liabilities HEEE 192,909 3,694 196,603
Unallocated: R B
Bank borrowings RITIERK 115,015
Deferred income tax liabilities RSN ARG 453
Trade payables FET B 5 BR 5K 41,113
Income tax payable FESFT{S B 6,762
Other unallocated liabilities EMmARoi Al 7,297
Total liabilities per consolidated REEEBEXRN
balance sheet BELEE 367,243
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 SEENGE)
An analysis of the Group's revenue from external customers by AEBHE_Z-N\FR=ZFT—tF=H
country of destination for the years ended 31 March 2018 and =+ —BIEFEERBENMBRE 52 5NR
2017 is as follows: BEPWESTOT
2018 2017
—E-N\&F ZTE—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FHETT
The United States of America e 670,865 625,647
Japan H 7z 279,015 253,955
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”, HZEARLME([FEH] -
including Hong Kong) BIEEB) 189,524 166,580
Taiwan & 97,538 79,858
Australia M 77,454 70,708
Germany = 40,274 34,535
United Kingdom = 38,625 94,899
Others Hifb 117,209 87,921
1,510,504 1,414,103
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred AEERMEBE S ZIIERBDEE(TEE
income tax assets, by geographical locations is as follows: BIEFSMEE) DITBAT :
2018 2017
—E-N\&F Tt
HK$000 HK$'000
T#&T FHET
Hong Kong BB 68,247 85,790
Mainland China R A b 304,888 288,693
Others HAtb 1 9
373,136 374,492
For the year ended 31 March 2018, external revenue of HE-_Z-\F=ZA=1+—HLEFE 5
approximately HK$311,704,000 was generated from a customer, Bl mIRE —BEP(h AR LR K 10% A
who accounted for more than 10% of the Group's revenue. £ SHER X A311,704,000/8 TT ©
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2017, external revenue of
approximately HK$217,124,000 and HK$155,726,000 were
generated from two customers, who individually accounted for
more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

No other customer individually accounted for more than 10%
of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2017 and
2018.

LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in land use rights represented prepaid
in Mainland China and their
movements and net book value are analysed as follows:

operating lease payments

5

Bt 3% #R AR B B

FHEEN(E)
HE-_Z—+t&=ZA=+—HBLEFE 5
HREREMER,PSEBEASEE KR
10% A £ - SHERE D B 49/45217,124,0007%
7T }155,726,0007% JT °

BE-F—tFR-F-\FZA=+—
AUH6ERE - HEA AL S (B B AR R E
2%10% M I ©

X i F 4
REENLE AR ESARFER
BWHEERERNRE AHEBRER
FEZAFWT

Beginning of the year R E )
Amortisation B 55
Exchange differences bE H =58
End of the year REF R

2018 2017
SEBSH =+
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Fib
50,484 53,291
(1,155) (1,113)
2,665 (1,694)
51,994 50,484
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164

oy =n
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 PE-BRENRRME
Furniture
Land and Leasehold Plant and and Construction
building improvement machinery equipment in progress Total
TiREF HEVMERE BEREHE HERR TEIR &t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
FAET FAET FET FHET FAET FTHET
At 1 April 2016 R-B—AEMA—H
Cost B 7R 165,047 62,477 122,569 29,575 26,427 406,095
Accumulated depreciation RBEME (15,348) (12,922) (93,043) (21,546) — (142,859)
Net book amount REFE 149,699 49,555 29,526 8,029 26,427 263,236
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-F—tHF
ZHA=+—HLHFE
Opening net book amount FEHREFE 149,699 49,555 29,526 8,029 26,427 263,236
Additions NE — 3,721 26,238 6,856 24,288 61,103
Transferred from construction in progress & BHEZE T2 27,788 11,373 640 520 (40,321) —
Disposals & — — (44) ) — (46)
Impairment (Note) B (A 2) (7,524) — = = — (7,524)
Depreciation e (4,166) (6,625) (11,279) (3,862) — (25,932)
Exchange differences X =R (7,343) (3.248) (1,921) (565) (1,679) (14,756)
Closing net book amount FHREmFE 158,454 54,776 43,160 10,976 8,715 276,081
At 31 March 2017 R=B—t%F
=B=+-—H
Cost KA 174,101 73,574 118,810 34,276 8,715 409,476
Accumulated depreciation 2BRMERRE
and impairment (15,647) (18,798) (75,650) (23,300) = (133,395)
Net book amount REFE 158,454 54,776 43,160 10,976 8,715 276,081
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-2-N\&§
=ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 158,454 54,776 43,160 10,976 8,715 276,081
Additions NE — 2,831 10,675 3,734 — 17,240
Transferred from construction in progress & BEZ T2 — 203 9,351 - (9,554) -
Transferred from investment property EREREME
(Note 8) (H#17t8) 11,100 — - - — 11,100
Disposals HE — — - (12) — (12)
Depreciation wE (4,225) (8,076) (15,870) (4,910) - (33,081)
Exchange differences BN EH 13,819 5,965 4,288 939 839 25,850
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 179,148 55,699 51,604 10,727 — 297,178
At 31 March 2018 R=FB—-N\F
=A=+—H
Cost (DN 199,892 82,803 112,541 38,640 — 433,876
Accumulated depreciation 2RI ERRBE
and impairment (20,744) (27,104) (60,937) (27,913) - (136,698)
Net book amount BR R B 179,148 55,699 51,604 10,727 — 297,178
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Bt 3% #R AR B B

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME- -BERZEE)

(CONTINUED)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group relocated certain of its Hit: BE-T—tF=A=1+—BLEFE F&
manufacturing plants from Huizhou to Dongguan in Mainland China. Upon ERETEERFERRAMMBEMBREZR
the completion of relocation, the vacant manufacturing plants in Huizhou 5 o RIRE T IE - BREFE7,524,000/ 7T
with net book value of HK$7,524,000 were fully impaired. HNBNEBEEEREEZEBE -

Depreciation of HK$15,870,000 (2017: HK$11,279,000) and 1 £15,870,0007%8 7T (= F — -+ 4F : 11,279,000

HK$17,211,000 (2017: HK$14,653,000) has been charged to cost & JT) &17,211,000% (= & — £ F:

of sales and general and administrative expenses, respectively. 14,653,000 JT) B2 Bl R S5 S A AN & —

METHEERZERANMB -

As at 31 March 2018, certain of the Group’s bank borrowings R_ZE—N\F=ZA=+—H EFTA&£E

are secured by land and buildings with carrying value of RITEEABREE A49,211,0008 L (=%

HK$49,211,000 (2017: HK$37,827,000) (Note 21). —+ % : 37,827,000/ 7T) & £ i R FE

AR (B 5E21) o
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 8 REVE
2018 2017
2N\ —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FA T

Beginning of the year RE ] 10,200 10,000

Fair value gain N EWR = 900 200

Transferred to land and building (Note 7) EEE L RIETF

(Btat7) (11,100) —

End of the year RE R — 10,200

Note: Kt -

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment property:

MEREMERERER 2D

2018 2017
=%-N\F —E—tF
Hks'000 HK$'000
TiRx FiB T

Rental income He WA

479 358
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONTINUED)

The lease on the Group’s investment property located in Hong
Kong was expired in November 2017, upon which the property
was transferred from an investment property to an owner-
occupied property of the Group (Note 7).

The fair value of the property was HK$11,100,000 on the date
of transfer, which was determined by an independent qualified
valuer, Ascent Partners Transaction Service Limited, by direct
comparison method using Level 3 approach. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity were adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer relationship

EFHE

2018
—E2-N\F
HK$'000
TEx

2017

HK$'000
R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i %5 3 = MY 5E

8

9

REWME(E
AEBUREARENEZHER=-T
—+tF+—AER HEZWESH—BR
EMEEBRBRARNEENE X (HAME
F£7) °

MENREZHE 2 A FE11,100,000% T
THBYLABERGEEMIFAEER SRS
ERARBETE  WEEBLSEFNBE=R
FE o BRI BRYECEBEREE
SR (flanmEBMB) 2 EZ2ELARE -

R-B-—N\ER_F—+F=A=1T—8H"
AEETEBRAREBRERE 2 KE
wAEMAELE -

BWEE
Product development Total
EmRA® Mgt

2018 2017 2018 2017
=Sl T 7 el Tt F
GLOYVVl  HK$'000 EEGLCYVIN  HK$'000
TEx THET Tiégn TR

Beginning of the year R E ) 430 5,584 556 1,667 986 7,251
Additions NE — — 3,319 — 3,319 —
Amortisation (note 28) B §5(f7i£28) (430) (5,154) (556) (1,111 (986) (6,265)
End of the year R — 430 3,319 556 3,319 986

During the year, the Group capitalized product development cost
with respect to two products of its pet business amounting to
HK$3,319,000 (2017: Nil). Amortisation of HK$986,000 (2017:
HK$6,265,000) has been charged to general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18

FAN - AEEBENMEEEMEB 2 MEE
§h 2 FE fh B B Ak A8 3,319,000/8 T (=& —
+ & 4E) o B $5986,0008 L (ZF — +
% : 6,265,000 L) IR & W 5k A —
BETHREEZEAE TR -
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10 GOODWILL

Bt 3% #R AR B B

Beginning and end of the year R F ) R EF &
The Group’s goodwill is related to the acquisitions of (i) a
50% equity interest of Suga Technology Limited (“CGU 1”);
and (i) a 15% equity interest of Suga Technology Hong Kong
Limited ("CGU 2"), both of which are wholly owned subsidiaries
principally engaged in trading of electronic products. Both
acquisitions took place in prior years.

Impairment test for goodwill

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period which incorporate the following key
assumptions.

10 &&
2018 2017
SEBSE =+
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FiB
3,949 3,949

AEBENHEDEKBOEERMARR
Al50% A (FREEEEL]) ¢ R
EERMEEARDFNSNRAERS (R
SEEEM2)ER MEHLZENE
DA EERENEEETEMR - MAK
BEHONBEFERE -

& B i E A

ReELEEU2AKE S B DR EHME
EEEEEE - ARAEDRECERE
HRERF P BRARIELZ RS
RERAET  HEBETHIEEER -

2017
—_T—+tF
CGU 1 CGU 2
ReEE ReEE
B A1 B2
Terminal growth rate 1 om 1E R K 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
Discount rate AL IR =& 12.0% 12.0% 12.0% 12.0%

Management determined budgeted gross margin and revenue
growth rate based on past performance and their expectations
for market development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments. Cash flows
beyond the period covered in approved budgets are extrapolated
using a growth rate that do not exceed the long term average
growth rate for the businesses in which the CGUs operate.

Based on the discounted cash flow forecast prepared by
management, the directors are of the view that there is no
impairment of goodwill as at 31 March 2018.

EEERBEETRARIYMEER ZTA
HMEBEFTENXEERKZERE - X
RZBREQBATHNE - A RREED
ZHEERR BEEHBREREHAEL
BeanENERYTERRESELEN
REZEBZRPFHEREZERESE
Al o

REEEERHEZCURReRERR -

EERRBER_ZE-N\F=ZR=+—H
I ERE e

EEEBREEER AT 2017/18FHK 167
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at

31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

11 MEQF

ARAR-FE-N\ER-F—LF=A=

THZTEMBARFENT:

Issued share capital/ Group equity

Principal activities and
place of operation

FTEEBREEME

Name legal entity paid-up capital interest
R AL L BR 3L i B % AEE
£ FRERER BRT /MARE BAGIR A 2
2017
—_=F
—+tF
Suga International Limited (i) British Virgin Islands, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%
liability company Us$700
EERZHES  GRAF L @R700% T
Suga Electronics (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%
company
EEEARAA BEBRAA TAER2B T
Suga Electronics Limited (ii) Hong Kong, limited liability =~ Ordinary shares 100% 100%
company HK$2; Non-voting
deferred shares
HK$4,000,000 (ii)
BEEEFHER DA B ARARA TmR2E T BRE
3B 3T % 1D
4,000,000 7T
Suga Digital Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%
company
EEHRBREERAA HE BRAF T A28 T
Precise Computer Tooling Co., Hong Kong, limited liability =~ Ordinary shares 100% 100%
Limited company HK$500,000
BIEMHERRAR HE BRAF I 3/ 1% 500,000 T
On Million Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%
company
sk AR A A HE BRAF T R8T
Suga Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%
company
EERMBERAA HE BRAF T@ER2E T
Time Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares HK$10 90% 90%
company
BERECXFRAF HE BRAF TAAR107 T
SGI Venture Limited (“SGI") (iii) Hong Kong, limited liability =~ Ordinary shares 100% 80%

EEHRMBOERAF
(MEEE R A1) (i)

company

BEARRQH

HK$4,000,000
(2017:
HK$2,000,000)
L im
4,000,000/ 7T
—E—+F:
2,000,000 7T)

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18

Investment holding

REER

Trading of electronic
products in Hong Kong
REBEBEEFEmM

Trading of electronic
products in Hong Kong

Design and trading of
electronic products in
Hong Kong

REARGIREEEFES

Trading of moulds and plastic
products in Hong Kong
REAEBEAREBBER

Property holding in Hong
Kong
REEBBEME

Trading of electronic
products in Hong Kong
REBEBEETEM

Investment holding in Hong
Kong
REBREREER

Design and trading of
electronic products in
Hong Kong

REBRIREEEFER
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name

=1

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of
legal entity

BE AR LR SZ i B %
FERERER

11

Issued share capital/

paid-up capital

BRT/BMARK

Bt 3% #R AR B B

B 8 2 B (4])

Group equity

Suga Technology Hong Kong Limited

EERMEEERAT

Suga Macao Commercial Offshore

Limited

FERMBEFRBHERGERAR

United Fountain Investment Ltd.

ERKEBRAT

Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

(iv), (xiii)

BEEETF ORI A R 2 & (iv)(xiii)

Suga Electronics (Dongguan) Co.

Limited (“SEDG") (v), (xiv)

EEET(HRE)ERAT
(EEBFRZ]D V) - Kiv)

Long Join (Hong Kong) Electronic

Co., Limited

EREB)EFERAA

Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling and Plastic
Injection (Huizhou) Co., Limited

("Nodic”) (vi), (xiv)
B — MAREEEBEM)
ABERAE (AL i)~ (xiv)

Suga Technology (Dongguan) Co.,

Ltd. ("STDG") (vii), (xiv)

SHREESRAE ([R=MR])

(vii) ~ (xiv)

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

B ARARA

Macao, limited liability
company

B BERAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

B BERARF

Mainland China, limited
liability company

RE P A RA A

Mainland China, limited
liability company

mEAM - FRAR

Hong Kong, limited liability

company

BEARRQH

Mainland China, limited
liability company

TEAL - FRAT

Mainland China, limited

liability company

TEAL - FRAT

Ordinary shares
HK$100,000

& 3@ % 100,0007% 7T

Ordinary shares
MOP100,000

3 A% 100,0008 P9 #S

Ordinary shares HK$1

TEBRUET

HK$33,500,000

33,500,000/ 7T

US$5,000,000

5,000,000 7T

Ordinary shares HK$2

EER2ETT

US$6,000,000

6,000,000 7T

US$12,000,000

12,000,000 7T

Principal activities and
place of operation

FREBREXMN

interest
AEE
BAGR A 2%
2018 2017
=% -F
G —
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

FEEBRBREBERAE 2017/18F &

Trading of electronic
products in Hong Kong
REREEETEM

Trading of electronics
products in Macao
RARMEEETFEM

Pet food distribution in Hong
Kong
REEDHEV R ®

Manufacturing of electronic
products in Mainland
China

RAEBERMEEEFER

Manufacturing of electronic
products in Mainland
China

RABERNMEESFEM

Design and trading of
electronic products in
Hong Kong

RERARGIREBEEFER

Manufacturing of moulds
and plastic products in
Mainland China

R B R EER AR
BREM

Manufacturing of electronic
products in Mainland
China

AR B A M AE BT
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

11

Issued share capital/

Name legal entity paid-up capital

BE AR SLRR SZ i B %
£ FRERER BRIT/BMARSE
Suga USA Inc. U.S.A., limited liability Ordinary shares US$10

Suga Networks Equipment
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“SNESL") (viii),
(xiv)

EEBKENCRINBERAR
(MEEAE M) (viiD) ~ (xiv)

Chummily Trading (Shenzhen) Limited
("CTL") (ix), (xiv)

EXESORY)BR AR
(TEXE S (ix) ~ (xiv)

Espetsso Limited

Chummily Technology (Tianjin) Co.,
Ltd (“CTLTJ") (x), (xiv)
REEXREERRAA
(TREEX]D ()~ (xiv)
Chummily International Trading
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd (“CTLGZ")
(xi), (xiv)
EMNEREREZFR QA
(TEME R (xi) ~ (xiv)

Happypaws International Limited

RLUEBERERAR

Chongmi Investment & Consultation
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“CMIC")
(xii), (xiv)

RYIBGE KRR EZABRAA
(FEERFZ & 1) (i) ~ (xiv)

company

XE - ARAT

Mainland China, limited
liability company

FEA - BRAAE

Mainland China, limited
liability company

REAK  BRAT

Hong Kong, limited liability
company
&% BRAA

Mainland China, limited

liability company

RERM - BERAA

Mainland China, limited
liability company

RERM - BERAA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

BB ARAA

Mainland China, limited
liability company

FEA - BRAAE

ZERI0ET

HK$17,500,000

17,500,000 7T

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

Ordinary shares HK$1

T3 A1 T

RMB10,000,000

A K %10,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000

A K %1,000,0007T

Ordinary shares HK$10

TERI0E T

RMB20,000,000

A KR #20,000,0007T

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18

Bt B 2 B (4]

Group equity

Principal activities and
place of operation

FREBREXMH

interest
AEE
BAGR A 25
2017
=%
—t &
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
90% 90%

Investment holding in U.S.A

REBEREREZER

Manufacturing of electronic
products in Mainland
China

AR B A M A E BT E

Trading of pet products in
Mainland China
R ERNMEEEYE D

Distribution of pet products
in Hong Kong

REEDIHEDE @

Distribution of pet products

in Mainland China

R B R 5 8 EY E &

Distribution of pet products

in Mainland China

R B R 5 8 E Y E &

Pet food distribution in Asia

REMBERD HEY R @

Consulting services in
Mainland China

A R B A 4R R AR 7
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

Bt 3% #R AR B B

1 828 (&)

Issued share capital/

Group equity

Principal activities and

Name legal entity paid-up capital interest place of operation
BE AR LR SZ i B % AEE
713 FERERER BRIT/E@MARSE BliERAER FIEXBEREEME
2018 2017
== -z
—N\F g
Suga Smart Tech Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares 51% — Design and trading of
company HK$100 electronic products in
Hong Kong
EEFNKBRAA BE - BARARA L AR 1007 7T REBRFILEBEEFEM
Suga Japanif R £ 4t Japan, limited liability Japanese Yen 100% — Design and trading of
company 2,000,000 electronic products in
Japan
B ERAR 2,000,000H [H REARAEREEREEFEM
Wepet Holdings Ltd Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Ordinary shares HK$1 100% — Investment holding in Hong
company Kong
EEEEFRAF & ARRQA TERIE T REBREER
Notes: W&
(i) The shares of Suga International Limited are held directly by the Company. (i) Suga International Limited Z %) BB A A Al &

(i)

(iii)

The shares of the other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

The non-voting deferred shares of Suga Electronics Limited are held by
Essential Mix Enterprises Limited and Broadway Business Limited, which are
owned by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On, directors and beneficial
shareholders of the Company. These non-voting deferred shares have no
voting rights, are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to any
distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$10,000,000,000 per
ordinary share has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares.

During the year, the Group acquired an additional 20% equity interest of
SGI from its minority shareholders at a total consideration of HK$657,000.
The effect on the equity attributable to the owners of the Company during
the year is summarised as follows:

(i)

(iii)

BERA - RMMBAR ZBRMNAAARREM
BRA -

FEEEFERAFAZERZRELERHH
Essential Mix Enterprises Limited }2Broadway
Business Limited#5 45 * M#Z %5 AR RIBAZARQA
EEREaRRRAZBELRTELR AL
B ZEERERRERNEERZHKR
RE - FRE AFZERFEAEED K
FREBAL10,000,000,000/8 T « EEE
EREERNFBEATAEDIK °

FA -AKEEELHERKRBEIIMEL
R &) 120% g - B (ER657,000/8 7T ° £
AEFEARBERARIEREZZENT :

HK$'000

FET

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired BWEFERER 2 REE (1,780)

Consideration paid to minority shareholders ENPHBRRNRE (657)

Waiver of amounts due to minority shareholders by the BRELBBREEMNDERERE

minority shareholders 960
Excess of consideration paid recognised in the transactions RiERAEZERER RS HERER

with non-controlling interests reserve within equity ERREBLHBS (1,477)

FEEBRBREBERAE 2017/18F & 171



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

11

172

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved period of operation of
20 years until June 2024.

SEDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China

with an approved period of operation of 20 years until December 2033.

Nodic is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China

with an approved period of operation of 30 years until September 2020.

STDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China

with an approved period of operation of 20 years until April 2027.

SNESL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China

with an approved period of operation of 20 years until October 2022.

CTL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China

with an approved period of operation of 30 years until April 2041.

CTLTJ is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China

with an approved period of operation of 30 years until December 2045.

CTLGZ is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China

with an approved period of operation of 30 years until December 2045.

CMIC is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland China

with an approved period of operation of 20 years until December 2033.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have financial accounting
year end date on 31 December in accordance with the local statutory
requirements, which is not coterminous with the Group. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group being presented were prepared based
on the management accounts of these subsidiaries for the twelve months
ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18

B B 2 B (4])

Biet (%) :

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

EEEFORINDERRE A LS E A # KL
ZERIELE BEREZEXEIREE-ZT
ZMENRAL - BH20%F -

FEEFRE=AERERNMBK L ZZINED
¥ EREZEEHBREE-_T==F+=
ALk - BEI204F -

MO BERBEANMK Y 22 E B B
B REBREE T -_ZENAL - AH
304 ©

SHRATERREAMKL 2 2IEDE -
EZEZEEXHREE-FT_tFWMA L
A HI204F -

EERESIMRETERNMKIZ2IE D
X ERAEZEEHBREE_T-—_F1A
b B HI20%F -

EXABEFRBEARMKLIZZ2NECE B
BEZEEHBREE_ZTN—FWOALL " AH
304 ©

RKEEXBERBRAMK L2 2EDE -
EZEZEEHRREE-"TNAF+=A 1k -
A HI304F o

BNERBEFERNMBKRYL 2 2IEDE
EZEZEERREE-"TNAF+=A 1k -
A HI304F o

BAREBEAEFTERNMKYL 22 IINEBE -
EZEZEERREE-"TS==F+=A1
A HI204F -

RBE_Z-N\F=ZA=+ A LFEERE
M BEMBRARNAEMNEHETEEESR -

RBEHIRR - AR EAMK 2K B
REAZHREFFEFHEARART-_A=T
—H BAEEZEFHEBERR - AREIHK
SESREMBRRDEZEMNBRATNEBEE
- N\FZA=Z+-BAR=_F—tF=A=+
—BLET-—EAAZERKRERS -
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

12 REEEQRI 2=

2018 2017
SEBSE =+
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FiB

Interests in associates (Note (a))

STV FL T
(H i (a) 3,623 3,804

Amount due from an associate (Note (b)) & U — [ B = A R 3R 1B

(@) Interests in associates

(K7 &2 (b)) 4,149 3,250

(@) RBFEDT 2

Beginning of the year

Increase in interests in associates (Note) B4 A &) 2 KE 25 12 N

Share of losses of associates

Share of net assets

Note:

associates, Growgreen Limited (“Growgreen”) and Cohuborate
Ltd (“Cohub”), being companies incorporated in Hong Kong and
the United Kingdom, at considerations of HK$1,000,000 and (TCohubl) * 9 Bl AN & % K& 3= B & it
HK$181,000, respectively.

("INL"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
an investment of US$25,000 (equivalent to HK$194,000). REELIRE ZARREBE ZE

2018 2017

SEEVEN =

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#&xT BT

R 1] 3,804 3,876
(B &2) 2,194 1,181
EMEEE Nl EE (2,375) (1,253)
15 & EFE 3,623 3,804

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group invested in two Kiat: RBEE-_ZT—+tF=A=+—HILtF

E ALERERAMEBREQAAS
#5827 ([F#5]) XCohuborate Ltd

B H)AR] - KB 731,000,000/ Tt K

181,000/ 7T ©
During the year ended 31 March 2018, a further capital injection BE-_Z-NE=ZA=+—BL#F
of HK$2,000,000 was made to Growgreen. In addition, the Group B AEBEREHELE-LEE
also invested in a 50% equity interest in Infinity Network Limited 2,000,000 7T ° Lt Hh + 7 & B 75 ¥

Infinity Network Limited ([INL]) #950%

Sk L - 18 & %8 425,000 7T (1
& 72194,0007 7)) ©

FEEBRBREBERAE 2017/18F & 173
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12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 12 REE AT 2= (8

(a) Interests in associates (Continued) (@) REEQT 2= (])
The assets and liabilities of the Group’s principal associates, AEBEZFEHLLTHMERRZE
which are unlisted, are as follows: EREBEAT:
Particulars of Country of
Name issued shares held incorporation Interest held Assets Liabilities Revenue Loss
8 REBRTRAHE A L E X RERZ aff [$:]
2018 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
ZE-0\EF ke -t “B-t% “B-t% “B-t%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Concept Infinity  Ordinary shares HK$5,000,000 Hong Kong, limited 25% 25% 2,550 2,900 6,520 3988 Al 482 2,882 2,895
Limited (“CIL" ) (2017: HK$5,000,000) liability company
BRABERLT  LHRS5000000% T % BRAR
(2319 (22 —+%:5000,000%7T)
Growgreen Ordinary shares HK$3,000,000  Hong Kong, limited 44.44% 48.39% 2,570 1,488 33 14 1,292 183 3,116 691
(2017: HK$1,000,000) liability company
BH £ 35 83,000,000/% T ko BRAR
(Z2—+£%:1,000000% )
Cohub Ordinary shares Great British United Kingdom, 24% 24% 2,958 137 7,051 973 1,070 = 3,165 836
Pound (“GBP") 24 limited liability
(2017: 24) company
Cohub ERRURE(RE]) RE - ERAR
(ZB-+5:uEH)
INL Ordinary shares US$25,000 British Virgin Islands, 50% = 767 = 1,240 = 535 — 860 —
(2017: Nil) limited liability
company
INL E8R25,000% T ABRAEE
(ZB-+£:3) ARAA
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB E R B E RN AR S B TS R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the cMERZEEBE A AnEamREE
principal associates recognised in the consolidated financial Y ¥ AR
statements:
cL Growgreen Cohub
ERAE ] Cohub
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

SE-N\F EESEE —F-/\F EESadd —F-/\F ISl —F-/\F ESadd
HKS'000 [ERTGXVIM  HKS'000 EEETSYUUIM  HKS'000 EEETGYUIM  HKS'000 RSSO
TER TEL TR TET TER TAL TER TR

Net (liabilities)/assets of the associates as R=A=+—BzHL A7

at 31 March (BR)/BEZE (3,970) (1,088) 2,197 1,347 (4,093) (836) (473) -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEERBEARRER

interest in the associates Bz Lhl 25% 25% 44.44% 48.39% 24% 24% 50% -
Net assets attributable to the Group AEBEGEETE - — 976 652 - = - =
Goodwill HE 2,432 3,152 215 - - - - -

Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in the associates

2,432 3,152 1,191 652 - - - -
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
(b) Amount due from associates

Bt 3% #R AR B B

12 RIFEDT 2= (BB
(b) FEMREEE DRFKIE

CIL (Note (i)
INL (Note (ii)

Notes:

(i)

INL (A7 &2 (ii))

As at 31 March 2017, amount due from CIL of HK$250,000 was
non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.

The remaining balance of HK$3,000,000 as at 31 March 2017
was non-interest bearing and repayable by September 2017.
HK$2,250,000 of such balance was secured by personal guarantee
given by the major shareholder of CIL, while the remaining balance
of HK$750,000 was unsecured.

On 1 October 2017, an agreement (the “Agreement”) was entered
into between the Group, CIL and the major shareholder of CIL,
pursuant to which the balance became interest bearing at 6% per
annum and the repayment date was postponed to 31 March 2018.

As at 31 March 2018, the balance is yet to be settled. Pursuant
to the Agreement, HK$2,250,000 of such balance are undertaken
by the major shareholder of CIL by twenty-four equal monthly
instalments of HK$93,750 starting from 1 April 2018. Up to the
date of this report, settlements amounting to HK$281,250 have
been received by the Group.

The remaining amount due from CIL of HK$1,318,000 as at
31 March 2018 is non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable
on demand.

Subsequent to 31 March 2018, CIL allotted new shares to a third
party investor and additional funding was raised. Accordingly, the
Group's interest in CIL has been diluted to 24%.

As at 31 March 2018, the amount due from INL is non-interest
bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.

In the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amounts
of the respective associates are not less than the carrying
value of the Group’s investments in those associates.

2RI E (B2 3)

2018
—F-N\F

2017
tF
HK$000

TAET

-
HK$’000
Fi#Ex

3,568 3,250
581 =

4,149 3,250

Bt -

(i)

EEZRA

RZT—+tF=A=+—H EkZ
18 8] E FXIE250,00078 T A EILE - T
ATERARENRERE -

RZE—tF=A=+—HHNHBHE
3,000,000/ c A PEFE TR =T —+
FHARMEE - Z 4 # §2,250,000/8
JC LA 2 A8 Al E E 2 AR B 1E H A (8 A 3B
RAEI - gk T4 8 750,000/ 7T &

EER -

R-T—t#+A—0  A&E - B8

BERERABNEERRTTI—H

i (i) - Bt - BBIAEAIE

6%itE  MEREMIEEE=F—)\
=A=+-8-

E@:?*)\EEHEJr*EI C BRER A R

HE o IR - #2%82,250,00078 7T
AEEE“*E IEH R EAE B
NENA—BRA=+MHEARS B
AEFI3 750 T EN c BEARRE
BH - A& E S 4ER281,2507 It HY X
I8 o

R_E—-N\F=ZA=1+—H8 k=
18 Bl E /)8 T 5K 181,318,00078 7T A %
S EBERRIRERERER -

R=ZE-NF=ZA=+—H*& : =2&l
,_‘Eﬁ BE=JREE DB
RESBENES Bl AEERES
BRIENERE B EE24% -

RZT—-N\F=ZA=+—H ' ERINL
RIEATE - EEERERERE

B o

=0 RN A R EIE

B b B RS B E AR
&7 R -
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13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY 13 ARSI P2 BEEERAE
CATEGORY

Assets at
fair value
Loans and through Available-
receivables profit or loss for-sale Total
BATE
EXR mAE#Z
FE R 18 BE AHEEHE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT TET FHT FHT
Assets BE
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-N\F
=A=t+—8
Available-for-sale financial assets Ak ENBEE (M iE14)
(Note 14) - — 6,242 6,242
Financial assets at fair value through & AFEZABRZ
profit or loss (Note 16) B EE(H L 16) - 3,757 - 3,757
Trade and other receivables, excluding 8 Z 5 B8R 3 & £ 1t i Uk
prepayments B PEERMNFKIE
(Note 18) (K i#18) 218,381 - - 218,381
Loan receivables (Note 19) FEWE K (AT 19) 2,500 - - 2,500
Amount due from associates JFE i Bt & X ] 3R
(Note 12(b)) (B2 12(b) 4,149 - - 4,149
Time deposits over three months B =1E A E HEX
(Note 20) (Hfi#20) 15,500 - - 15,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkEEEEY
(Note 20) (Hfi#20) 165,105 - - 165,105
405,635 3,757 6,242 415,634
At 31 March 2017 R-Z—tF=ZA=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ERKEE
(Note 14) (Hit14) — = 16,439 16,439
Bond investment (Note 15) EHF®RE (W E15) 7,711 = = 7,711
Financial assets at fair value through R AFELAB@RZ
profit or loss (Note 16) BB EEMNLI6) = 4,838 = 4,838
Trade and other receivables, excluding fEU Z 5 R 3 & H 1t [l Uk
prepayments (Note 18) FE - AEEEMNRE
(K iF18) 216,748 = = 216,748
Loan receivables (Note 19) FEWE R (AT 19) 6,496 = - 6,496
Amount due from an associate JiE e — R Bk & A B 5RIE
(Note 12(b)) (K iE12(6) 3,250 = — 3,250
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEEY
(Note 20) (Hfit20) 223,867 = — 223,867
458,072 4,838 16,439 479,349
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13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY 13

Bt 3% #R AR B B

BRERE T 2HMBEER AR

CATEGORY (CONTINUED) (4)

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FE T
Liabilities =K
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost 2 B 5 A AN 71 BR /Y
HEMB AR
Trade and other payables (Note 23) ERE 5B 5k & A At
P& SR IE (K7 7£23) 258,093 245,013
Bank borrowings (Note 21) RITEE (K £21) 68,914 115,015
327,007 360,028
14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14 At HEBMEEE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TH& T
At 1 April mA—A 16,439 16,678
Fair value loss charged to equity STAER AT EEE (10,197) (239)
At 31 March N=A=+—H 6,242 16,439
As at 31 March 2018, available-for-sale financial assets R-ZE—N\F=A=+—H  atHEH

comprised 3,288 (2017: 3,288) and 500 (2017: 500) non-voting
and redeemable shares in two unlisted equity funds. These equity
funds are denominated in United States dollars, with fair values
being determined based on the carrying value of the funds
calculated with reference to the quoted market prices of the
underlying investments. The fair values are within level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

% & E 0 E M EE LT RAE ¢ $3,288
B (ZZ—+t 4 :3,2880%) K500k (= —
+F 5000 EBROREAIBRIRD - ZF
BRAESUETLIE  HAFEDRES
BEBKENTSREFTENESRA
BEmMETE - 2FEDTRAFESLM =
33)FE=MHA -

EEEBREEER AR 2017/18FHK 177
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15 BOND INVESTMENT 15 BEFERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 FHET
At 31 March R=A=+—8 — 7,71

The terms of maturity of the bond investment is summarised as BEHZE 2B BRGEHB AT

follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Between 2 and 5 years F_FEERF — 7,711
As at 31 March 2017, the Group's bond investment is unlisted, N-ZE—+FE=A=1+—H0 KEEHNE
denominated in United States dollars, and bears a coupon rate of HFIRERIELT - AETINE - LHHE
5.55% per annum. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the BEFS55%  c RMEBHH RAEER
reporting date is the carrying amount of the bond investment. BRREFREZKREE -
Such bond investment was disposed of by the Group during the REBERBE_Z—/\F=H=1T—AH
year ended 31 March 2018 with a gain of HK$323,000 being IFFEEHEZEFKRE  URAFERE
recorded in “Other gains/(losses), net” in the current year's WaRERmIEmlks /(B8)  FEIRT
consolidated income statement (Note 30). Br Uk 25323,0007%8 7T (K 7£30) °
16 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 16 BT EILABSZZHKEEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
SEtE -= =
HK$'000 HK$000
T FiB T

Unlisted equity instruments JEFmARATA 3,757 4,838
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group's financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss mainly comprised future equity
interests in an investee (the “Investee”) which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong principally engaged in development
and distribution of pet related mobile applications and electronic
devices.

Under the terms of agreement with the Investee, which will
expire in November 2018, the Group will be entitled to 10%
of the equity interest of the Investee in return for its limited
initial investment of US$600,000, except under the following
scenarios:

— In the event of the Investee being able to effect additional
equity financing, the Investee will issue preference shares
to the Group at value equivalent to US$600,000 plus
a right for the Group to purchase additional preference
shares at certain share price.

— In the event of a change in control or successful initial
public offering (“IPO”) of the Investee, the Group may
receive cash payment of US$600,000 or equivalent value
of ordinary shares of the Investee.

— In the event of winding up of the Investee, the Group will
have preferential distribution up to US$600,000 over other
shareholders.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the fair value of the Group's
unlisted investment in the Investee is determined by Avista
Valuation Advisory Limited, qualified valuer, by market approach.
The fair values are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note
3.3). Key inputs to the valuation include price/earnings ratios of
comparable companies, lack of marketability discount rate, and
forecasted business performance of the Investee. There is no
interrelationships with those inputs. The higher the price/earnings
ratios of comparable companies, the higher the fair value. The
higher the lack of marketability discount rate, the lower the fair
value. The better the forecasted business performance of the
investee, the higher the fair value.

16

Bt 3% #R AR B B

BAFETARSZHBEEE
(%)

KRB N\FR-F—LF=A=1—8H "
AEBERATECABGZHBEES
ERERBRES (RRES] RES
HEMRIMAT - ETBRERFAERSD K
ENEBEADEARARETRE) R
HRARAS 43 -

BREBEBREFAILZBEZER &
BESR -_Z-N\F+—HAEn A&%E
% 75 EWERAEAR B H10% M IR A s - 1
REBRY) £ 1R E600,000% 7T H B
HER T FIE I BRI -

— MEREFAISHEIINRARE
2 HrREITHRASEEETER
&1 600,000 T HE ST - S0
AEERETREBEEIINELR
B RER o

— fWHEEFIEFNEEEEAAH
BE(BAXRARENKY  A5E
AJ U ER600,0003% 7T 2k AE H R 1 4% &
FERRNEEMNESNMR -

— HEEEFEE AEBBEREM
fi% 318 %t o Bt 5 %600,0003 7L °

R-F—\FER-F— 5
AEERAVFEFABREONHERES
MIELMBRENATE  BEERGERM
NEAFNABAERABANGEEE °
REFEDRAFESRHEIINE=R
N EENTITEGAREBEEREAIELR
NAINEBR AR E  RZAHERR
R RERETOBEARBERR - 256
ABEBEBsHEYEERBE ATLRAH
MTREES  RMIATEES - REZMH5
MBHEMRRBRERER » MAFEBE o ®
RETHWRAARBRRMLY 2 FEH-

S
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVENTORIES 17 #E8
2018 2017
—E—N\F — &
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FHET
Raw materials R A 219,921 153,870
Work-in-progress £ & i 23,436 21,483
Finished goods 815K i 28,990 24,401
272,347 199,754
Less: Provision for impairment R E B (3,605) (3,605)
268,742 196,149
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included HRAEAMIVYFTAHEREANTFE X
in cost of sales amounted to HK$1,108,971,000 (2017: 7N £1,108,971,000% T(=Z T — £ F:
HK$1,040,978,000). 1,040,978,000/%8 7T) °
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 BEWESRAREMEWFRIE
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Trade receivables e E 5 B8R 5) 208,764 209,741
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (3,748) (3,772)
Trade receivables, net BN E Z R F 58 205,016 205,969
Prepayments to vendors B E BRI 11,157 11,838
Prepayments for plant and equipment fﬁiﬁﬁ%&mﬁ?ﬂﬁ 3,074 —
Other prepayments H b T8 5k IE 3,663 3,046
Rental and other deposits HeRkHEMER 1,367 938
Value added tax receivables JE L S B 2,631 1,533
Others Hfb 9,367 8,460
236,275 231,784
Less: Non-current prepayments for plant B SEM B TR R B K
and equipment = 1A (3,074) =
Current portion of trade and other FE U B 5 BR 3R K E A JE UK
receivables RIE 2 mE I D 233,201 231,784

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2017/18




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables based on invoice date were as follows:

Bt 3% #R AR B B

18 BWE SRR Hith U KIA

(#8)
74 S5 B U0 R 5 B TR LA M 3O
R B B A T B -

R N\EE_ZE—+F=A=+—H"
JEWRESRFIZEZAH 2Rk DM a0
T

0 to 30 days 0£30H
31 to 60 days 31£60H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 180 days 91£180H
Over 180 days 180H M E

R R {E B

Less: Provision for impairment
Trade receivables, net

All trade receivables are either repayable within one year or on
demand.

The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days to its
customers.

As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$9,092,000 (2017:
HK$6,655,000) were past due but not considered impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers who have
no recent history of default. The ageing of these receivables is
as follows:

B E 5 ERZOH

2018 2017
Sl =+
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT Tt
195,924 199,313
5,828 1,253
1,937 3,388
1,280 1,954
3,795 3,833
208,764 209,741
(3,748) (3.772)
205,016 205,969

P EWE 5 IR

ASSN

IR —FAXRBRE

AEB-—RETHEPIBZEEH -

RZFBE—N\F=A=+—H " 9,092,000/%
T (ZF—+ 4% :6,655000/87T) 2 FEWE
SEFCAHERELERE - ZSEWK
B 5 2 3 B3 4 B R GE 8% 2 7B
VRFERE - WERWRRZERLT :

31 to 60 days 31£60H
61 to 90 days 61Z290H
91 to 180 days 91£180H
Over 180 days 180H M £

2018 2017

=t s —Tt5
HK$000 HK$'000
T TR
5,828 1,252
1,937 3,388
1,280 1,954

47 61

9,092 6,655
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 BEWEZRARHEMEUFKT
(CONTINUED) (#&)
As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$3,748,000 RZZE-N\F=A=+—H - 3,748,000/
(2017: HK$3,772,000) were considered impaired. The individual fc(:i—ti :3,772,00075 7T) 2 IR W E
impaired receivables are mainly related to customers which no ARR A ERE o & B E R E B WK
longer have business relationship with the Group. The amount Iﬁiﬁiﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬂi%lﬁ%ﬁ%@%zg
of provision was HK$3,748,000 as of 31 March 2018 (2017: F#HE - —T—N\F=ZA=+—H2Z2&EE
HK$3,772,000). The impairment was firstly assessed individually /3,748,000 7T (ZZF — + 4 : 3,772,000
for significant or long ageing balances, and the remaining BIL) c EARBAEAGRZBES T
balances were grouped for collective assessment according to ERM A AR BBEFZEERRA
their ageing and historical default rates as these customers were L BB RARERBEBER XS
of similar credit risk. The ageing of these impaired receivables is HIESBTM HFERERBKERZ
as follows: BRECLA T :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Over 180 days 1808 KA k£ 3,748 3,772
Movements of the provision for impairment of trade receivables EWEGRFOREREEZEZSHNT
are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FHETT
At 1 April REA—H 3,772 3,836
Provision for impairment recognised during 4 A & #E 72 8 (B £ 15
the year 50 —
Receivables written off during the year as £ 1A i 88 1 T 4 [Bl
uncollectible JE W2 5k 18 (161) —
Exchange differences b X =58 87 (64)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,748 3,772




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The credit quality of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor considered impaired amounting to HK$195,924,000
(2017: HK$199,313,000) could be assessed by reference to their
payment history and current financial position. These receivables
relate to a whole range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Management believes that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balance is expected to be fully recoverable.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s trade receivables from top
five customers accounted for approximately 45% (2017: 35%) of
the total trade receivables. The Group’s credit risk management
is disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, provision of HK$50,000
(2017: nil) was recognised for impairment of trade receivables.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

Bt 3% #R AR B B

18 BWE SRR Hith U KIA

(4&)
REBSIAERRBERKE S K
195,924,000 (= T — £ F:
199,313,000 L) 2 E EBE A2 E H i
TERRBE R BRI ETHM ZF
FEWARIEHEZZ AT EER DR
PEMA EEENEEFE BREEERIL
EEAEHRZEEHTBHY2ERE
WA ZEERIEL REREE -

R-ZE—NE=ZA=+—H8 A&£EKXH
AAEFZEKESEREASEERE
SRR BEELL5% (ZF— £ F :35%) °
AREBZZERREENGAUBEREK
M sE3H B -

HE_ZT-)\F=ZA=+—HBLLFEE K&K
[ B 5t & U B 5 fR 5K08! 8 #E 78 8 850,000

BL(ZE—tF &) -

EWE SRR < REERATEEIIHE:

HK$ 7 T
us$ EV
RMB AR

2018 2017
SESE - +=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHI T
2,840 3,841
202,781 203,507
3,143 2,393
208,764 209,741
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18

19

184

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Group is not aware of any credit risk on deposits,
value added tax receivables and other receivables as their
counterparties are either banks, government, corporations or
individuals with good credit ratings. The majorities of these
financial assets are neither past due nor impaired and there is
no history of default. The carrying amount of deposits, value
added tax receivables and other receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

18 BWEZIRAKHEMEKRKIR
(#8)
REELTMBE RS - AR ER R
KR EREAEERR  RRAXS
HHHARRT  BNRABRTEEF
Bz BARMA - ZERBEEABH B
REVBRE - B MERTE - RS -
P48 1 B A B M RO 2 PR T AR
DA 5 5 518 -

HK$ B TT
RMB AR
us$ P
Others E A

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each reporting date is
the fair value of each class of receivables as mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

2018 2017
SEEE -z
HK$°000 HK$'000
Fi#x T
1,818 886
9,059 7,409
2,344 2,200

144 32

13,365 10,527

REREAHZBEEERRALLS
EEWHE AFE  AEEDEHE
SRS IEER -

19 EREWNKIEA

Loan receivable B B
Less: Provision for impairment R E B

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18

2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—tF
HK$"000 HK$'000
T#&x FA T
2,500 8,960

— (2,464)

2,500 6,496
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 3% #R AR B B

LOAN RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 19 ERXEWFRIE(E)
As at 31 March 2017, loan receivable represented loan to a RZE—tEF=A=1+—H  ERERX
third party of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$8,960,000), ERREHETE=HERAKYS,000,000
which is interest bearing at 6% per annum and was originally 7T (18 % 728,960,000/ 7T) © £ & F6% &Y
repayable on 15 November 2014. The loan was secured by a MEFEMNE  WRERZZE—MF+
98.81% equity interest in a PRC incorporated company engaging —A+HABEE ERA—HEPHEM
in educational consultancy services. Such loan was subsequently REMAR(EEBARAEERRS) K
past due and an impairment provision of RMB2,200,000 98.81% AR IERIEE - ZEARPER
(equivalent to HK$2,464,000) was made as at 31 March 2017. E@i  WR-_FE—+tF=HA=+—H
=+ R B B 8 A R ¥#62,200,0007T (FHE R
2,464,000 7T) °
During the year ended 31 March 2018, loan principal of HE-_T—)\F=-A=1+—HALFE &
RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to HK$7,200,000) has been settled RABHE RN EFAE 5 ARKS,000,000
by the borrower. 7t (18 & 147,200,000/ 7T) °
As at 31 March 2018, loan receivable represents the remaining R_E—N\F=ZA=+—8 EREZRIE
loan principal of RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,500,000), HEBRERA&TEAREK2000,000T (HHE
which was subsequently settled by the borrower in May 2018. 722,500,000 7T) - HEBE R =T —N\F
FABRBRALZN -
Accordingly, the directors of the Company concluded that, as at Hit - ARAEERARZE—N\F=H
31 March 2018, no impairment provision is considered necessary =+—H - BEARZESELRERMS -
against such balance. The entire impairment provision made RZBE—+tF=A=+—HELHNEER
as at 31 March 2017 has been reversed and recorded against EREELRED  TREBEZE-F—\F=
“general and administrative expenses” in the consolidated A=1T—HILFEMNGZE KR XN EEIE
income statement during the year ended 31 March 2018. [— R RITERAZIHERD -
TIME DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH 20 EHER -HRERREFEY
EQUIVALENTS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEES 165,105 186,873
Time deposits within 3 months =8 AW E B 17 3K — 36,994
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREFEY 165,105 223,867
Time deposits over 3 months 8@ = A 7 H 77 & 15,500 —
180,605 223,867

EEEBREEAER AR 2017/18F%#HK 185
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20 TIME DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH 20 EHER RERBREEEY
EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) (#&)
Time deposits, cash and cash equivalents are denominated in EHER B RASSEMERUTEE
the following currencies: HI{E :
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHETT
HK$ 7B TT 18,357 22,523
Us$ E T 136,958 144,824
RMB AR 24,560 56,430
Other currencies H fih 5 #& 730 90
180,605 223,867
As at 31 March 2018, the effective interest rate on bank R-ZZTE—NEZA=+—H " RITEFEX
deposits is 1.1% (2017: 0.8%) per annum. The bank deposits of ZEBMEEFFING(ZZE— + F:
the Group have an average maturity of 30 days (2017; 20 days). 0.8%) - N&EE 2 RITIF K 2 FHEHH

AB30K(ZE—+4F:20K)

The conversion of bank balances and cash of the Group AEBUARBFTEZRITESRRES
denominated in Renminbi into foreign currencies and remittance HBABINEREARBKELRE A - B
of RMB funds out of Mainland China are subject to the rules X B A M TR 28 2 SN BE B AR 1 K%
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the #E PR 1 o

Mainland Chinese Government.

21 BANK BORROWINGS 21 SRITEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E— £ F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHETT
Non-current Ik i Eh
Long-term bank borrowings RHEEBRTEE 68,914 115,015
Less: current portion of long-term bank B RESBITEE RS
borrowings (65,155) (108,337)
3,759 6,678
Current B
Current portion of long-term bank RHRTEERD LS
borrowings 65,155 108,337
Total borrowings EBEHAE 68,914 115,015

186 SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The terms of borrowings are as follows:

Bt 3% #R AR B B

21 RITEE(E)

EERT M2

Within one year —FR
In the second year BF
Between 2 and 5 years

At 31 March 2018, the Group has aggregate banking facilities
of approximately HK$681,500,000 (2017: HK$686,500,000) for
overdrafts, loans and trade financing.

Unused facilities at the same date amounted to approximately
HK$547,507,672 (2017: HK$566,142,960). These facilities are
secured by:

(@) certain land and building (Note 7) of the Group
with the carrying amount of HK$49,211,000 (2017:
HK$37,827,000).

(b)  corporate guarantees provided by the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries.

In addition to the above, the Group is required to comply with
certain restrictive financial covenants imposed by the banks.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates were as follows:

2018 2017
—®-N\f% Y
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# FHT
65,155 108,337
3,759 2,921

- 3,757

68,914 115,015

%

—E-N\F=ZA=+—H £&H
RNEY BEFXRREBEZBERRTEE
#8 %8 #49681,500,000/8 L (= T — £ &F:
686,500,000 7T ) °

Rl B 2 7 &) F &t & 49547,507,6727% 7T (—
T — {4 :566,142,960/B TT) c ZEFHAE
AT %138 B B4 18

(@) ZAKEEBERMEEA49,211,000% T(=
T — + 4 37,827,000 L) Z & T
T i RAEF (FE5E7) o

b) AARREEFHEARRMEZA
AER -

Br Lt E SN - NERBZBBTRITRINZE
TR B 75 R -

AEEEBEEH 2ANEXEHRAKRRE L
ETEEBHIOT

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FH&T

NE R AT

6 months or less

68,914 115,015

EEEBEEEER AT 2017/18F#HK 187
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21 BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 21 RITBEEHE)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as REEBZ2ERAEMOT
follows:
2017
—
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.96% 8%
As all the bank borrowings were at floating interest rates, the BHREFRITEBEERZEFTE  BERE
carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair values BEEEAFEMEE MEPAEKRTIES
and all balances are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. TCHIME °
22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 22 ELFE i)
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is REFIREE R BEEFHIEBETAT
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-NF — L
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFMBEREE:
— Deferred income tax asset to be recovered — 1+ —1{& H & UgE >
after more than 12 months RIEFTISIRE E (1,782) (1,086)
Deferred income tax liabilities: REFMBHREAE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled — #+—1EAABEE 2
after more than 12 months BEFBRAE 504 453

The movement in the net deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities
account is as follows:

BRELERER(EE) AEFHELE
W

At 1 April RUHA—H

Credited to consolidated income statement  R&RA W zHREA
(Note 32) (B #£32)

At 31 March R=B=+—8H
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2018 2017
—E-—N\EfF — 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FH& T
(633) 1,120
(645) (1,753)
(1,278) (633)
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

Bt 3% #R AR B B

22 REMBH (B
BEEFFEHREAERABERENZEE (K
AR E— B RAE R 52 4 ) 0

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: 1
Deferred income tax assets — BEFSHEE —
Decelerated tax
depreciation Tax loss Others Total
WEREE REESR Hity &t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
=t -z =% -z =t -z =t -z
—N\&F —t&F —N\¥ —tF —N\¥ —tF —N\& —t&F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiER FHT TER FTHET TR FHET FiER FHT
At 1 April REA—H
(36) (41) (48) (282) (1,002) — (1,086) (323)
(Credited)/charged to RERARER
consolidated income statement (5t A) /40 (769) 5 — 234 73 (1,002) (696) (763)
At 31 March R=A=+—H
(805) (36) (48) (48) (929) (1,002) (1,782) (1,086)
Deferred income tax liabilities — BEFSHEE -
Intangible assets Accelerated tax depreciation Total
BEMEE hn 3 #5084 B &t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
=t -z =t -F i ik
N\ —tF —N\#¥ —tF —N\#¥ —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET FTER FHET FTER FHET
At 1 April REA—B 72 922 381 521 453 1,443
(Credited)/charged to RERE W &
consolidated income statement (Rt A),/ Bk (72) (850) 123 (140) 51 (990)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—8 - 72 504 381 504 453

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$27,313,000 (2017: HK$24,330,000) for Hong Kong profits
tax purposes, which have no expiry, and unrecognised tax losses
of HK$36,658,000 (2017: HK$39,821,000) for PRC corporate
income tax purposes which will expire during year 2017 to year
2021. No deferred tax assets have been recognised for these tax
losses as the directors consider that it is not probable that the
temporary difference will be reversed in the foreseeable future.

RZE—N\F=A=+—H8 RBEBAE
ms(MEAEERD) AEEBRE
W R H TE B 1827,313,00008 T (2 — +
£ :24,330,000/87T) - BLHBI B EFIEH
s @ R4 HERTIE E 18 /536,658,000
T (ZZF—+4 :39,821,000/ 7T) » WA
Tt EFEE_T_—FFERH -
HRESRAEREZHAURETTRAR
PR M ERZERESEER
EERIBE E o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i %5 3 = MY 5E

22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 22 REMEBH(E)
At 31 March 2018, deferred income tax liabilities of RZE—-N\F=RA=+—H ' REHMEHE
HK$1,793,000 (2017: HK$1,358,000) has not been recognised for 81,793,000 jt (=& — £ 4 : 1,358,000
the withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on BIT) WA E THEB AR Z A EHEF
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries as the Company REMBEREMEIE - RE BN G ZE
controls the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not ZEWBARZREBR  MZSHBA
probable that these subsidiaries would distribute earnings in the AT AR AT R R D IRAT - RZF
foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings totalled HK$35,865,000 —N\F=ZA=t—HAZKELRBFEHXA
as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$27,152,000). 35,865,000/ 7t (=& — £ 4 : 27,152,000
MBI °
23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 BRHEZRARHitEARIE
2018 2017
—E-N\&F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Trade payables BB 5 BR K 199,828 193,454
Salaries and staff welfare payable ENFHERBEITEF 13,374 10,721
Accrued expenses Est & A 4,862 4,610
Others Hifb 40,029 36,228
Total trade and other payables BB 5 BR K Rk H b fE T
KIE 4a %8 258,093 245,013
(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice @ ENEZRFEBRBEZEHZRES
date were as follows: GI/CNE
2018 2017
—E-N\&F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 183,447 178,997
31 to 60 days 31£60H 4,029 3,081
61 to 90 days 61290H 788 3,711
91 to 180 days 912180H 5,285 6,281
Over 180 days 180E A £ 6,279 1,384
199,828 193,454
The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables REE B SR K& H A FE T 3K
approximate their carrying values. BzAFEEEEEDEES °
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23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated
in the following currencies:

23

BHEZRMRREMEMNRE

(%)
(@) (&)

BNESERZEMERATER

HK$ S 7T
us$ ETT
RMB AR

The carrying amounts of other payables are denominated
in the following currencies:

5 (& :
2018 2017
Sl ==
HK$"000 HK$'000
T FAT
16,570 16,547
147,175 143,332
36,083 33,575
199,828 193,454

(b) HMEMNKREZEEERATERE

HK$ & TT
RMB AR
us$ ETT
Other Hfb

I -
2018 2017
SEEE -z
HK$°000 HK$'000
Fi#n T
12,030 10,215

26,346 20,434

19,886 20,872

3 38

58,265 51,559
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24

25

192

SHARE CAPITAL 24 AR
Number of Nominal
shares value
RV 4E| H{E
‘000 HK$'000
T 15 FAT
Authorised — ordinary shares of HK$0.1 EE — BREEET
each ZE B 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of BEZETEHE — BREE
HK$0.1 each 0.1 7T 2 & i IR
As at 1 April 2016 R-ZZFE—-—XREMA—H 277,124 27,712
Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise of 1T {5 BE % 4 B 25 77 A% (D
options FTiS 7K 18 3,876 388
As at 31 March 2017 —+tF=A=+—H 281,000 28,100
As at 1 April 2017 RZFE—tFMWMHA—H 281,000 28,100
Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise of 717 {5 i A% # B 25 17 IR 1D
options Ffr 1% 5818 1,140 114
As at 31 March 2018 —NF=A=+—H 282,140 28,214
SHARE OPTIONS 25 HEEIRHE

“Share
Option Scheme”) on 6 August 2012. Pursuant to the Share

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the

Option Scheme, the Company may grant share options to certain
grantees (including directors and employees) of the Group to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under this Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by the
Group shall not exceed 30 per cent of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time. The subscription price will
be determined by the directors, and will not be less than the
highest of the nominal value of the shares, the closing price of
the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the trading day of
granting the options and the average of the closing prices of the
shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of granting the options.
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srEl (st al)) - RIZBEERE -
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bR SR B R HARITE A %
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25 SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 25 EERQHE(4E)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding during FRAMAKTEERESE 2EH 0T

the year are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
in HK$ per Number of in HK$ per  Number of
share options share options
itz Bikz
98T B FHB T B R 1
TEE B TEE #HH
‘000 ‘000
T4 T 15
At 1 April RnEA—H 2.430 22,950 2.277 23,896
Granted during the year FRERE not applicable — 2.190 3,300
TEH
Exercised BT 2.110 (1,140) 2.193 (3,876)
Lapsed SN 2.108 (540) 2121 (370)
At 31 March R=RA=+—H 21,270 22,950
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, all of the outstanding options RZZE—NFRZFT—+F=A=+—8 -
are fully vested and exercisable. FIBERARITE 2 ERECTHER -
1,140,000 (2017: 3,876,000) share options were exercised during F [51,140,00017 (=& — £ 4F : 3,876,000
the year resulting in 1,140,000 (2017: 3,876,000) shares being MBREEETE SRIRNETHEE
issued at a weighted average price of HK$2.110 (2017: HK$2.193) BEMR2110B T (ZE—+4F : 2193/ 7T)
each. The related weighted average share price at the time of £ 971,140,0004% (== — £ 4 : 3,876,000
exercise was HK$2.75 (2017: HK$2.45) per share. BB Mn o ITHERF 2B mNETFHRER

BR2758 T (ZF— L& :24587T) °
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25 SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the

following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Exercise
Expiry date price
g = TEE
Directors =
20 March 2019 “E-NF=HA=+H 1.780
18 January 2020 —ZTE-A+/\H 2.158
29 June 2021 ZEZ—-FXAZt+NH 2.190
Employees ==
20 March 2019 “ET-hNF=RB=+H 1.780
18 January 2020 —TTE-A+\H 2.158
9 July 2020 —EZEFLANA 2.260
15 July 2019 “T-NE+tA+HA 2.800
6 January 2021 ZE-—%—HKH 2.142
Others Hith
20 March 2019 “E-NF=HA=+H 1.780
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25 BREGE)

RERRTEBREZNHAREITE

BwWT:

Number of options

BERERE

Vested percentages

EEESL

600 600 100% 100%
2,200 2,200 100% 100%
3,300 3,300 100% 100%

50 200 100% 100%
1,300 1,300 100% 100%
2,200 2,200 100% 100%

10,000 10,000 100% 100%
1,220 2,750 100% 100%

400 400 100% 100%

21,270 22,950
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RESERVES 26 fiEfE
Capital  Share-based ~ Property  Available-for-
Share  reserve compensation revaluation sale financial Exchange Other  Retained
premium (Note) reserve reserve  asset reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
A HE
ERGEE ROIMA mE HMBEE
BRipaE (i) el ZRHEE R EXHEE HEtfEE REEN Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER FET TET THxT THr TEx THEr TER
At 1 April 2016 R-ZZ-A"ENA—A 73,727 10,591 5,968 6,790 11,041 7,151 (2,022) 526,792 640,038
Exchange difference arising BERMNRBRRMES
on translation of foreign EXES
subsidiaries = = = = —  (27,559) = —  (27,559)
Fair value loss on available-for-  AJ{EHERKEE 2
sale financial assets ATEER = = — — (239) — — - (239)
Employee share option scheme:  {& 8 B & 5t &l :
Proceeds from shares issued RITR B R ER TR G
upon exercise of options BT 5 %8 8,113 — — — — — — — 8,113
Transfer of reserve upon RITRBREREREE
exercise of options 1,395 = (1,395) = = = = = =
Options lapsed BARMERE = — (99) = = = = 99 —
Value of employee services EERKZEE — — 1,601 — — — — — 1,601
Profit for the year FRET — = = = = = — 61,745 61,745
Dividends paid Bk S = = = = = = —  (41,586) (41,586)
At 31 March 2017 R-ZZ—+tF=A=+—H 83,235 10,591 6,075 6,790 10,802  (20,408) (2,022) 547,050 642,113

At 1 April 2017
Exchange difference arising
on translation of foreign
subsidiaries
Fair value loss on available-for-
sale financial assets
Change in ownership interest in
a subsidiary without change
of control
Employee share option scheme:
Proceeds from shares issued
upon exercise of options
Transfer of reserve upon
exercise of options
Options lapsed
Profit for the year
Dividends paid

At 31 March 2018

Note:

The capital reserve of the Group includes the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of

the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an exchange

RZZ—tFNA—-R
BERNNBRARMES
EXER

T EHHEE 2
AT A

R-BHEAREAER
GERECET L

)

ERBRES:
RATE B RER TR D
Fr G 3R
RTEBRESERER

BRUBERIE
R
EIRR S

RZE-\$=R=+-H

of shares pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation in September 2002.

FEEBRBREBERAE 2017/18F &

Capital Share-based  Property Available-for-
Share reserve compensation revaluation sale financial Exchange Other Retained
premium (Note) reserve reserve asset reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
AHEHE
BAfGE URBXA LIES HKEE
& EE i Mefec EHERE ks EXfRE HitRE REEF aF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT TiExR THET TR T#xT Tz TiEx TEx TiExn
83,235 10,591 6,075 6,790 10,802  (20,408)  (2,022) 547,050 642,113
- - - - — 37,401 - — 37,401
- - - - (10,197) - - —  (10,197)
- - - - - - (1,477) - (1,477)
2,292 - - - - - - - 2,292
298 - (298) - - - - - -
- - (142) - - - - 142 -
- - - - - - - 741 74,111
- - - - - - —  (42,317) (42,317)
85,825 10,591 5,635 6,790 605 16,993  (3,499) 578,986 701,926
i
AEBAXRRLER =BT -FNARBAEE

FEAE BRI R B ARE AT S B R E (E R P
BINBRARZEARBRNEEBAERZERE -

195



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

27

28

196

REVENUE 27 Wz
The Group is principally engaged in the research and AEBFERE=EFERREMERH
development, manufacture and sales of electronic products and FEMAE - HEEHEEER -  FARER
other products. Revenue from sales of goods recognised during EMHERZWHRWAT:
the year are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FHETT
Sales of goods BYEERE 1,510,504 1,414,103
EXPENSES BY NATURE 28 EMHEIAZZMAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and selling SAEERE DERHEEBEANUE—R
expenses and general and administrative expenses are analysed RITHERERZAXSTAOT :
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Cost of inventories FEKA 1,108,971 1,040,978
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERRKETE
equipment 33,081 25,932
Amortisation of land use rights o b {55 R R 8 1,155 1,113
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E#E 986 6,265
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEME BEAZREZ
equipment U 25 (8) (159)
Operating lease rental of premises BFzREHOES 4,820 3,165
Employee benefit expense (including BEIRENMAZ(BEES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 35) B <) (47 2% 35) 197,184 165,301
Write-back of provision for inventory FEREREREE
impairment — (1,023)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables [& W & 5 B8R 7% 5 {8 1 50 —
Reversal of provision for impairment of Bl e S R R E & B
loan receivable (Note 19) (KraE19) (2,464) =
Auditor’s remuneration % 2R B &
— Audit services — ZE R 2,800 2,700
— Non-audit services — FRERB 263 389
Commission expense A& kX 12,108 15,657
Other expenses H b S 73,288 79,270
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling HEKRAEA DHREE
expenses and general and administrative B RN R =K RITE
expenses EREBRMATE 1,432,234 1,339,588
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29 OTHER INCOME 29 Hibug A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Government grants I 44 B 796 208
Scrap sales EERL B 379 4
Rental income HEIA 299 358
Others HAh 324 58
1,798 665
30 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 30 Hittyrss (F5iR) B8
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 FAT
Net foreign currency exchange gain/(loss) bE N W, (E18))F 8 2,724 (35)
Fair value gain on an investment property "EMERNFERZE
(Note 8) (#1:28) 900 200
Gain on disposal of bond investment HEGHFRER A
(Note 15) (#1&F15) 323 =
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value % A FEt A28 2 1§
through profit or loss (Note 16) BEATEEBE
(K17 16) (1,081) (113)
Net realised loss on derivative financial PMTESBMT A &R EE
instruments F R — (451)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment %1% - B = & =& & B &
(Note 7) (H1a£7) - (7,524)
Factory relocation costs (Note) R 5 R B KA (f i) - (5,585)
2,866 (13,508)
Note: iz -
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group relocated certain of its REBZE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLFE FEEKE
manufacturing plants in Mainland China from Huizhou to Dongguan and incurred ETHEAMBEREEEMNRBERS  WELE
relocation costs of approximately HK$5,585,000. ¥R pX AN #95,585,0007% T °
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31

32

198

FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME — NET

31 MB(RA) WA — R

Interest income from: KE TS EEZHBUA:
— bank deposits — RITFE XK
— bond investment — EHKE
— overdue interests received from — BX P U E A B B
customers
— others — HAb
Finance income B & WA
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEENERX
Less: amount capitalised on qualifying assets & : st & B EE 2
BEERN e
Finance costs = WD @iN
Finance (costs)/income — net BE (KA, WA — F58

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@) Bermuda and British Virgin Islands income
tax
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2035. The Company’s subsidiaries in the British Virgin
Islands are incorporated under the International Business
Acts of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are
exempted from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.

(b) Hong Kong profits tax
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

(c) PRC corporate income tax
The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
corporate income tax at 25% (2017: 25%) effective from
1 January 2008.
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2018 2017
S =+
HK$’000 HK$'000
T Fib

2,153 1,815
459 430
1,524 5,530
68 —

4,204 7,775
(5,179) (4,832)
— 253

(5,179) (4,579)
(975) 3,196

32 FEHMAX

(a)

(b)

(c)

BERERABELHEMRT
i
FARBE-E=RAFARBESR
ERE ARARKEBRELABEZ
MEBRARDRERBELHSEK
MEREMAYL R e BE
LEBMEH -

EEBNEBH
BEBMEH AR E16.5% (ZF—+
F :16.5%) Bt N F E b 5T E R TR
B o

FEIGERER

AEER B EN Y HEADER
25% (=B —+4F : 25%) BN 2 A
AR A-TENE—A—BENK -



32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(d) Macao taxation
Suga Macao Commercial Offshore Limited is a subsidiary

(e)

()

established in Macao and is exempted
Complementary Tax.

The amount of income tax charged to the
income statement represents:

(d)

from Macao

consolidated (e)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 3% #R AR B B

32 FrE Wi X ()

PR
MERPIBEREERBERARR

Current income tax:
— Hong Kong profits tax
— Income tax outside Hong Kong
— Over-provision in prior years
Deferred income tax credit (Note 22)

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax

EHATER

— BBRER

— BBEINTIER
— BEFERBEEE
iR JE BT 15 F 4K 2
(B1a£22)

differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:

RBFIRL 2 B AR - S BUR P

FriSmzEs

BiaealaxkMB o MEHSBN
T
2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
5,119 7,854
2,051 8
(478) (2,537)
(645) (1,753)
6,047 3,572

()

Profit before income tax

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%)

Effect of different income tax rates on
income arising outside Hong Kong

Tax loss not recognised

Expenses not deductible for income tax
purpose

Income not subject to income tax

Tax concession

Over-provision in prior years

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses

Income tax expense

B BT 15 754 A gt )

#16.5% (ZZF — +F
16.5%) i K5t &
EEBEINTE £ A
HKETRMEHEZ

za
RERHIEEIE
AAHMERZHAX

BRABMAEHRIBEA
IR & B
BEFEBREE
PABERERRIEA
&5 18

FTS i

There is no tax charge relating to components of other

comprehensive income.

FEEBRBREBERAE 2017/18F &

N4 B BR B 15 B A gt Bl 22 BT 15 A SR
NEBAMRERABEZERESER

FRR  REEMT :

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHE T
79,584 63,615
13,131 10,496
(3,499) (3,383)
5,643 7,230
842 1,168
(8,714) (8,693)
(120) -
(478) (2,537)
(758) (709)
6,047 3,572

BERBEXHEEMEER ARE

R -
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33 EARNINGS PER SHARE

200

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

33

BEREF

(a)

Profit attributable to owners of the

Company (HK$'000) (F#& L)
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITEERME
shares in issue ('000) 9 IR 8 (AR
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERAT B

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares which is the share options granted to
employees. For the share options, a calculation is done
to determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average market
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above
is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
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- %N
SRERRF TEAD TS AR
16 58 0 B DA P9 BB 4T B AR 2 10
TR -

2018 2017
SEtE =
74111 61,745
281,942 279,084
26.29 22.12

B3

BREERNINBREMEELES
BEBREEBRNBERT HERT
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FESRE N ZBRE -SLEREM
5 BB ENEMARRRITE
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33 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 33 SREBF (&

2018 2017
—E-N\F T4
Profit attributable to owners of the KRRIHEE A EAL &7

Company (HK$'000) (F#&T) 74,111 61,745

Weighted average number of ordinary B2 1T E @ % 0

shares in issue ('000) 15 P 8 () 281,942 279,084
Adjustments for share options ('000) BlERER(T0) 1,932 1,063

Weighted average number of ordinary BREERN 2T ERK

shares for diluted earnings per share AN AE S 15 A% B (T %)
('000) 283,874 280,147
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FREERF OBW) 26.11 22.04
34 DIVIDENDS 34 KRR

Dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2018 were HE_Z—\F=ZA=+—HLEFEEHN
HK$19,750,000 (HK7.0 cents per share) and HK$22,567,000 B B 5 Bl A19,750,0007% 7T (B A% 7.07% {lll)
(HK8.0 cents per share), respectively. A dividend in respect of the 22,567,000/ 7T (F%8.0/81l) - R
year ended 31 March 2018 of HK8.0 cents per share, totalling ZE-NENANBNBRRBEFERS FiE=
HK$22,615,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting ERBEE-_ZE—/\F=A=1+—HBHItFE
on 8 August 2018. These financial statements do not reflect this R B ZR% 8.0/l © &£ A22,615,0007%
dividend payable. TC o RS I R ZEMRE o

2018 2017

—E-N\&F —E—tF

HK$000 HK$'000

FTHExT FAT

Interim dividend, paid, of HK7.0 cents BIRF AR EE R
(2017: HK7.0 cents) per ordinary share T f%7.08 L
(ZE— 15 :7.08) 19,750 19,407
Final dividend, proposed, of HK8.0 cents R KBRS FR
(2017: HK8.0 cents) per ordinary share 3 f% 8.0 11
(ZE—+F:8.081) 22,615 22,567

42,365 41,974
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 35
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

ETHERIMAX(BEEEHNZ)

Wages and salaries IE RS

Bonus 1EAL

Staff welfare 8T 1& #
Share-based compensation expenses R 1 15 7K 3 B B 2
Unutilised annual leave RIBEE R
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R K & A A —

TE BT 8

(@) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included three (2017: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in Note 36. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2017: two)
individuals during the year are as follows:

2018 2017
SEtE -
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#xT FHETT
173,431 142,441
8,844 8,800
5,795 5,444
— 1,601
70 84
9,044 6,931
197,184 165,301
(@ EEEEFHFHMAL

RAEE  AEBAGRSTMAL
BRE=Z2(CE—+tF:=R)EF
BE2MeE R E36RME - FA
ENEBRE(ZTE—tF WA A
TZMEemT:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THxT FBT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & - 2285 & B ¥ 7& 7 4,732 4,761
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & K #& 5| 5+ 2l 4 7 132 128
4,864 4,889
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 35 SEIEFfMZ(BEEEML)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED) (48)
(@) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) () BBEZESHMAL(E)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B & T AT EE
Number of individuals
AB
2018 2017
—E2-N\F Tt F
Emolument bands B <& &5 [
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7L £2,500,000/%8 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 1
2 2
(b) Senior management’s emoluments by band (b) REEIASNESREEAS
B &
The senior management’s emoluments (excluding the five NFUATEHEHNSREEAE(TE
highest paid individuals) fell within the following bands: BRRE&aRTMADIZMSE :

Number of individuals

AE
2017
—E—t5F
Emolument bands B & &5 &
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 2 2
3 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36 E= 25 MR #E2S
(a) Directors and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EERTHAEMS

The emoluments of every director and the chief executive

is set out below:

BEERTHRABZHMEHINMT

Employer’s
contribution
to retirement

Salaries and ~ Share-based  Discretionary benefit
Fees  allowance compensation bonuses scheme Total
R
B EE
e HEREH ROGREH R EXHX ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET T THT THET
For the year ended BE-3-N\%
31 March 2018: =R=+—-HLFE:
Executive directors: WiTES:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman, REFEL

Chief Executive Officer) (£E - TB#EH) 3,465 1,200 — 2,000 467 7132
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy BEREE(FZE)

Chairman) 2,092 — — 400 105 2,597
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk REEET 1,296 - - 600 65 1,961
Non-executive director: FUTES:

Mr. Lee Kam Hung TEEELE 180 — — — — 180
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:

directors:
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven RFHEE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BALEE 216 - - - - 216
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan RamE T 216 - - - - 216
For the year ended BE-2-+t%

31 March 2017: =RA=t+-RLFE:
Executive directors: WiTES:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman, RERET

Chief Executive Officer) (B 1TR#EH) 2,806 1,620 — 2,800 443 7,669
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy BEREE(FZE)

Chairman) 2,008 — 218 300 100 2,626
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk RREET 1,196 = 436 500 60 2192
Non-executive director: EHTES:

Mr. Lee Kam Hung FRELE 180 = = = — 180
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:

directors:

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven REHELE 240 = = = — 240
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BARRE 216 = = = — 216
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan RaEEL 216 = 65 = — 281
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the retirement benefits was paid or receivable by
directors during the year (2017: Nil).

None of the termination benefits was paid by or receivable
from the company, the subsidiary undertaking nor the
controlling shareholders to the directors during the year
(2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
does not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2018, there are no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017:
Nil).

Bt 3% #R AR B B

36 EFF= Nz (F)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

FEEBRBREBERAE 2017/18F &

ESRAEFREREEN

TR BMEEFEMNACPERKE
MZFE—tF:F)o

FABEQR - MEARIIER
BRRAESEAZDNHEBE LR
MNZE—tF:F)-

BME=ATXNARUEZRE
ZiKE

BE-_T—\F=A=+-BL#F
B AARYEAETESS XN
RUBEERBEIAE(CT—LF:

=)o
<

ARUEE HESEZHMN
BEHZABEREEESR
AE-CRERRARSAZ
EXR RERREMRZZ
'

R-ZT—\E=A=+—H  HEN
FRES mEBESEHNZE
BEABBREEGHESERE
MEERAZHAZER EEX
REMZSZHEN (CB—LF!
) -

EERXS  RHIEEHNZ
EXHEDS
RERKFREAER SHEFE
ARAHERFI N T EARRREZNE
R E A S (T E R ER)
MEBARARBDXBEERIEARS
THREHN(CE—LF &)

205



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

37 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37 GZEEERERM:E
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@) Recondiliation of profit for the year to cash generated from (@) FRENELEXBHELRSY
operations as follows: BN
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Profit for the year F g 73,537 60,043
Adjustments for: o
— Income tax expense — TSR 6,047 3,572
— Finance income — @BEI A (4,204) (7,775)
— Finance cost — BB KA 5,179 4,579
— Depreciation of property, plant and — ¥ BWER
equipment HEITE 33,081 25,932
— Impairment of property, plant and — WE - HEKR
equipment = AERE — 7,524
— Amortisation of land use rights — - R G 1,155 1,113
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B AE#E 986 6,265
— Gain on disposals of property, plant — HEWE - BER
and equipment B 2 W (8 (159)
— Loss on financial assets carried at fair ~ — A F{EFE AEE
value through profits or loss ZUBEEBE 1,081 13
— Share based compensation expenses — — %0~ 3R R B 7 2 — 1,601
— Net realised loss on derivative — TSI AEIR
financial instruments &5 18 % 5 — 451
— Fair value gain on an investment — —EHREMEZ
property N EW = (900) (200)
— Share of losses of associates — DIEBE RRIEBE 2,375 1,253
— Write-back of provision for inventory — — 77 & J5i & B 4 B @)
impairment — (1,023)
— Provision for impairment of trade — BB ZER
receivables B B 50 —
— Reversal of provision for impairment — — & F & Ug 308 L (E
of loan receivable B EEE (2,464) =
— Gain on disposal of bond investment  — HEE 5% E U (323) =
115,592 103,289
Changes in working capital: LEESEH:
— Inventories — FE (72,593) (27,765)
— Trade and other receivables — ERE SRR &
H & U 3R 1E (4,541) (31,375)
— Trade and other payables = Fgﬁféf%ﬁﬁmﬁ
H fth & 1+ 5 IR 14,040 63,866
Cash generated from operations REXEBEE RS 52,498 108,015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

37

(@) Recondiliation of profit for the year to cash generated from

operations as follows: (Continued)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

Bt 3% #R AR B B

GFERERERME(E

(@) FRARFESCLEBHELRS Y
BRI (%) :

HEME BMEMRBZAGRERRE:

Net book value (Note 7)
Gain on disposals of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Net cash reconciliation

(b)

2018 2017

—E2-)N\F 4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA& T

BRE R E (A7) 12 46
LEME BMENZE

& 8 159
LEME BMEKEZE

Z P18 skI8 20 205

(b) FHRESEER

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the

movements in net cash for each of the years presented.

REFI NS AR FENFER D
Rk FREEE o

Cash and cash equivalents

Borrowings and loans — repayable within
one year

Borrowings and loans-repayable after
one year

Net cash

Cash and cash equivalents
Gross debt — variable interest rates

Net cash

RBekBAESED

EREER—A
R—FRERE

ERRER—A
R—FRER

FERE

RBekBAEEHED
REH—FBH X

FERE

2018 2017
—®-N\#% —E— i
HK$'000 HK$000
Fi# 5 T
165,105 223,867
(65,155) (108,337)
(3,759) (6,678)
96,191 108,852
165,105 223,867
(68,914) (115,015)
96,191 108,852
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37

208

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37 AR RERMEEE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Net cash reconciliation (Continued) (b) BHRSERGE)
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
Hit&E MEEHNAR

Borrowings  Borrowings
and loans and loans

Dividends  due within due after
Cash paid 1 year 1 year Total
R—FR R-F%
) o L))
Ré EffRE BRRER ERREXR o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL THT TATL TATL THT
Net cash as at 1 April 2017 RZZ—t+EMA—-BH
2R 223,867 - (108,337) (6,678) 108,852
Non cash — dividend declared FHe—EERRE - 42,317 - - 42,317
Cash flows Rerg (67,151) (42,317) 43,182 2,919 (63,367)
Foreign exchange adjustments MMEHE 8,389 - - - 8,389
Net cash as at 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1—-H
H) 238 ¢ 165,105 - (65,155) (3,759) 96,191
Net cash as at 1 April 2016 RZE—~ENA—RK
#he 225,027 = (101,197) (10,932) 112,898
Non cash — dividend declared FRE—BERRE — 41,586 — — 41,586
Cash flows Rene 14,277 (41,586) (7,140) 4,254 (30,195)
Foreign exchange adjustments MERE (15,437) = = = (15,437)
Net cash as at 31 March 2017 R=_E—+F=A=+-H
mFRE 223,867 — (108,337) (6,678) 108,852
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38 COMMITMENTS

(i)

(ii)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments in respect of rented premises
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

38

Bt 3% #R AR B B

I

() BEHAHRE
R-E—\F=ZA=+—0 %%H
54 B ) AR B R AT MO A
ARERZZEBRSBBMT :

Not later than one year —&R

Later than one year and not later than five —HFE{ERAFNA
years

Later than five years hF 1%

Capital commitments
At 31 March 2018, the Group had the following capital
commitments:

2018 2017
—B_N\F —T—+fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FiH T
3,673 2,839
3,452 1,252
706 535
7,831 4,626
(i) BEREKIE

RZE-N\F=ZA=+—H F£&£H
B THNEARALRE:

2018 2017
—E-—N\F —E— &
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FH T
Contracted but not provided for: BRI #){B R B
— Property, plant and equipment — V¥ BELEZE 1,818 3,053
— Investment in an associate — R —HE#E AT
®E — 2,000
1,818 5,053
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Bit 7% 5 R Y 5E

39

210

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% to 10% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes
12%
employees, and has no further obligations for the actual

approximately 7% to of the basic salaries of its
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Macao, the Group
has arranged its Macao employees to join the government
provident fund scheme (the “Macao Scheme”). The Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions of MOP30 and
MOP15, respectively, per month to each employee to the Macao
Scheme, and had no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the monthly
contributions.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of the

Group's contributions to the aforementioned pension schemes
were approximately HK$9,044,000 (2017: HK$6,931,000).
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EERKER
AEBERERABERELH2HERH T
niEwstE((RERFE]) - BB S E
TEBERE - HBEUEAAEE - R
ERTES S AREEREER D KR
B ERTERIAPIBARZTEIHK - &
BREBWAZ5%E10% o — & X T
FoAREEREE - HREME -

AEBRBHPBER MR FOEG 2 R E -
REEFEANZEERBREBRAKG
MR - AREREREEATENT%
EN2%HER - BREERFI > AEBER
NERSIERRREBEMNZEMEE - B
RE RN E B RERRNKER NEN
ZEBERARE -

BRRFAZBAUNRBEH  AEBEE L H
HRPIR B2 MBE A 258 (DR
g -AKEREEEEBANERERD
B ERPIEH S RS0RPIE RISRPIHE
BREARZIN  YEERINEASHR
KRR ZEMEAL -

BE_T-\F=ZA=1t—HLFE &
SEM AURKRS S EIEL 2 BB
#%9,044,00078 7T (ZF — £ 4 : 6,931,000
ABIL) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 3% #R AR B B

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40 ERAEALRS
As at 31 March 2018, 38.99% (2017. 39.15%) of the total RZZE—-NF=ZA=+—H ARABE
issued shares of the Company is owned by Superior View Inc., a BT 485 238.99% (Z & — t F:
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and 16.48% 39.15%) Ty BB fE E B T = B B 5 i Ak 2
(2017: 16.55%) of the total issued shares of the Company is Z A AlSuperior View Inc.# A @ M ZANA &)
owned by Billion Linkage Limited, a company incorporated in EBITRMDABTE 216.48% (ZE— L F -
the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling parties of the 16.55%) D E R BRE XA S TMK 2
Group are Dr. Ng Chi Ho, a director of the Company, and Ms. A A Billion Linkage Limited#%H - AN & &
Lee Wai Fun, wife of Dr. Ng Chi Ho, respectively. HEERATORRARAGESTRERE

ITRFBEIZL(REEBLZET) -

(@) Transaction with related parties (a) HEAEALRS
In additional to amounts stated elsewhere, during the year, BRES/INEMAANSEIN A&
the Group has the following related party transactions: ERFNGETTIIAREALR
5

2018 2017
SEtE =5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE Fisn

Sales of electronic products to a minority [A — & B B A 7 2 D

shareholder of a subsidiary RREEETFES — 4,792
In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions EERR LARFIRAEERR
were carried out in the normal course of the Group's X BEPATT BB E 2GR
business and conducted at terms mutually agreed by the AT

respective parties.
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Key management compensation

212

(c)

The aggregate remuneration of key personnel
management, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain of the highest paid employees, as
disclosed in Note 35 and 36, is as follows:

40 BRAZEANLER 5 (M)

(b) EREEE R M
TEEREABCZFMAREED
HARRNEERETFREHEEZ
SRR (B W #E35 K MY 5236 BB) - &
BT -

2018 2017
SEtE -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT Fis

Salaries and other short-term employee % & K H b 2 &
benefits EERAH
Post-employment benefits B Bk 12 4 A

Year-end balances with related parties

19,217 19,366
922 870
20,139 20,236

(c) EERAEALTZFRER

Amount due from associates (i) g R SNET

Amounts due to minority shareholders of &} i B A & =

subsidiaries D% R SR IE
(i): The terms of balances with related parties are disclosed in Note

12.
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HK$’000 HK$'000

FHI T

A1) 4,149 3,250
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41

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 1
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company

D -

Non-current assets
Deferred tax assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Total liabilities

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

FRBEE
EEB AR E
SN NI

RBEE

JE U B 5 AR 7R K EL A & WK TR
A] Y B 7% 1]

& W B /B8 & B SR IR
ReERBREEEY

EEAE

REBEE
&8 5 Bk 7K S L At & FROR

aEERHE

=
RRBEAANEHEES

e A
H i 18

RE &R

2
S

T 25 48 FR

EsRAaEAHE

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on 27 June 2018 and was signed on its behalf.

Ng Chi Ho

REE
Director

EF

Bt 3% #R AR B B

AzEEEERREHRE
AzEERER

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
il Tt
ZRA=+—H =R
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THET

929 1,002

68,166 68,166
69,095 69,168

453 258

730 528

224,413 165,392
12,139 1,900
237,735 168,078
306,830 237,246
2,646 3,057

2,646 3,057

28,214 28,100
156,332 154,182
119,638 51,907
304,184 234,189
306,830 237,246

ARREBERBREN-_ZT-NFRAZ
TEREESSHE  YHTIESEKR

Ma Fung On

REE
Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE N FRAzEEEERRHFES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY ) (48)
(CONTINUED)
Note (a) reserve movement of the Company MeE@A R #EEH

Share-based
Share  Contributed compensation Retained

premium surplus reserve  earnings Total
B 43 43 =%
fg 13 & & AR BHMEAE RIEERF G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TR FET TET TAx
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RF
mA—H 73,727 64,872 5,968 33,606 178,173
Employee share option scheme: EEBREE:
Proceeds from shares issued upon T BREREITRG
exercise of options Z BB 5RIE 8,113 = = — 8,113
Transfer of reserve upon exercise of 777 {8 & I £ B
options BEEH 1,395 — (1,395) — —
Options lapsed BRI — — (99) 99 -
Value of employee services EERK<EE = = 1,601 = 1,601
Profit for the year E3ayp = = = 59,788 59,788
Dividends paid 2R A& S — — — (41,586)  (41,586)
At 31 March 2017 R-B-tF
=BA=+-H 83,235 64,872 6,075 51,907 206,089
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tF
mA—H 83,235 64,872 6,075 51,907 206,089
Employee share option scheme: EEBREE:
Proceeds from shares issued upon TR BRERETRG
exercise of options ZFEHE 2,292 - - - 2,292
Transfer of reserve upon exercise of 77 {8 5 I 12 B
options BEEE 298 - (298) - -
Options lapsed B K A - - (142) 142 -
Profit for the year FN & A - - — 109,906 109,906
Dividends paid EIRR S - - - (42,317) (42,317)
At 31 March 2018 R-2-N\F
=A=+—H 85,825 64,872 5,635 119,638 275,970
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42

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Note (a) reserve movement of the Company

(Continued)

Note:

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal amount of
shares issued and the book value of the underlying net assets of subsidiaries

acquired in return.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it
is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due,
or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate

of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In May 2018, the Group entered into two agreements with
Mobilogix, Inc. (“Mobilogix”), a company incorporated in the
United States, under which the Group agreed: (i) to invest
up to US$2 million in certain convertible promissory notes of
Mobilogix; and (ii) to purchase warrants for subscription of
50,860 shares of Mobilogix at an exercise price of US$0.01 per
share. Up to the date of this report, investment amounting to
US$1 million has been made by the Group; while the remaining
US$1 million will be paid by 31 December 2018.

41

42

Bt 3% #R AR B B

ARRzEEEERRERE
B (48)

Bt 5% (a) A5 2 B {3 ff8 &2 Bh (4R)

Bz -

BABERIEE R M PT 31T IR0 2 T {E £2 P IR B Y
BARERFEERAECER

REBEABRE-NAN-FRA8E BARKBADIKT
BR - EARATHRARR - AIMNESARBE IR
K A BB HAEH IR - T() AR BATRAEH D
IR EEEEEDEE  R(i) HEEZAZRE
BREEE HBBHTRARBKROEEZEM 8
TRELEHIIK -

H%®S1H

R-ZZTZ—N\FRA AEEHE-—BR
% B 5% it B 32 # & & Mobilogix Inc.
(IMobilogix]) 5T 2 M 17 1 % : IR L A& B
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LEMBHME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B 2 =—F—/\F=H="1—HIFF

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out

below:

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+-HLEE

AEEEEREAMRFEZEEEFEAREA
BEEMABEMEHIMT:

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“E-UF —ZT-1F —T-F —Z-tF et igits
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FTAET TAL TAEL TEx
Consolidated results FEES
Revenue I &= 1,244,828 1,341,924 1,368,100 1,414,103 1,510,504
Operating profit 43 i 90,661 178,144 88,654 61,672 82,934
Profit before income tax BR P15 B0 Al 7 91,597 175,712 87,907 63,615 79,584
Income tax expense FIEHEY (10,688) (5,698) (8,596) (3,572) (6,047)
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company A2 G A A FE1L & F 81,487 170,406 80,038 61,745 74111
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-ME —E-Rf —E-RE —I—15 Eeagitd
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TAET TAT FTAEL TiEx
Consolidated assets and liabilities GREENRERE
Land use rights T A 58,973 55,528 53,291 50,484 51,994
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKRERE 200,943 257,317 263,236 276,081 297,178
Investment property KEWME — 10,100 10,000 10,200 —
Intangible assets EVEE 15,892 12,372 7,251 986 3,319
Goodwil HE 3,949 3,949 3,949 3,949 3,949
Interests in associates REEENR 2 ER 1,702 — 3,876 3,804 3,623
Deferred income tax assets EEMEHAE 2,811 762 323 1,086 1,782
Available-for-sale financial asset MHHERBEE 7,547 13,358 16,678 16,439 6,242
Bonds investments — long term BHEE — RH 7711 7,711 7,711 7,711 —
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RAFELARE Z
— long term BsEE — RS = = = 4,838 3,757
Other non-current receivables H 3 7 B9 & W R E 852 1,658 4118 — 3,074
Current assets RBEE 541,083 586,673 610,815 662,137 690,294
Current liabilities mEEE (270,554)  (289,702)  (301542)  (360,112)  (329,344)
Net current assets MEE EFE 270,262 296,971 309,273 302,025 361,359
Total assets less current liabilities BERERRYEE 570909 659,726 679,706 677,603 736,626
Long term borrowings REGE (47731)  (12,405) (10,932) (6,678) (3,759)
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEMEHAR (4,649) (2,105) (1,443) (453) (1,262)
Total equity ExeE 518529 645216 667331 670,472 731,605
216 SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017/18
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